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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest

only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any

part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the ‘Directors”] of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”] collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that
to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
Bingo Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2025 to our
shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2025 (the “Year”), the Group
continues to focus on Filmed Entertainment, New Media
Exploitations and Licensing Businesses and Cinema Business.

Cinema Business

In view of the on-going development of the Cinema Business,
this segment has been a revenue generator of the Group in the
Year and the periods before. Approximately revenue of HK$2.7
million and gross profit of HK$1.6 million were generated
during the Year. The Group’s revenue and gross profit from the
Cinema Business for the Year decreased as compared to
revenue of HK$5.7 million and gross profit of HK$3.4 million
generated in the year ended 31 March 2024 (the “Year
2024"). In addition to the unsatisfactory in the film market of
the PRC during the Year, our existing Hangzhou cinema was
closed around 1.5 months for repairment work, which also led
to the decrease in the revenue of the Cinema Business.

Filmed Entertainment Business

While the memorandum of understanding with Beijing iQlYI
Technology Co., Ltd. (Jt R EFERFH AR A E) ("Beijing iQIYI"),
details of which were stated in the Company’s announcement
dated 22 April 2024, and the eventual contract with Beijing
iQlYI (see the Company’'s announcement dated 31 August
2024) were signed during the Year, the Group is still in the
process of finalizing several flmed entertainment productions
with Beijing iQlYl. Accordingly, while no revenue was generated
in this sector during the Year, the Company received a
significant cash payment from Beijing iQlYl. The Company is
confident that going forward in the next five years, this business
segment will be a significant driver of future revenue.
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Licensing Business

Licensing of Intellectual Property Rights of “King of Comedy”
and “The New King of Comedy” and Provision of Project
Planning and Promoation Services

During the Year, the Group, as the licensor and service
provider, entered into an agreement with an independent third
party for licensing of certain intellectual property rights of “King
of Comedy” and “The New King of Comedy” and provision of
project planning and promotion services. Based on that
agreement, the Stand-Up Season 1 was launched during the
Year and the total service fee, net of corporate income tax and
value added tax, based on that agreement is RMB5.7 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$6.2 million). The full amount of
the service fee was recognised and received during the Year.

The aforesaid intellectual property rights of “King of Comedy”
and “The New King of Comedy” held by the Group were licensed
from The Star Overseas Limited, which is wholly owned by an
executive director of the Company — Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly.
The corresponding royalty payable to The Star Overseas Limited
of HK$1.3 million was paid and net off against the revenue
during the Year.

Strategic Cooperation with Beijing iQIYl and Zhouling Culture &
Media

On 22 April 2024, a memorandum of understanding (‘MOU")
entered into among the Company, Beijing iQIYl and Zhouling
Culture & Media (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. & X/LEE ( £F) SR
‘A 78] ("Zhouling Culture & Media”) (collectively, the “Strategic
Business Partners”), in relation to the potential strategic
cooperation in co-producing a movie production or sequel of the
original classic movie or new script, anime, TV series, reality TV
shows and musical theatre (“Prospective Production”), among
which (a) Beijing iQIY! will take up the role of the distribution and
financing; (b) the Company is responsible for the provision of
the intellectual property (“Prescribed IPs”) and the engagement
of Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi (a.k.a Mr. Stephen Chow]) to participate
in the original story, or to direct, or act as the executive
producer; and (c) Zhouling Culture & Media holds the position
of production, fund raising and coordination (“Strategic
Cooperation”).
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESXRBOR

Pursuant to the MOU, on 31 August 2024, a strategic
cooperation framework agreement (“Strategic Cooperation

Framework Agreement’) was entered into among the Strategic

Business Partners to stipulate the Strategic Cooperation, which
shall be effective from 31 August 2024 to 31 July 2029
(“Cooperation Period”).

The material terms of the Strategic Cooperation Framework

Agreement are set out below:

U}

(ii]

Prescribed IPs under Strategic Cooperation

Within the three (3) months after the date of the Strategic
Cooperation Framework Agreement, Beijing iQlY! is eligible
to select no more than four (4) Prescribed IPs to conduct
multiple types of development and production for the
purpose of Strategic Cooperation from the list of
intellectual property (IP) which the Company is able to
provide.

Further, Beijing iQlY| shall enjoy the exclusive cooperation
rights for such Prescribed IPs during the Cooperation
Period. In the event that Beijing iQlYI did not complete its
selection of no more than four (4) Prescribed IPs within
three (3) months after the date of the Strategic
Cooperation Framework Agreement, the Company is
eligible to negotiate business cooperation on the IPs that
were not selected with other business partners.

Projects under Strategic Cooperation

A definitive agreement will be signed for every project
(“Definitive Project’) which arises from the Prescribed IPs
or any other exclusive project cooperation (“Original
Project”) during the Cooperation Period with Beijing iQlYI
upon confirmed by the Company and Mr. Stephen Chow.
Such definitive agreement shall include but not limited to
the clauses regarding the type of project production,
mode of cooperation, distribution of proceeds from the
cooperation, amount of investment and payment terms,
scope and term of IP authorisation, attribution of
intellectual property rights, and arrangements for voting
on major matters of cooperation.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
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(iii)

During the Cooperation Period, the Strategic Cooperation
regarding the Prescribed IPs and Definitive Projects shall
be exclusive. Once an agreement among Beijing iAlYI, the
Company and Zhouling Culture & Media has been reached
for a definitive project and the first installment of the
investment in such definitive project has been settled, the
Strategic Cooperation under the corresponding Prescribed
IP will be extended to 31 July 2032.

Prior to 31 July 2025, the Strategic Business Partners
are required to complete at least one (1) Definitive
Project’s pre-production, including script development,
budget and production plans, styling and props
preparation, casting of actors/actresses, site
investigation, set production, equipment procurement,
technology acquisition and other pre-production work as
and when necessary. Should there be any schedule
adjustments, preliminary discussions shall be held among
the Strategic Business Partners first. The final timing shall
be determined through the Strategic Business Partners’
consultation and prevail accordingly.

Right of First Offer

During the three (3) years after the end of the
Cooperation Period, (i.e. from 1 August 2029 to 1 August
2032), if the Company and Mr. Stephen Chow or its
associates establish any development plans on the
Prescribed IPs or the Original Projects, they shall first
notify Beijing iQlYl to seek whether Beijing iQlYl has any
intention of cooperation. If Beijing iQlYl did not provide its
response within fifteen (15) days after the receipt of the
foregoing notice, the Company, Mr. Stephen Chow or its
associates may cooperate with a third party.

(iii)
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESXRBOR

(iv] Mode of Cooperation and Budget for the Prospective

Production

The Strategic Cooperation is expected to conduct in any of
the following two modes:

(a) the Prescribed IPs, the ones which were directed or
produced by Mr. Stephen Chow, no more than four
(4) of which would be selected by Beijing iQIYI before
adapting into one of the Prospective Production; or

(b) the original projects owned by the Company to be
adapted and produced as one of the Prospective
Production.

A cumulative target production budget of the Prospective
Production over the Cooperation Period as stipulated
under the Strategic Cooperation Framework Agreement
has no material difference from the disclosure under the
announcement of the Company dated 22 April 2024.

The definitive projects will be conducted in any of the
following forms:

(a) movie definitive project, which is the production or
sequels of original classic movies or new scripts,
with an average length of the episode of no less than
90 minutes (excluding the prologue, epilogue and
advertisements); or

(b) TV series definitive project, which shall comprise no
less than 20 episodes, with an average length of the
episode of no less than 20 minutes and 1 second
(excluding the prologue, epilogue and advertisements);
or

(c) any mutually agreed method of content creation
between the parties.

The material terms of the Strategic Cooperation
Framework Agreement are set out as per the Company’s
announcement dated on 31 August 2024. During the
Year, RMB50 million (equivalent to HK$54.2 million) was
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

received by the Group from Beijing iQIY| in September
2024, and is currently recognized as other payables and
accruals as at 31 March 2025. It is expected as the
Definitive Project(s) with Beijing iQIYl will materialize prior
to 31 July 2025, and part of the other payables and
accruals will be recognized as revenue.

New Media Business — Multi-Channel Network (“MCN”)

In December 2024, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary
which is contractually owned by the Company through VIE
arrangement, Bingo Xingchen Cultural Media (Shenzhen)
Company Limited (k& E RXEERE ORI BR QA
("Xingchen”), established a joint venture, Shenzhen Xingfeng
Culture Media Company Limited (F3IIT £ % XL EE B R A F])
("Xingfeng”), with Shenzhen Xinfeng Cultural and Creative
Development Company Limited (% 3l % A2 R G R A 7))
(“Xinfeng”). The Group holds 51% equity in Xingfeng. Xingfeng
engages in talent incubation, we-media account management
and operation, new media promotion, and content creation. As
a fast growing MCN company in China, Xinfeng enjoys strong
market reputation and industry influence, and its extensive
experience will contribute to the joint venture’'s development. In
February 2025, Xingfeng signed a framework agreement for
promotion services with Xinfeng to leverage its premium sales
resources for client acquisition. During the Year, revenue of
approximately RMBO0O.85 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$0.93 million) was generated from Xingfeng.

New Media Business — Marketing Services

In December 2024, Xingchen formed a joint venture, Zhuhai
Bingo Xingyu Network Technology Company Limited ( 258t = 12
1RSI AR A E) ("Xingyu™), with an independent third party.
The Group's holds 51% equity in Xingyu. Xingyu and its
subsidiaries (“Xingyu Group”) primarily operate in internet
information services and marketing planning. This partnership
will not only enhance the joint venture’s revenue but also
strengthen the Group’s expertise and resources in new media
marketing, creating synergies with other businesses to provide
more diversified services to clients. During the Year, revenue of
approximately RMB2.98 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$3.27 million) was generated from Xingyu Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded a total turnover of
approximately HK$12.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$4.3 million compared with that of
approximately HK$7.8 million in the Last Year. The turnover of
the Group for the Last Year principally represented revenue
from Cinema Business. In addition to the Cinema Business and
sales of movie-themed Tourbillon watches, the businesses of
new media exploitations, which were launched in the Year,
contributed the increase in the revenue. Loss for the Year of
approximately HK$23.3 million was recorded. As compared
with the loss of HK$12.1 million for the Last Year, the loss
increased by approximately HK$11.2 million. The increase in
loss for the Year is principally due to the increase in
administrative expenses from approximately HK$13.2 million in
the Last Year to approximately HK$20.2 million during the
Year. The administrative expenses increment is mainly related
to business development expenses and staff costs. Non-cash
related share-based payment resulted from the grant of share
options of HK$4.6 million led to the increase in the loss for the
Year, too.

LIQUIDITY, DEBT RATIO, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$53.4 million (2024: HK$14.9 million),
including cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$40.2
million (2024: HK$13.6 million). There was no pledged bank
deposit as at 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil). As at 31 March
2025, the debt ratio (defined as total liabilities/total assets)
was approximately 1.59 (2024: 1.93).
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The Group held cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$40.2 million as at 31 March 2025. Even though the debt
ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2025 is over 1, the
Company believes that it can cover the full amount of its
current liabilities of approximately HK$84.6 million as at 31
March 2025, as the other payables and accruals of
approximately HK$57.7 million included the initial production
cost of approximately HK$54.2 million, which will be recognised
as the Group’s revenue when the relevant projects are
completed. Accordingly, the Board considers that the Group
has sufficient resources to satisfy its working capital
requirements. During the Year, the Group financed its
operations principally with its own working capital. As at 31
March 2025, the Group did not have any bank overdraft
(2024: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies during the year ended 31 March
2025.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had 102 (2024 28) staff in
the PRC and Hong Kong. Total staff costs including directors’
remuneration were approximately HK$10.0 million during the
Year (2024: HK$6.4 million).

Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms
and the performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. Year-end bonus based on individual performance will
be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contributions. Other benefits include contributions to statutory
mandatory provident fund scheme to its employees. During the
Year, the Company granted share options to the Group’s
directors or employees. Total increase of staff costs for the
Year by approximately HK$3.6 million is due to the increase in
the headcounts for development of new businesses and the
recognition of the expense incurred for the grant of share
options. The number of staff increased from 28 staff as at 31
March 2024 to 102 staff as at 31 March 2025.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The information of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is
as follows:

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a defined
contribution pension scheme centrally operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain proportion of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The only obligation of the Company with
respect to the central pension scheme is to make the required
contributions. No forfeited contribution under the central
pension scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable
in future years. The contributions are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under the
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance (“MPF scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong,
which is defined contribution retirement scheme. The
contributions to the MPF scheme are based on minimum
statutory contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregate income and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
scheme. No forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is
available to reduce the contribution payable in future years. The
assets of this pension scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in independently administered funds.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s exposures to foreign currencies mainly arises from
receivables from PRC customers and its investment in foreign
subsidiaries which are financed internally in RMB, and payables
to PRC suppliers. In order to mitigate the potential impact of
currency fluctuations, the Group closely monitors its foreign
currency exposures and will use suitable hedging instruments
against significant foreign currency exposures, where
necessary. No foreign currency hedge contract was entered
into by the Group during the Year. As at 31 March 2025, the
Group had no outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts
(2024: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2024 Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no material capital commitments as
at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

OUTLOOK

Cinema Business

As mentioned in the section of “FINANCIAL REVIEW” above, the
suspension of Group’s cinema in Hangzhou for repairment
works for nearly 1.5 months caused the decrease in revenue of
the Cinema Business during the Year. The Company is now in
the course of conducting feasibility study internally on the box
offices in various cities and the respective consumers footprint
in order to locate suitable premises with abundant customer
flow to open a new cinema. The current plan of the Company is
to open one new cinema first.
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Apart from opening a new cinema, acquisition of existing
cinemas and cooperating with other cinema lines and/or
property developers by means of joint venture are also being
considered.

In light of the economic growth in the Mainland China not in line
with our expectation before, and the change in mode of
distribution and playing of the films and dramas, we would take
a more prudent approach in our cinema business. At the same
time, we are of the view that the overall cinema business in
China has deteriorated substantially, and we are closely
monitoring this business segment.

Filmed Entertainment, New Media Exploitations and
Licensing Businesses

During the Year, the Group made more effort on the
development on new media exploitations and licensing business
through granting of IP licences for the creation of new media
contents and various online platform, which is a natural
expansion relying on the film making and IP licensing experience
and calibre of the Group.

The Company is of the view that in light of the agreement
signed with Beijing iQIYl and Zhouling Culture and Media on 31
August 2024 and other ongoing business development
activities, this business segment will see a substantial growth in
the financial year 2025/2026 and throughout the contract
period, which runs till at least 31 August 2029. The cash
payment received from Beijing iQlY| has already substantially
improved the operating cashflow of the Company, and would
allow the Company to invest into high quality filmed
entertainment and new media content in future.
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Movie-themed Tourbillon Watches

In October 2022, High Art Limited (“High Art”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a joint venture agreement
with Memorigin Watch Company Limited (“Memorigin”) and
Topping Mark Limited (“Topping Mark”) in relation to the
formation of a joint venture company with an aggregate share
capital of HK$2,000,000. Memorigin is an independent third
party to the Group and the first Hong Kong brand which only
produces tourbillon. Topping Mark is wholly owned by Ms.
CHOW Man Ki Kelly, an executive director of the Company. The
Company has been exploring business opportunities leveraging
on its movie production, licensing and derivatives, crossover
marketing in the past years and considered that such business
experience and the IPs of the films would be valuable resources
in developing various new business areas which will potentially
enhance returns for the Shareholders. The joint venture was
established in February 2023 and is called Bingo Group —
Memorigin (BGM) Limited ("BGM"). The equity interest of BGM
is owned as to 60%, 20% and 20% by High Art, Memorigin
and Topping Mark, respectively. BGM sells movie-themed
tourbillon watches through physical store and e-commerce.
Memorigin is responsible for all the manufacturing processes
and the Group provides the relevant IP that will be used as the
themed tourbillon watches. Mr. SHUM Wai Lam William, one of
the directors of BGM and Memorigin who has over 15 years of
experience in the watch industry, are in charge of overseeing
the design, manufacturing process and sales of the
movie-themed tourbillon watches.

BGM has launched its first series of movie-themed tourbillon
watches in around April 2023. Up to the end of this financial
period, aggregate revenue of approximately HK$2.34 million
was generated from the sale of “The Mermaid” and “King of
Comedy” movie-themed tourbillon watches.

Overall IP Licensing

The Company is currently licensed with the IPs of (ZE A )
("Mermaid”), “CJ7", “King of Comedy” and “The New King of
Comedy” by the IP Rights Owner (or its nominee) and sub-
licensed to the JVs on case-by-case basis.
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For “Mermaid”, as mentioned in the section “Movie-themed
Tourbillon Watches” above, the Group has been licensed by the
licensor and has licensed to BGM solely for tourbillon.

The IP business holds multiple commercialization opportunities,
including merchandising, gamification, comics/animation
production, and secondary content licensing. The Company
plans to license IP usage/production rights to third parties or
establish joint ventures (JVs) and cross-branding partnerships
with renowned brands across Greater China and overseas
markets. Through these collaborations, it aims to diversify the
IP’s presentation formats, expand its audience reach, elevate
commercial value, and unlock new revenue streams.

Licensing of Intellectual Property Rights of “King of Comedy”
and “The New King of Comedy” and Provision of Project
Planning and Promation Services

With the successful licensing of “King of Comedy” and “The New
King of Comedy” to Beijing iQlYl, the Company anticipates
enhanced audience reception and broader audience reach for
The Stand-Up Season 2, utilizing these licensed IPs. \We expect
that, in the foreseeable future, beyond generating revenue, the
program’s high exposure will significantly boost the value of the
Company’s IP resources.

Project Management Service to Jumoon

The Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, High Art, entered into a
project management service agreement with Jumoon Group
("Jumoon”) on 4 October 2024, and signed a supplementary
agreement on 5 March 2025, to provide project management,
copyright management, and communication coordination
services etc. The agreement was approved at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 6 June 2025 subsequently. The Group
looks forward to maintaining close cooperation with Jumoon
and delivering more value-added services. Further details of this
continuing connected transaction will be disclosed in due
course.
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New Media Business — MCN

The Group expects Xingfeng to sign more high-quality artists
and influencers, operate more we-media accounts with
substantial fan bases, thereby creating greater commercial
value and attracting more advertising clients, while generating
synergies with the Group’s other businesses.

New Media Business — Marketing

Amid growing demand for internet traffic, the Group anticipates
that Xingyu Group will secure more business opportunities in
the coming year through its operational expertise and quality
services. By leveraging the Group’s internal resources, Xingyu
will further expand its new media marketing business and
continuously broaden its client base.

AIGC Gaming Investment

In May 2025, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Huichi
(Shanghai) Consultancy Limited (#£5t (_ )& ) I & RER A A]),
completed an investment agreement in Hangzhou Jiyi Artificial
Intelligence Technology Company Limited (#7714 3% A T %5 g8 ff
FAERZAR) ("Jiyi"), which owns the AIGC large model “Xingyi”
initially developed with support from Kingnet Network Company
Limited (SZSE: 002517). The Group owns 12% equity interest
in Jiyi. We consider AIGC as one of the most promising
technologies, with enormous potential in the gaming sector.
This investment will facilitate the Group’s deeper understanding
of the AIGC gaming industry while enhancing the value of its IP
resources.
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IP Consultancy

Bingo Success Limited (“Bingo SS”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a consultancy service agreement
(“Sinohope Agreement”) with Sinohope Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Sinohope”, formerly known as “New Huo
Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Sinohope Technology Holdings Limited (formerly
“New Huo Technology Holdings Limited”, stock code: 1611.HK)],
on 18 July 2023. Pursuant to which Bingo SS is engaged as
an consultant to provide certain intellectual properties technical
consultancy services to Sinohope, which in turn will act as the
investment manager of a future investment fund which is in the

course of formation (the “Investment Fund”).

New media exploitations and licensing has been one of the
business segments of the Company, and leveraging on the
filmed entertainment, new media exploitations and intellectual
property licensing and product development experiences and
expertise of the Group, Bingo SS will assist the fund to identify
commercially viable content based Intellectual Property projects
for Sinohope which in turn will advise the Investment Fund to
invest in, as well as serve as an entertainment industry expert.
In return for its service, Bingo SS will be entitled to a service
fee from Sinohope in accordance with the terms of the
Agreement. The Board considers that the engagement
represents an opportunity to develop additional revenue
streams and enhance the development of the Company into an
integrated entertainment company which will potentially
maximize the returns for the shareholders of the Company.

Although Sinohope Agreement has been terminated in January
2024, Bingo SS has liaise with Sinohope to extend Sinochope
Agreement. Bingo SS has entered into a new technical
consultancy agreement (“New Sinohope Agreement”) with
Sinohope in July 2024. The major terms of New Sinchope
Agreement are same as those of Sinohope Agreement. During
the Period, the Investment Fund was in the course of formation
and no service was performed by Bingo SS and no revenue was
generated accordingly.
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The Board believes that the Group’s existing businesses can
create a synergistic effect with the above-mentioned new
businesses and will benefit the Group in the future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, investors
and business partners for their continued support and
confidence in the Group. | would also like to thank my fellow
Directors and senior management team who have offered
invaluable advice and leadership during such a challenging year
and the management team and all staff for their dedication,
loyalty and valued services.

For and on behalf of the Board

CHOW Man Ki Kelly
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 27 June 2025
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi (“Mr. Chiau”) — Mr. Chiau has over 30
years of performance and management experience in the movie
industry. Mr. Chiau has been a leading icon of the movie and
entertainment industry in the Greater China Region for over 30
years, and had received numerous awards in the industry,
including best supporting actor, best actor and best director
awards presented by leading film academies. Mr. Chiau joined
the Group in June 2010.

Mr. Chiau is a brother of Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly (“Ms. Kelly Chow”) — Ms. Kelly
Chow was appointed as an executive Director in January 2014.
Ms. Kelly Chow has over 20 years’ ample experience in movie
production and distribution as well as licensing businesses. She
is currently directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Chow is a sister of Mr. Chiau, an executive Director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company. In addition to the
Company, Ms. Kelly Chow is working with Mr. YIP Yiu Bong and
Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice, both being executive Directors, in
The Star Overseas Limited (“TSOL"). Mr. YIP Yiu Bong is
currently the Head of Legal and Compliance of TSOL, the
controlling shareholder of which is Ms. Kelly Chow. Ms. CHOW
Nga Chee Alice is currently a producer of TSOL.

Mr. LAU Man Kit (“Mr. Lau”) — Mr. Lau joined the Group in
January 2014. Mr. Lau has over 40 years of extensive sales
and marketing experience in various industries, including
property management, computer technology systems and
automabiles, and has a wide business network in China. Mr. Lau
is currently directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice (“Ms. Alice Chow”) — Ms. Alice
Chow is currently the Manager — Marketing, Public Relations &
Content Management of the Group, directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company and a producer of TSOL. She holds
the degrees of Master of Arts in Communication of Hong Kong
Baptist University, Master of Corporate Governance of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and Master of Visual Arts of Hong
Kong Baptist University. Ms. Alice Chow has over 20 years of
experience in the industry of movie production.
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Mr. YIP Yiu Bong — Mr. Yip, holds Master’s degree of Laws in
Chinese and Comparative Laws, City University of Hong Kong,
Master's degree in Professional Accounting, Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and Bachelor’s degree of Business
Administration (Hons) and Master’'s degree of Science in
Corporate Governance and Compliance, Hong Kong Baptist
University. Mr. Yip is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered
Governance Professional and an Associate of both The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom and a Certified
Practicing Accountant of CPA Australia. He is currently the
Head of Legal and Compliance of The Star Overseas Limited,
the controlling shareholder of which is Ms. Kelly Chow and she
is an executive director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Yip has over 18 years of experience in legal and
compliance departments of various companies and legal firms.
He joined the Group as a non-executive Director in June 2020
and re-designated as an executive Director in March 2021.

Ms. Tsang Fung Chu — Ms. Tsang is a certified public
accountant (practising) in Hong Kong and a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. She holds a
Bachelor Degree of Social Sciences from The University of
Hong Kong and has broad experience in the finance and
accounting field. She has been in the accounting profession for
over 30 years and started her career in the audit division at an
international auditing and accounting firm. She also served as a
member of the All China Youth Federation and Beijing Youth
Federation, the People’s Republic of China. In addition, Ms.
Tsang has been appointed various public offices in the Hong
Kong SAR Government. She is currently Chairman on Sheung
Wan & Sai Ying Pun Area Committee and a member of the
Board of Management of the Chinese Permanent Cemeteries
and Vice Chairman of External Affairs Committee. She was also
a Group Chairman on Advisory Committee Admission of Quality
Migrants and Professionals, a member of Central and Western
District Fight Crime Committee and a member of Chung Wan &
Mid Levels Area Committee, a member of the Panel of Advisors
on Building Management Disputes of the Home Affairs
Department, Observers on Independent Police Complaints
Council, etc. She is a member of the Sixth Election Committee
of the HKSAR and was appointed as Justice of the Peace (JP)
on 1 July 2021. Ms. Tsang has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Novautek Technologies
Group Limited (stock code: 519), the shares of which are listed
on Main Board of the Stock Exchange, on 30 December 2024.
She joined the Group as an executive Director in July 2024.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. CHOI Mei Ping (“Ms. Choi”) — Ms. Choi has over 20
years’ ample marketing experience in the airline industry. She is
currently working in an international airline company. She has
joined the Group as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2014.

Mr. TSUI Wing Tak (“Mr. Tsui”) — Mr. Tsui is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia. Mr. Tsui
holds a bachelor’'s degree in Economics from Macquarie
University in Australia. He has over 30 years of extensive
experience in corporate finance and accounting. Mr. Tsui has
been appointed as an executive director of KNT Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1025) on 18 November 2024. He has
also appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Huakang Biomedical Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
8622) on 22 January 2025. Mr. Tsui has been an executive
director of CBK Holdings Limited (stock code: 8428) during the
period from December 2020 to September 2024. The shares
of these three companies are listed either on Main Board or
GEM of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group as an
independent non-executive Director in August 2020.

Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching (“Ms. Chan”) — Ms. Chan is currently
a manager of a corporate secretarial services company in
Hong Kong and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Chan holds a degree in
Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting & Accounting Technology)
from Curtin University of Technology. She has over 10 years'
accounting and company secretarial experience in listed
companies in Hong Kong. She joined the Group as an
independent non-executive Director in July 2022.
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OVERVIEW

The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report in this annual report for the
year ended 31 March 2025 (the “Year”). The Company is
concerned to have high standards of corporate governance. It
is important because the Board believes that good quality
corporate governance would assist the management to monitor
the Company’s business activities effectively and thus interests
of the shareholders of the Company will be well protected.

The Company has applied the principles in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) and Corporate Governance
Report contained in Appendix C1 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company is in compliance with the mandatory Code provisions,
save for the deviations stated on pages 28 to 31 below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the Year. The
Company has also made specific enquiry to all Directors and,
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
required standard of dealing and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
Board of Directors

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company’'s business and affairs. The ultimate
responsibility for the day to day management, administration
and operation of the Company is delegated to the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company. In
practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision making in
all major matters of the Company. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the Group and the Board has the full support of them to
discharge its responsibilities.
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Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report
are set out in the section of Directors and Senior Management
of this annual report. Given the composition of the Board and the
skills, knowledge and expertise of the Directors, the Board
believes that it is appropriately structured to provide sufficient
checks and balances to protect the interests of the Group and
the shareholders. The Board will review its composition regularly
to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of expertise, skills
and experience to continue to effectively oversee the business of
the Company.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee with the reference to their respective duties and
responsibility with the Company, the Company’s performance
and current market situation. Details of emoluments of the
Directors for the Year are disclosed in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine
Directors, including six executive Directors, namely Mr. CHIAU
Sing Chi, Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly, Mr. LAU Man Kit, Ms.
CHOW Nga Chee Alice, Mr. YIP Yiu Bong and Ms. TSANG Fung
Chu; and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Ms. CHOI Mei Ping, Mr. TSUI Wing Tak and Ms. CHAN Yuet
Ching. Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi and Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly are
siblings. Mr. YIP Yiu Bong is currently the Head of Legal and
Compliance of The Star Overseas Limited (“TSOL"), the
controlling shareholder of which is Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly and
she is an executive director and a substantial shareholder of
the Company. Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice is currently a
producer of TSOL. Save as disclosed, the Board members have
no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s) with each other.
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Independent non-executive Directors have confirmed in writing
their independence from the Company in accordance with the
guidelines on director independence of the GEM Listing Rules.
On this basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Company Secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of the
same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend
external forum or training courses on relevant topics which may
count towards Continuous Professional Development training.

Pursuant to the principle of Code C.1, Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the Year, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities either by
attending training courses or by reading materials relevant to
the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
taken against Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.
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The number of Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and
General Meetings attended by each Director during the Year
under review is set out in the following table. Figure in brackets
indicates maximum number of meetings in the period in which
the individual was a Board Member or Committee Member (as
the case may be).

RACBEFERN SEFHFEETEEH %8
SEANBRREZRBER TR -ERAZHK
FHREMALRESFERELZBEGKE (RT
BRmE) MEAMBETZREEHREK-

Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
3] EZSe8 BNZESSE FHZESSE REZE9ER BRRAE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi AEREE 3/(12) N/A TiEF N/A TiEf N/A TiEF 0/(1)
Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly FXER T 12/(12) N/A TiEF 2/(2) N/A T 1/01)
Mr. LAU Man Kit Bt 12/(12) N/A T iEF N/A TEH N/A i 1/01)
Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice Ehiece 10/(12) N/A i@ N/A T A N/A i@ o/
Mr. YIP Yiu Bong ERALE 12/(12) N/A TiEA N/A T8 F N/A TiE 1/(1)
Ms. TSANG Fung Chu BE KLt 11/(11) N/A T i N/A i N/A T i 1/(1)
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Ms. CHOI Mei Ping e 10/(12) 2/(2) 2/(2) /(1) 1/01)
Mr. TSUI Wing Tak fRkfEEAE 12/(12) 2/(2) 2/(2) /(1) 1/
Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching R+ 12/(12) 2/(2) 2/(2) 1/ 1/01)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company does not have the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer during the year ended 31 March 2025.
The Board is in the process of locating appropriate persons to
fill the vacancies of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
Even so, the Board considers that the existing Board members
are able to share the power and responsibilities of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer among themselves, as detailed
below.

Based on Code C.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing. The Board's current significant decisions are made in
Board meetings. Every Board member has the rights and
responsibility to propose Board meetings to discuss significant
issues he/she concerns, and has the power to make the
decisions among other Board members.
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With reference to Code C.2.2, in each Board meeting, the
director who proposes that meeting (the “Convenor”) would
generally be appointed as the chairman of the meeting in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
and he/she has to ensure all directors briefed on issues arising
at board meeting.

With reference to Code C.2.3, the Convenor has to provide the
meeting agenda and materials (the “Board Papers”) to the
company secretary, and the company secretary will then pass
the Board Papers to other Board members for their review.
Unless urgent matters to be discussed, it is the Board’s
practice that the Board Papers have to be given to the Board
at least 3 days in advance of the Board meetings. Other Board
members should have enough time to read the Board Papers
and raise questions and/or request more information before
holding the Board meetings. For the urgent Board meetings,
the Convenor and/or company secretary have to contact
individual Director about the details of the agenda meeting and
the reasons of urgency. Every Board member has the right to
request additional time to understand the agenda details and
delay the Board meeting.

With reference to Code C.2.4, the executive Directors jointly
provide leadership of the Board, and ensure the Board works
effectively and perform its responsibilities, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner. As
mentioned above, all Directors have the rights to propose
Board meetings. The company secretary has to summarise all
agenda items and circulate the agenda to all Board members.

With reference to Code C.2.5, the Board members share the
responsibility to ensure good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established. It is the practice of the Board
to discuss corporate governance issues in the meetings to
approve the interim and annual results.
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With reference to Code C.2.6, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of encouraging all directors to make a full and
active contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead to
ensure that it acts in the best interest of the Company. The
Convenor has the responsibility to encourage other Directors
with different views to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time
for discussion of issues and ensure the Board decisions fairly
reflected Board consensus.

With reference to Code C.2.7, the independent non-executive
Directors hold at least a meeting among themselves annually,
to consider and discuss any significant issues of the Company
and the Board, without influence from the executive Directors.

With reference to Code C.2.8, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of ensuring that appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication with shareholders and that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whole. It is a
general practice that the executive Directors will discuss the
shareholder’s viewpoints with non-executive Directors in the
Board meeting following a shareholders’ meeting.

With reference to Code C.2.9, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of promoting a culture of openness and
debate by facilitating the effective contribution of non-executive
Directors in particular and ensuring constructive relations
between executive and non-executive Directors. As mentioned
above, all directors, including non-executive Directors, have the
right to propose a board meeting to discuss the issues they
consider important, and enough time is reserved for all
Directors to read the Board Papers and raise questions. It is
the Board's practice to encourage the non-executive Directors
to raise their viewpoints in Board meetings.
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With reference to Code E.1.1, the remuneration committee of
the Board would consult Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly, an executive
Director and the major shareholder of the Company about their
remuneration proposals for other executive Directors.

With reference to Code F.2.2, the Board appoints as least one
executive Director to attend the annual general meeting, due to
the chairmanship vacancy. The executive Directors have to
invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees of the Board to attend the annual general meeting.

With reference to Code C.B.3, it is the Company’s practice that
the company secretary report to the executive Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’'s corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference
adopted by the Board, which include (a) to develop and review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations; (b) to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e)
to review the Company’'s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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The Board had reviewed and discussed the corporate
governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of its corporate governance policy.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the independent auditor’s report
attached to the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2024 set out in this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Ka Yin ("Mr. Chan”), who is a director of an external
service provider, was appointed as the company secretary in
November 2013. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He reports to the executive
Directors of the Company and assists the Board in functioning
effectively and efficiently. During the Year, Mr. Chan undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update his skill and
knowledge.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference. During the Year, the Remuneration Committee
comprises all independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
CHOI Mei Ping (Chairman), Mr. TSUI Wing Tak, Ms. CHAN Yuet
Ching and one executive Director, Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include (a)
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (b)
to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and (c) to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of executive Directors, non-executive
Directors, and senior management, and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate.

The primary goal of the remuneration on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Group to motivate
executive Directors and senior management by linking their
remuneration with reference to the Group’s operation results,
which reference to individual performances and comparable
market statistics.

The principal elements of the Group’s executive remuneration
package include basic salary, discretionary bonus, and share
options.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
("Nomination Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprises all
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. CHOI Mei
Ping (Chairman), Mr. TSUI Wing Tak and Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching.

The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on selection of individual nominated for directorships;
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for
directors; and determining the policy for nomination of
Directors. The Nomination Committee has specific written
terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those stipulated in Code provisions.

Procedure and Process for Nomination of Directors

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for
the appointment of Director(s) including independent non-
executive Director(s) in accordance with the following
procedures and process:

i. The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration
to the current composition and size of the Board, develop
a list of desirable skills, perspectives and experience at
the outset to focus the search effort;
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The Nomination Committee may consult any source it

considers appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable

candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,

advertising, recommendations from a third party agency
firm and proposals from the Shareholders with due
consideration given to the criteria which include but are

not limited to:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(el

(f)

(g)

Diversity in the aspects, amongst others, of gender,
age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length

of service;

Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in
respect of available time and relevant interest;

Qualifications, including accomplishment and

experience in the relevant industries in which the
Group’s business is involved:;
Independence;

Reputation for integrity;

Potential contributions that the individual can bring to
the Board; and

Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the
Board.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it

considers appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the

candidates, such as interviews, background checks,

presentations and third party reference checks;
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Vi

Vii.

viii.

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad range of
candidates who are in and outside of the Board's circle of
contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by
way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant
information of the selected candidate to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration of the remuneration package
of such selected candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment, and the Remuneration Committee will make
the recommendation to the Board on the policy and
structure for the remuneration;

The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board who are not
members of the Nomination Committee and the Board will
thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment as the
case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing
of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director
(or any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director
to acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as
the case may be) to be filed with the relevant regulatory
authorities, if required.
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Board Diversity

To improve the performance of the Company, the Board has
adopted policies on board diversity. The Board believes that
board diversity can be achieved by taking into account various
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, race, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, term of services and other talents. All the
appointments have been made based on the Company's
business models and specific needs from time to time, and
candidates have been assessed with due regard for the benefits
of diversity of the Board on objective business conditions. The
Nomination Committee will be mainly responsible for identifying
suitable and competent candidates for Board members and
assessing such candidates in light of objective conditions. As a
part of the annual performance review for the efficiency of the
Board, considerations of the Nomination Committee will be
balanced between skills and experience as required for
accomplishing the business targets of the Company and
diversity factors. To achieve board diversity, the Nomination
Committee will discuss and develop measurable objectives from
time to time, and propose the same to the Board for adoption
and implementation. Generally speaking, the selection of
candidates by the Nomination Committee shall be based on a
range of diverse perspectives including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, race,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and term of services.
However, the final decision will depend on the strengths of the
candidates and their prospective contributions to the Board.
The Board may improve one or more diversified perspectives
from time to time, and measure the progress on such basis.
The Nomination Committee will review the policy from time to
time, including conducting assessments on the effectiveness of
the policy. The Nomination Committee will also discuss any
amendment that may be necessary, and submit amendment
proposals to the Board for approval.

Please refer to the disclosure in page 82 of this annual report
for the gender ratio of the Company’'s employees as at 31
March 2025.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
annual report and accounts, interim report and quarterly
reports and to provide advices and comments thereon to the
Board. The Audit Committee will also be responsible for
reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting,

risk management and internal control systems.

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprises all independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. TSUI Wing Tak (Chairman),
Ms. CHOI Mei Ping and Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching. In the meetings
held during the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the annual,
interim and quarterly results of the Company and made
recommendations to the Board and the management in respect
of the Company’s financial reporting, risk management and
internal control system.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 March 2025, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor on financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report attached to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2025.
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The Board has regularly reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems with
an aim to safeguard the shareholders’ interests and the
Company's assets. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements,
errors, losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in achieving the Company’s business objectives.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2025, fee for the Company’s
external auditor for audit services was HK$900,000 and no
non-audit service was performed.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 94 to 100.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective risk management functions are maintained, while
management is required to provide responsive actions to
manage risk. A sound and effective risk management is
designed to identify and manage the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

Risk Management Framework

We adopt an integrated bottom-up and top-down risk review
process to enable comprehensive identification and prioritization
of all material risks throughout the Group, escalation of material
risks at the right managerial level, effective risk dialogue among
the management, and proper oversight of risk mitigation
efforts.
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Internal Controls Model and Continuous Improvement

Our internal controls model is based on that set down by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the U.S. Treadway
Commission (“COS0”) for internal controls and has five
components, namely Control Environment; Risk Assessment;
Control Activities; Information and Communication; and
Monitoring. In developing our internal controls model based on
the COSO principles, we have taken into consideration our
organizational structure and the nature of our business
activities.

We have put in place a phased improvement plan and
progressed to future enhance our internal controls and risk
management system. The initial phase of the plan focused on
adopting a more risk-based (instead of process-based) approach
to risk identification and assessment. This approach enriches
our ability to analyze risks and respond to opportunities as we
pursue our strategic objectives. Management reporting to the
Audit Committee has also been enhanced, including the
presentation of special reports on selected risk topics.

In the current place, we aim to further integrate internal
controls and risk management into our business processes,
including in annual budgeting and planning. Instead of treating
the COSO framework as a framework-update exercise, a holistic
approach has been adopted by us, taking into consideration the
Company’'s circumstances, including its ongoing internal
controls and risk management improvement plan as well as
other strategic initiatives (e.g. corporate social responsibility
strategy and reporting). All of these enhance our ultimate
objective to make our risk management system a “live” one that
is practiced on a day-to-day basis by operating units.
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Review of Risk Management & Internal Controls
Effectiveness

In respect of the Year, the Company has engaged independent
professional advisors (the “Advisors”) to carry out the internal
audit functions by performing independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of certain subsidiary’'s risk
management and internal control systems. The Advisors have
conducted an annual review (the “Annual Review”) of and made
recommendations to improve the effectiveness of certain
subsidiary’s risk management and internal control systems.
Based on the Annual Review the Board considered the risk
management and internal controls system effective and
adequate. No significant areas of concern that may affect the
financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk
management functions of the Group has been identified. During
the review, the Board also considered the resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Group’'s accounting
and financial reporting functions, and their training and budget
were adequate.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has put in place a policy on handling and
dissemination of inside information which sets out the
procedures and internal controls for handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner in such a way to avoid
placing any person in a privileged dealing position. The inside
information policy also provides guidelines to employees of the
Group to ensure proper safeguards exists to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory and listing rule
disclosure requirements. The Company has appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential
inside information. Dissemination of inside information of the
Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant
information on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year.
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“Top-down”
Overseeing,
identification,
assessment and
mitigation of risk
at corporate level
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The Board EE &
Has overall responsibility for the Group's risk management system and internal controls systems;
BREEAEEARERSIERAMEZHE:
Sets strategic objectives;
I 5E KA B AR -
Review the effectiveness of our risk management systems and internal control systems;
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Monitors the nature and extent of risk exposure for our major risks; and
ERTZARIMERAAZAREE: &
Provides direction on the importance of risk management culture.
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Management & &
Design, implements, and monitors risk management and internal controls systems; and
Rit BHERERBERERERAPEZHE: R
Assesses our risk and mitigating measures Company-wide.
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Audit Committee BEZZEE
Supports the Board in monitoring risk exposure, design and operating
effectiveness of the underlying risk management and internal controls systems.
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Operational Level & & E &
Risk identification, assessment and mitigation performed across the business; and
HEBHE  ELRERR: &
Risk management process and internal controls practiced across business
operations and functional areas.
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‘Bottom-up”
|dentification,
assessment and
mitigation of risk
at business unit
level and across
functional areas
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposal at general
meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call
extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more shareholders
of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the articles of association of the
Company, no person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a weritten notice (unless otherwise specifically
stated and as further defined in the articles of association of
the Company) (the “Notice”) signed by a shareholder of the
Company (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election and also a
Notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the head office of the
Company or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the
Company provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such Notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven
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(7) days and that (if the Notices are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election) the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Company, for the attention of the Board of Directors, by
email: info@bingogroup.com.hk, or mail to Unit 202, 2/F,
Chinaweal Centre, 414-424 Jaffe Road, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Board is well aware of the importance of maintaining
proper contact with shareholders and strives to enhance its
communication with them. Shareholders can visit the website
of the Company (www.bingogroup.com.hk] for the latest
information of the Group, including quarterly, interim and annual
reports, announcements, circulars and corporate governance
related policies. Press releases are also posted on the website
of the Company in a timely manner.
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General meetings serve as a communication channel between
the Board and shareholders. The Group regards such a
meeting as an important activity of the Company during the
year. All Directors and senior management would attend the
meeting as much as they can. The chairman of the annual
general meeting proposes separate resolutions for each of the
independent matters. Members of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
external auditors, independent financial advisers and external
lawyers would also attend the general meeting to answer
questions from shareholders as appropriate. During the year,
the Company held one annual general meeting. Details of each
Director’s attendance at the general meetings are set out on
page 28 of this Annual Report.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretarial department whose contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretarial Department,
Bingo Group Holdings Limited

Unit 202, 2/F Chinaweal Centre
414-424 Jaffe Road, Hong Kong

The Company’s shareholders’ communication policy is regularly
reviewed to ensure its effectiveness. During the year, the
Company has reviewed the shareholders’ communication policy
and confirmed that it has been effectively implemented.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present
the Directors’ Report in this annual report for the year ended
31 March 2025 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
March 2025 by operating segment is set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2025 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page
101. The Directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2025.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 216. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Fair review of the Company’s business and likely future
development

Please refer to “Directors’ Business Review” on pages 6 to 21.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
Please refer to note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
Environmental protection

The Group has taken an initiative to promote employees’
awareness of environmental protection and the need to achieve
efficient utilisation of resources through launching paper
recycling in offices.

Being an environmental friendly corporation, the Company will
not print hard copy of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report. The environmental policies and performance of
the Group are disclosed in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report included in this Annual Report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

In order to comply with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
the Group emphasises the importance of adhering to
anti-corruption practices for all employees. The Group regards
honesty, integrity and fair play as its core values that must be
upheld by all employees of the Group at all times. As such, the
Board has instructed the Group’s employees are not allowed to
solicit or accept any advantage for themselves or others, from
any person, company or organisations having business dealings
with the Group.

Company’s key relationships with its employees

The Group has provided employees with opportunities to
advance their career. The Group’s policy is to encourage
employees to take part in professional examinations, seminars
and training courses related to their roles and duties through
leave grants. Competitive remuneration is also offered to
employees and their performance is reviewed on an annual
basis reflecting each employee’s contributions to the Group.
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EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Company’'s operations. Details
of the share option scheme arrangement can be referred to
the “Share Option Scheme” section in this Directors’ report and
notes 32 and 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board established a dividend policy (the “Dividend Poalicy”) in
January 2019. The Company endeavours to maintain adequate
working capital to develop and operate the business of the
Group and to provide stable and sustainable return to the
shareholders of the Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, the Board shall take
into account, among other things, the actual and expected
financial performance of the Group, the capital and debt level of
the Group, the general market conditions, any working capital
requirements, capital expenditure requirements and future
development plans of the Group, the liquidity position of the
Group, contractual restrictions on payment of dividends, the
statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is subject
to from time to time and any other relevant factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution record in
the past does not necessarily imply that the similar level of
dividends may be declared or paid by the Company in the
future.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands and the Company’s articles of association and
any other applicable laws and regulations. The Board will
continually review the Dividend Policy and reserve the right in its
sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or
cancel the Dividend Policy at any time.
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The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/
or in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of movements in either the Company’s convertible
bonds, share capital and share options during the Year are set
out in notes 29, 30 and 32 to the consoclidated financial
statements respectively.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2025.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During in the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 75.82% of the total sales for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to 40.14%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted to
76.31% of the total cost of sales for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
46.09%.
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None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi

Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly

Mr. LAU Man Kit

Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice

Mr. YIP Yiu Bong

Ms. TSANG Fung Chu (appointed on 2 July 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Ms. CHOI Mei Ping

Mr. TSUI Wing Tak

Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Ms. CHOW Man Ki
Kelly, Ms. CHOI Mei Ping and Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching shall retire
by rotation in accordance with Article 84(1). All of them being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election thereat.

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
March 2025 and it still considered them to be independent as
the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the Year, none of the Directors has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of the subsidiaries or its holding company was a
party and in which any Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at the time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance
Palicy for indemnifying their liabilities arising from corporate
activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such
policy are reviewed annually by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2025, the following Directors of the Company
had or were deemed to have interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) (i) which were required to be natified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
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provisions of the SFO); or (i) which were required, pursuant to {7850 A% I BTl & 52 Mt 2 2 5ok &+ 5k (i)
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred RIEGEM E MR B $£5.46E5.67KEHE=
to herein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of #{TEAX SR EBHNE RN LB A2

the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the — #Ezsiik & :
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange:
(a) Long positions in the shares of the Company (a) RERATRRGBZER
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Number of capital of
Name of Directors Nature of interest Shares held the Company
RN
ERITRA
EEpE EamME RO B E BMOB DL
Mpr. CHIAU Sing Chi Beneficial owner 2,757,352 2.69%
[E 2 Bty e 4 EEHBEEA
Held by trust (Note 1) 40,212,124 39.17%
BEFERA (FaE1)
Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly Held by trust (Note 1) 40,212,124 39.17%
AR+ mIEFERA (M)
Notes: Wi
1. These shares are registered in the name of Beglobal 1. #Z % &1 J) A Beglobal Investments
Investments Limited and Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited [ Golden Treasure Global
Limited. Beglobal Investments Limited and Golden Treasure Investment Limited 2 & & & i °
Global Investment Limited are companies indirectly owned Beglobal Investments Limited } Golden
by a discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of which Treasure Global Investment Limited 3
are Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi, Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly and their REANBEEXHRREAEMEL  BAXE
family. ZEIRERBsHNEGTEHEERE R
G
2. The total number of the issued share capital of the 2. ARQRARZE-_RAF=A=+—HZE
Company as at 31 March 2025 was 102,644,466. BITR B2 A102,644,466F% °
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(b)

Long positions in the underlying shares of the
Company

Please refer to page 59 of this annual report for the
share options held by the Directors as at 31 March
2025.

Pursuant to a subscription and settlement agreement and
the supplemental agreement entered into between Mr.
CHIAU Sing Chi ("Mr. Chiau”) and the Company on 7
December 2021 and 28 December 2021 respectively,
the convertible bonds in principal of HK$13,000,000
were issued to Mr. Chiau and 69,090,080 number of
Shares which would be allotted and issued upon the
exercise in full of the convertible bonds, which were held
by Mr. Chiau, as at 31 March 2025.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFQO), (i) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii)
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

(b)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2025, the
following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had, or was deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares (i) which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii)
who is expected, directly and indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group or (i) which were required, pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein:

Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

FREREH A TR G 5RHRK
Rz

REEFMAM R_TE-_AF=A=+—H ' UT
AL (AFEARREZTHRSTHRAR) BN
HAAMBR DT HEA X BEREBNREZESF R
HERPIEXVHBE2RID B 2 G ARAR R A
LB EZEamIORR (i) AR E R X
A AR (] FRMNERBRT
EAEBEERAKEARZBRERNE LRF)EE
10% sk A s 2 s SOR B - (i) RIBRE 5
Ko BB 16 ) 55 336 16 78 AC £k 1A 7% 16k P 1t & AL i
ZREREORR

RAXBDRGREBRO ZHFA

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of

Name of Shareholders Shares held the Company
EENUNCITE: - &5

BEREE HE FrEROEE BABHAE DL
Sinostar FE (PTC) Limited (Note 1) (#5£1) 40,212,124 39.17%
Treasure Offshore Holdings Limited (Note 1) (KfzE1) 40,212,124 39.17%
Beglobal Investments Limited (Note 2) (#/72) 40,212,124 39.17%
Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited (Note 2) (#1:2) 7.250,000 7.06%
KO Kin Hang = #17 5,135,500 5.00%

Notes:

1. Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi, Ms. CHOW Man Ki, Kelly and their family
are the beneficiaries of a discretionary trust of which Sinostar FE
(PTC) Limited (“Sinostar”) is the trustee. Sinostar as the trustee
of the discretionary trust is the sole shareholder of Treasure
Offshore Holdings Limited, which is the sole shareholder of
Beglobal Investments Limited.

2. Beglobal Investments Limited directly holds 32,962,124 shares
of the Company (representing approximately 32.11% of the
issued share capital of the Company) and indirectly holds
7,250,000 shares of the Company (representing approximately
7.06% of the issued share capital of the Company) through
Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited as at 31 March
2025.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to resolution passed on 15 August 2012, a share
option scheme (the “0Old Scheme”) was adopted for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors, eligible employees
and participants who have contributed to the Group, and had
expired on 14 August 2022. Under the Old Scheme, the board
of directors of the Company may grant options to certain
employees of the Group and any distributor, contractor, business
partner, promoter, service provider, customer, supplier,
consultants, agents and advisers or any person who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group in recognition of their contribution to the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, no share option of the
Company was available to be granted under the Old Scheme,
and the Company had 3,412,000 share options outstanding
under the Old Scheme as at 31 March 2025.

On 8 February 2024, a resolution was passed in an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company to adopt a share
option scheme (the “New Scheme”).

The Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange has granted the
listing of, and permission to deal in the shares of the Company
which may fall to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the
options which was granted and/or may be granted under the
New Scheme subsequently.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the New
Scheme:

Purpose

To enable the Company to (i) recognise and acknowledge the
contributions from the Eligible Participants; (ii) attract, retain
and encourage high-calibre Eligible Participants (as defined
below) to promote the sustainable development of the Group;
(ii) align the interest of the Eligible Participants with those of
the Shareholders to promote the long-term performance of the
Group; and (iv) motivate the Eligible Participants to contribute
to, and optimise their performance and efficacy in the long-
term development and profitability of the Group.
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Participants

Eligible Participant includes (a) the Employee Participant(s); and
(b) the Service Provider(s), provided that the Board may have
absolute discretion to determine whether or not one falls within
the above category, subject to compliance with Chapter 23 of
the GEM Listing Rules, whereas the Employee Participant(s)
mean the director(s) (excluding the independent non-executive
Directors) and employee(s) (whether full-time or part-time) of
any member of the Group (including persons who are granted
Options under the New Scheme as inducement to enter into
employment contracts with the Group) and the Service
Providers mean consultant or adviser who provides services to
any member of the Group on a continuing or recurring basis in
its ordinary and usual course of business which are in the
interests of the long term growth of the Group: (i) where the
continuity and frequency of their services are akin to those of
employees of the Group; or (i) after stepping down from an
employment or director position with the Group, who provide
advisory services, consultancy services and/or other
professional services to the Company on areas relating to the
Group’s principal business activities at the material time
according to the annual report or interim report of the
Company that are desirable and necessary from a commercial
perspective and help maintain or enhance the competitiveness
of the Group, for example, offering specific industry advice on
the Group's business and financial or commercial strategy, and
provided that any placing agent or financial adviser providing
advisory services for fundraising, mergers or acquisitions, and
other professional service provider such as auditor or valuer
who are required to perform their services with impartiality and
objectivity are excluded from such category and the Board shall
have absolute discretion to determine whether or not one falls
within such category.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant
Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.

Period within which the securities must be taken up under
the option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date
on which such share option lapses and 10 years from the date
of offer.

Vesting period of options granted under the New Scheme
Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance

Acceptance of the option must be made within 21 days from

the date of offer and HK$1.00 must be paid as a consideration
for the grant of share option(s).
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Exercise price

Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher
of:

(a) the closing price of (1) one share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets at the offer date, which
must be a business day;

(b) the average closing price of (1) one share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the (5) five
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(c) the nominal value of the share on the offer date, provided
that in case of fractional prices, the exercise price per
share shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole
cents.

Remaining life of the scheme

The scheme will be valid and effective until 9 February 2034,
after which no further options will be granted but the provisions
of the scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects. Options complying with the provisions of the GEM
Listing Rules which are granted during the duration of the
scheme and remain unexercised immediately prior to 9
February 2034 shall continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of grant, notwithstanding the expiry of the New
Scheme.
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Set out below is the schedule of movement of the Company's X HJARQRREREREE T _AF=A

Options during the year ended 31 March 2025: =S+ —HIEFENEHREX:
Number of Number of
options held Number of options held
as at Number of Number of options as at
1 April options options cancelled/ 31 March
Category Option type 2024 granted exercised lapsed 2025
RZT-ME R-ZZZRE
mAE— B Bz iz H%/%%z =ZA=t+-8
EHl 5B IR R B BREHE BREHE BREHE BREHE FMiSBRERE
(Note 1) (Note 2] (Note 2] (Note 2]
(FizE1) (Ma2) (Mz2) (Mz2)
Directors
=
CHIAU Sing Chi 2024 - 102,644 - - 102,644
CHOW Man Ki Kelly 2021A 854,000 - - - 854,000
Ehe3 2024 - 102,644 - - 102,644
LAU Man Kit 2024 - 102,644 - - 102,644
£
CHOW Nga Chee Alice 2024 - 102,644 - - 102,644
JEHEB 2021A 854,000 - - - 854,000
YIP Yiu Bong 2024 - 102,644 - - 102,644
ey i
Employees 2024 - 3,284,620 - - 3,284,620
=]
Advisors
B
HAQ Jing 2020A 850,000 - - - 850,000
&
CHAN Ka Yin 2020A 854,000 - - - 854,000
RRE
YUAN Zhi 2024 - 1,026,444 - - 1,026,444
RE
CHAN Chun Yu 2024 - 1,026,444 - - 1,026,444
REF
MAN Ngar Yin 2024 - 1,026,444 - - 1,026,444
NXHE
OR Kin 2024 - 1,026,444 - - 1,026,444
T ER
TANG Yu Chung 2024 - 1,026,444 - - 1,026,444
i
3,412,000 8,930,060 - - 12,342,060

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED w
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Note 1: Details of specific categories of share options are disclosed in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Note 2: The number of share options mentioned are adjusted to reflect

the share consolidation effective on 16 March 2022 (as the
case may be). The total number of shares of the Company
available for issue under the Old Scheme and the New Scheme
of 12,342,060 shares represented approximately 12.0% of
weighted average number of the Company’s shares in issue
for the year ended 31 March 2025 (i.e. 102,644,466
shares).

Note 3: All the outstanding share options during the year ended 31

March 2025, which were granted under the Old Scheme, are
with immediate vesting period. All the outstanding share
options during the year ended 31 March 2025, which were
granted under the New Scheme (“2024 /25 Granted
Options”), have a vesting period of twelve months. Accordingly,
no 2024 /25 Granted Options can be exercised within the first
12 months from the Date of Grant, and 100% of the
2024 /25 Granted Options can be exercised at any time after
the expiration of 12 months from the date of grant.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, 9,956,504 share
options were offered to the grantees under the New Scheme
on 3 July 2024, but one of grantees who was offered
1,026,444 share options did not accept the offer. Accordingly,
8,930,060 share options were granted to and accepted by
directors, employees and advisors of the Company.

As at 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025, the total number of
share options available for grant under the New Scheme were
10,264,446 and 307,942 respectively. The service provider
sublimit as at 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 were
5,132,223 number of share options and 3 number of share
options respectively. The employee participant sublimit as at 1
April 2024 and 31 March 2025 were 4,824,284 number of
share options and 307,939 number of share options
respectively. The number of shares that may be issued in
respect of options available to be granted under the New
Scheme represents approximately 0.3% of the total issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2025.
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES” and “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" above, none of the Directors or employees of the
Group or their associates were granted by the Company or its
subsidiaries the rights to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, or had exercised any
such rights as at 31 March 2025.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is to
ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they
receive appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of
performance.

Details of the Director’s emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 are
set out in notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing connected transaction with The Star Overseas
Limited

On 29 February 2024 (after trading hours), Huge Art Limited
(*Huge Art”, which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company), being the licensee, and The Star Overseas Limited
(“TSOL"), being the licensor entered into a licensing agreement
(the “Licensing Agreement’). TSOL is a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability and wholly owned by Ms.
CHOW Man Ki Kelly, an executive director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

EERESBARMKRF T

REXRBER EERERHTBRABRRN KE
BAR (D 2 B as SR B ) M [RE R AR AT &) AN P
BREN BEREFAAEEZRBREIREZH
BATEARAHEMBRARR THEMNBAR
RAEHTAEMEABE 2R HES IR =
E_RF=ZA=+—HBITEEAZEER-

i Bl e R

ARAFMERRZTEZEANRERESESA
TR KB B AMRFF S K ERER

BHE_T-_AF=-"A=+—RULEFEZESH
MEkAEEAUESFMALTZHFBIARES
B mERMEI12K%13 °

WEXS
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Pursuant to the Licensing Agreement, TSOL has agreed to
grant to the Huge Art a license to use certain intellectual
property rights (“Intellectual Property Rights”) of the live action
feature movie entitled “#1 =52 £ (The New King of Comedy),
including but not limited to any fictional character mentioned in
the movie, in respect of commercialization of all products
derived from the adaptation, application or secondary
exploitation of the Intellectual Property Rights including but not
limited to any products borne the relevant trademarks and
logos for a three-year period from 29 February 2024 to 28
February 2027 (the “Licensing Period”). Huge Art shall pay the
TSOL commencing from the first anniversary of the
commencement date of the Licensing Agreement until the end
of the Licensing Period a royalty equivalent to 50% of the sales
revenue (the “Sales Revenue”) to be received by the Group in
cash on the use, application, or exploitation of the Intellectual
Property Rights in cash as royalty. The annual cap for the
aggregate fees payable by Huge Art to TSOL for the royalty
during the Licensing Period shall not exceed HK$1.30 million
per 12 months from the date of the date of the Licensing
Agreement. In the event that the royalty exceeds the annual
cap for the aggregate fees payable by Huge Art to TSOL (i.e.
HK$1.30 million), there will be a downward adjustment
mechanism for the royalty, such that the maximum royalty
payable by Huge Art to TSOL is capped at HK$1.30 million.

The Group is principally engaged in movie production, licensing
and derivatives, crossover marketing, provision of interactive
contents and cinema investment and management. The Group
entering into of the Licensing Agreement will allow the Group to
explore business opportunities for promoting the Products
using the brand of The New King of Comedy, including the
production of bullet-screen applications and screen play of
animation. There are other commercialization opportunities for
the license, such as merchandising, gamification, production of
comics and animations, and licensing for secondary content
production. The Directors, including the independent non-
executive Directors, consider that the transactions
contemplated under the Licensing Agreement is in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group and the terms of the
Licensing Agreement are based on normal commercial terms
and are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whale.
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During the year ended 31 March 2025, Sales Revenue of
approximately HK$6.2 million was derived by the Group and
royalty of HK$1.3 million was paid by the Group to TSOL.

Continuing connected transaction with Shenzhen Xinfeng
Cultural and Creative Development Co. Ltd.

On 12 February 2025 (after trading hours), Shenzhen Xingfeng
Culture Media Co. Ltd. (YT E L X{LEHEBR A A)
("Xingfeng”) entered into an agreement (“Promotional Services
Framework Agreement”) with Shenzhen Xinfeng Cultural and
Y XaERERAT)

("Xinfeng”), whereas Xingfeng is a company established under

Creative Development Co. Ltd. (&

the laws of the PRC with limited liability and an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which was
contractually owned as to 51% by the Company, and owned as
to 49% by Xinfeng, and Xinfeng is a company established in the
PRC with limited liability.

Pursuant to the Promational Services Framework Agreement,
Xingfeng shall provide the promational services to Xinfeng and
its associates in return for a service fee and the term of from
13 February 2025 to 12 February 2027. The promotional
services should include, but not limited to, \We-Media account
management services, We-Media account promaotion, We-
Media content planning and production.

Xinfeng shall pay service fees to Xingfeng. The service fees
shall be settled on a monthly basis, and be determined on a
cost-plus basis, with reference to, reasonable margin, the cost
of labour, traveling expenses, materials and equipment costs,
taxes, office and administration expenses, and all other
expenses incurred in connection with the promotional services
necessary for the Xinfeng to fully and properly perform its
obligations under this contract. The service fees charged to
Xinfeng shall be not less favourable to Xingfeng than that
offered to independent third party for services of same/similar
nature and of comparable quality.
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The annual caps for the transaction amounts under the
Promational Services Framework Agreement are as follows:

Period from 13 February 2025 to RMB12 million
12 February 2026
Period from 13 February 2026 to BRMB12 million

12 February 2027

For further details of the transaction between Xingfeng and
Xinfeng, please refer to the Company's announcements dated
12 February 2025 and 10 March 2025.

The Company’s independent non-executive directors have
reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into (i) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, (i) on
normal commercial terms or better and (iii) according to the
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.

The Board has received a letter from the auditor of the
Company confirming that nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe that the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions (i) have not been approved by the
Board, (ii) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group, (iii) were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions, and (iv) have exceeded

the annual cap.

Save as the aforesaid, no connected transaction (including
continuing connected transaction) was entered into by the
Group under the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
March 2025. The transactions disclosed in Note 33(c) to the
consolidated financial statements are connected transactions
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders or the
substantial shareholders of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interest with the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Man Ki Kelly
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 June 2025
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Bingo Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, “we” or the “Group”) are pleased to
present our annual environmental, social and governance
("ESG”) report for the year ended 31 March 2025 (the
“Report”). This Report provides an overview of the Group’s
performance in relation to significant issues affecting its
operations, including ESG. For information regarding corporate
governance, please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report”
in the annual report 2024 /25.

REPORTING SCOPE

This Report covers all areas of the Group’s business that had a
significant impact during the period from 1 April 2024 to 31
March 2025 (the “Year”/“FY2025"), including the “Cinema
Business, New Media Business and Licensing Business”. The
New Media Business has been included in the reporting scope
for the Year due to the increasing revenue contributed by the
New Media Business as compared to the previous year.
Therefore, key performance indicators (KPIs) between these
two years are not directly comparable.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix C2 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and is in
compliance with the following reporting principles:
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Reporting
Principles Definition The Group’s Response
R A & REEHEE
Materiality The Report should cover categories that Identify current materiality issues through
BEN highlight the Group’s significant impacts on | materiality assessment, taking into account
the economy, environment, and society, or | the Group’s development strategy, industry
that substantially influence stakeholders’ and business conditions.
assessments and decisions. EENEBEBEEEE TEEEBRR LB
BERBRERMAEEHZE RERMEN | BEEUFEBRMENNEZEZEE-
BEXE BB LZENR AT G OR
hak:ok ol
Quantitative KPIs relating to historical data shall be The Group has provided quantitative KPI
21t measurable. Issuers should set targets for | information, along with detailed explanations
minimising individual impacts. In this way, to help stakeholders clearly understand the
the benefits of the ESG policy and Group’s overall performance.
management system can be assessed and | AEE D GBEREBIESEERETEEE
verified. Quantitative information should be | [FI&F T LA X F R - DAE e 48R 5 gL M 12
accompanied by explanations that clarify B BRBEN -
their purpose and impact, and comparative
data should be included when relevant.
BREEBUENRBRERIERAN T8 - %
TARET MR ERIRZENER S5 R’RE
HERERBERER RN AT
KgE - BB HA M EB R
TE WEABNER T REL BB -
Balance The report information should reflect both Information is disclosed by the Group as
1 the positive and negative aspects of the objectively as possible to provide

Group’s performance to enable reasonable
assessment of its overall performance.
BEERERRAEEERNEREMEHE
MU EEEBERCETAR BN

stakeholders with an unbiased picture of
the Group’s overall ESG performance.
AEBERARETHFEVOARFNELLEME
BRAEEEBRT HERERRE-
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Reporting
Principles
R A

Definition
EH

The Group’s Response

AEEHEE

Consistency

— Bt

Reporting disclosures and statistical
methods should be disclosed in a consistent
manner to enable stakeholders to analyse
and evaluate the Group’s performance over
different periods.

HERBEMGET HERREE — B0 AR AR
FERE 75 Al 3 AT e wFAf AR S B AN [R] B A BV 48
R e

The New Media Business has been included
in the reporting scope for the Year due to
the increasing revenue contributed by the
New Media Business to the Group.
Therefore, KPIs between these two years
are not directly comparable.

H 7 T B R TS S B N PTG O M R A G
M RERHIETHMEREBIEARSERD
cEHtt M 2R BERABIEIRTRER
LB

Except for the change in the reporting
scope, the preparation of this Report is
essentially the same as in previous years.
BT ERBEAE BN ARENRELT A H
EFER—H-

COMMENTS AND FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes comments and suggestions from

stakeholders. You may provide valuable feedback on this ESG

Report or the Group’s performance on sustainability by e-mailing

info@bingogroup.com.hk.
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ESG GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Group recognises that a good ESG governance strategy is
an integral part of successful corporate development. The
Board of Directors assumes all responsibilities for the
development of the Group’s ESG strategy and report disclosure,
and implements the execution of ESG management, ESG
strategic plans and risk management by assigning each
functional department as an executive unit, with specific
responsibilities as follows:

ESG /R I ZRIR

REERH RIFHESCE AR EREHEK
DAAHRN - R-EFZQRAANEERE 1
GRERAREHEERERBEOMA AL BB
BIRESBAERPIERNITEN EEESGEE

ESGE R T &8I K EREBHNMITIE BRBEBE
Eowmh:

The Board
T

Responsible for overseeing the Group’s sustainability
strategy, ESG governance and risk management
BEEEAEENAHERREK ESGE ME R E R
Settlng sustainability objectives and providing strategic
guidance on the implementation of sustainable
development
HERRKEERAR URAKERR ZATREBMRESE
Reviewing ESG objectives and progress through regular
assessment of ESG performance
BT T AESG R - FXESC TIER R et E
Approving annual ESG report
EMFEESCRE
Overseeing the Group'’s risk management and internal
control mechanisms (including ESG risks) to ensure that
the internal control measures implemented are effective
and that ESG issues are integrated into the Group’s risk
management process
EEASENREREERADEZEHST (BHEESCRER) -
HRAABITONIZEE T 2B UHESCHEERMAREE
BWEREREFEF

Functional Departments

(e.g. administration department, human

resources department, and board secretariat)
H‘iﬁu EIB FEJ

(- ATHE ANBRE - REEGWER)

Advising the Board on sustainability strategies, work
plans and targets

RAREEREE TEAIMERNEFSRHER
Reviewing and implementing ESG-related policies,
procedures and practices

EEMEBESCHBBIR B LBt

Identifying, assessing and effectively managing ESG-
related risks and opportunities and reporting to the
Board on a regular basis

Fopll - AL KB RUE B ESG A B EL B
SER

Collecting ESG information and data for ESG disclosure

B WEHRES

W R ESG & s M SR {FESG # B8

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ESG RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
risk management. In order to effectively manage ESG-related
risks, including climate change, environmental and social risks
in the supply chain, we have incorporated ESG risks into our
existing risk management process. Each department
comprehensively collects internal and external data through
various channels, historical data, future projections, case
studies and information from other peer companies both
domestically and internationally, and jointly identifies and
evaluates ESG risks that are significant to the Group through
departmental meetings, which are then submitted to the senior
management for evaluation. Finally, the Board of Directors
regularly reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management system and conducts regular reviews of the ESG-
related objectives, and formulates corresponding
countermeasures.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group believes that identifying and addressing stakeholders’
view lay a solid foundation for the long-term growth and success
of the Group. The stakeholder engagement helps the Group to
develop a business strategy that meets the stakeholders’ needs
and expectations, enhances the ability to identify risks and
strengthens important relationships. Stakeholders can deliver
their valuable opinions on ESG to us through various channels.
The channels of communication between the Group and its key
stakeholders are set out below:
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EEgUASEMESGRAREEARERET,
RBEMELESCHERR (BRRKEREL HE
#ZREREERR) - HA HESG Ak AR
THERBREERFET - SHFIEBTRRE
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& LR R K R AR BT 5 EARESG A
B UERTRELTHE SRAEESEH
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BB REE MR Bl EHRN RS R

EEAVE-E 3

AEERE BRINDERHENERLSAEE
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Stakeholders

Communication Channels

FHE BERE
Customers e Email and customer service hatline
LS BEBNEFPREAGRER
e Vobile application
FHEMRER
e Product and service feedback
EmRk R RE
Suppliers * Regular review
] EHRTE
e Meetings
S
e On-site visits
B ER
Employees e Training
BT =l
e Meetings
L

e Performance evaluation
KR
e | eisure activities

B EA S

Investors and shareholders

REERBRR

e Annual general meetings and other general meetings of
shareholders
BRBFAGLEMBRRAS

e Company website
YNSIFERT

e Announcements
N

e Annual reports, interim reports, ESG reports and other
public information

Fil - hHHmE ESCHRENMHMAFER

Government and regulatory agencies

BT M B E R

e Annual reports, interim reports, ESG reports and other
public information
3R IR - ESGIRE REMAREH

* Meetings

&2
S

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In order to understand the areas of concern of our stakeholders
and to identify the ESG issues that are or will be critical to our
business to develop a sustainable strategy and approach, we
have adopted a three-step approach to assessing the
significance of ESG issues as set out below.

EEMFG

RTRENERIRE BRIEFNAREER
EHEENRE HeRBEREE U ERF
BERMEB LT RASWATIHERA=
BERFHHESGEENEZ 1 -

w8 5

258

Analysis and

\
¢ 21 material issues that the Group and its stakeholders may consider
to be important, selected from various sources, including the requirements
o of the Listing Rules, industry trends and internal policies.
R « 1t TR (45 ERAIE © TEB% RABER) BUAEE R HE TER
RBEZ21EEREE -
J
)
¢ Conducting online opinion surveys on issues of importance to collect
stakeholders' views.
SNECUEI o175 IR EEEBENE RS  WERHEER - )
N
¢ Ranking the most important ESG issues through a materiality assessment.
CEBERZMTEHREENRE LB NEARBEETHF -
¢ Reviewing the results of the materiality assessment, to enable the Group
. to formulate a more relevant and efficient ESG development strategy
EvaluaElon for the short and long term.
GRIVSREY « 165 S BT AR BAREAHIE LB UA RS KOE HIRPESCH R -
J
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The four most important issues of the Year, as shown in the WHEZHEMAE FABRER AFEREZHNE
top right corner of the importance matrix, are: e AR

EAEF B AL R E

o Personal data privacy protection

e Data security o  ERLAE
e Occupational safety and health e BETINER
e  Operational safety management o ZELTER

The Group will focus on these important issues as we fulfil our REESEIRBEG S SIR  KEBBEEZEH
p p

environmental and social responsibilities. FELEBEEHEE

Materiality Matrix

EEMERE
A
. 15,18
e ./_‘_17 f/—lg
10
% 16 n ° B ¢ 9
s4 2_\. 1 l3—” \o °
f"m 21 . 0! 1
Eﬁ - 4] 8 &g
o R 6_./. 1
hE
g
E
>

Importance to operations
HEBNEES

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ﬂ
EEEEERERAR
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ESG Aspects ESG Materiality Topics for the Group
ESGHH KAEEEEESGEAE
A. Environmental A1.Emissions and wastes generated 1. Emission management (air pollutants and
responsibility AR R EEEY) greenhouse gas)
REAME BmER (BRIBERE)
2. Wastes management
BRYERE
A2.Use of resources 3. Energy saving
BRERA B 4 BE IR
A3.The environment and natural resources | 4. \Water consumption
BRENRARER RKER
9. Effluent discharges
BIRBER
A4 .Climate change 6. Climate change strategy
RIRZME & 5 S L B
B. Social responsibility | B1.Employment 7. Employee remuneration and benefits
HEEME &= B TH B KAah
8. Diversity and equal opportunity
SR TPERS
B2.Workplace health and safety 9. Occupational safety and health
TESMMRRERZ 2 BEZ2LRERE
B3.Development and training 10.Employee training and development
BR KIE BT RERE
B4.Labor standards 11.Anti-child and forced labour
5 TR BiEET KRB
B5.Supply chain management 12.Supply chain management
g e fit e g8 g 12
B6.Product responsibility 13.Customer service quality
EmAaft EFRBEE
14.Product/service quality and safety
Em/ REEENZS
15.Personal data privacy protection
BN ERHEARE
16.Product research and development
7 m i 3
17 .Intellectual property rights protection
HMBERRE
18.Data security
L2
19.0perational safety management
2ERREH
B7.Anti-corruption 20. Anti-corruption
k&5 k&5
B8.Community investment 21.Community investment and engagement
HERE HEREEN2H

ﬂm ANNUAL REPORT £
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

The Group’s core business covers new media, new media
development, licensing business, cinema investment and
management. Due to the nature of our business, the direct
impact of our operations on the environment is not significant
and there are no direct greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, air
emissions, hazardous waste and only a small amount of non-
hazardous waste generated during our operations.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any violation of the
relevant laws and regulations in relation to the air emissions,
GHG emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste which have a significant
impact on the Group, including but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
((h#EARKEMBEIRE(REE) ), Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China [ (1 # A R &£
MEIK 5558 7%) ), Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the People’s Republic of China [ (/7 % A R £ f1E
KRS EBIAE) ), Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Wastes ( (P AR HFEEEREY)SRRENAZE) ) and the
Water Pollution Control Ordinance ( <7K5 2 %& H &) ), Air
Pollution Control Ordinance ( {Z= &5 & #l{£#1) ) and the
Waste Disposal Ordinance ( <EE#)EEE &%) ) in Hong Kong.

A IS5 R

AEEZOEBREFNRE  HHEEBFHE ISR
BER THREEREB - ENEBEE  #M
MEBHRBEERFELIER MEERET
TERRREREBIN BEREN EEEEY

AREE AEELTATERMERERMEER
BER - MKR MBS R ARBEERY
ENEEREFTEEVNEENHEBAZLR
REER BRETRR (FEARKNERE
REE) ~(PEARKMBEIKISEDEZE) - (F
EARKMBERRZERPAE) (FEARHK
MBI E YIS RRENEER) REER (K5
ZEHED) (ERTREBED) K (BEYE
E &I -

Unit FY2025 Fy2024
B —E-RME —ToMBF
GHG carbon emissions (scope 2)' tonnes CO,-equivalent
— Electricity consumption 154 305
BEREEHBEN (BE =) WS EIREE
— BIEMA
GHG emission intensity (scope 2) tCO,e per thousand revenue in HKD
— Electricity consumption 0.013 0.046

BRERBHFREE (BE )
— BHR

WS LB S TE TR

1 GHG emissions are calculated with reference to the “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, the emission
factor in “Sustainability Report 2024” published by HK Electric
Investments Limited and the national grid average emission
factor.

1 R R BB PERUY A8 2 IR A P AR BY R frT
BRR e REAMEME—  REBFRER
EIRERES) BEENREBR AR EMY
(oA HEHRME) THHREHELE
REMTHHREFAHER-

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Aspect A1: Emissions and Wastes Generated
Energy and GHG emissions

The Group does not have significant direct GHG emissions
(scope 1) and its day-to-day operations mainly involve only
indirect GHG emissions (scope 2), which are mainly generated
from electricity consumption. We have formulated the
Environmental Protection Management System [ (GRIZREE 12
#Z) ) to provide guidelines on the daily environmental
protection for our staff starting with the details such as
management of use of electricity, water, paper and office
supplies. As Hangzhou cinema closed four cinema halls during
the Year and was also closed for about 1.5 months for
maintenance works, GHG emissions due to electricity
consumption also decreased significantly during the Year as
compared to the previous financial year FY2024.

Measures to Reduce Emission

To reduce carbon emissions, we have implemented a series of
measures as described in the section “Aspect A2: Use of
Resources”. At the same time, the Group also strictly reviews
and approves long-distance travel arrangements to minimise
non-essential business trips, and we encourage our staff to
prioritise the use of public transportation. We expect that these
measures may effectively reduce emissions, and we aim to
achieve the target of maintaining or reducing GHG emission
intensity using FY2024 as the baseline.
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AMFHE : BEENHFRIKRERY

AEEWRAEAEKREREYN (BE—) -
HEEBITERASPEERREREHN (EE
T XT2HAEMEL - KMERS CRERE
EBHIE) HAE Ak B -HLARER
FHHAF REINHBERFERIMFERMEES -
R AEEMMNFE R T ER B EE - R IR
e TIEMAANI.SEA Rt AFERE
— B IRFE [FY2024 | A E H B 7 M 5l &R
EREIRANE NE e

AL B K E 915 b

AR RAERT —F7EE A8

RITA2)TE : ERER] — & - [ AR IR
RELAREGERZFURDIIFVENHZE - [
BB ETEEERAABT A - RMHE
7B % E LA RURE HE R E - T AFIA2024
MEREEUBAR IV EERBHINEERA
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Wastes Management

Owing to the Group’s business nature, the Group in its ordinary
course of business has not produced any material hazardous
waste. The Group’s non-hazardous wastes are mainly generated
from general garbage from office premises and cinemas,
including recyclables (e.g. paper) and non-recyclables (e.g.
office supplies and plastics), which are collected by property
management companies for centralised treatment. \We actively
promote waste recycling and separate collection of items that
are difficult to be recycled directly. The Group does not require
the use of packaging materials in its operations and therefore
no relevant data is available. Data on the Group’s non-hazardous
waste generated are as follows:

ERNAKENEBHE  AREHEXBBARETD
AREFEMNEXEEEY AKEELNEZRE
BMEIERNMAGHREZWAELEN—R
- BEA I (aRsR) - AR R (0
WMARm 2B NEEMEEEQRKEL
SRR - RMEGESEYBERAA - HHIA
EERORNYmET O BRE AREEERIE
hEAFRBEME BB HEBEE - N5E
EENESEZRMIELT

Unit FY2025 Fy2024
B —E-AME —ToMBMF
Non-hazardous waste produced kg
— general waste? 6,754 23,234
BEBREVMEL — —REDP TR
Non-hazardous waste produced kg per thousand revenue in HKD
— general waste intensity 0.56 3.50
BEBRREVEL — REVEE TR/ FHETRR
Paper consumption kg 254.13 99.58
FA# T
Paper intensity kg per thousand revenue in HKD 0.02 0.01
RB=E Fr/FETRE

2 The significant decrease in the amount of non-hazardous waste
generated compared to last year was attributable to the higher
amount of non-hazardous waste in FY2024 due to the renovation
work at cinemas in FY2024. At the same time, as there were
four fewer cinemas in FY2025, the amount of waste generated
was significantly less than last year.

2 BEFEVPELEBREFARALS ZARN
202451 F B b 175 1& T 72 - At JA202481
FREBFZVHUERZ AR 20250 FEZ
BrrtmREER A T U ME - Rk EA W EEY B =
FRIBRED
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MEASURES TO REDUCE WASTE GENERATION

The Group actively promotes green office practices by building
an office automation platform for electronic approval to reduce
the printing of paper documents. It also promotes the
circulation of electronic documents and encourages paperless
office. When printing documents is necessary, we give priority
to the use of environmentally friendly paper and office supplies
such as tissue made from recycled materials. At the same
time, we encourage our staff to reduce paper waste by
narrowing margins and defaulting to duplex printing. In addition,
the use of disposable tableware is usually avoided at corporate
events to minimise the impact on the environment.

We expect that by strengthening these measures to reduce
waste generation, we aim to achieve the target of maintaining
or reducing the non-hazardous waste intensity using FY2024
as the baseline.

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

The Group understands that effective resource management is
closely related to environmental protection and corporate
sustainability goals. Due to the nature of offices’ operations and
business, the major resources consumed by the Group are
electricity, water and paper. We have formulated the
Environmental Protection Management System and for the
office we have mainly adopted different energy-saving measures
including:

° setting the printer and computer to automatically power
off after a period of inactivity;

° setting the office air-conditioning temperature at no lower
than 26° C in summer and no higher than 20° C in
winter to ensure rational utilisation of resources;

o when replacing office equipment, prioritising the use of
electrical products that meet the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department’s Grade 1 Energy Efficiency Label.
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Energy

The Group recognises that the climate change is mainly caused
by excessive consumption of electricity. Therefore, we
encourage our staff to turn off non-essential lighting systems
and electronic equipment such as printers and computers to
avoid idle electrical appliances and to raise their awareness of
environmental protection. Meanwhile, some of the office lighting
has been replaced by compact fluorescent lamps with light-
emitting diodes (LEDs]) to reduce power consumption.

Water

The Group’s operations do not involve activities that require
significant amounts of water. As property management
companies are responsible for supplying water to our office
premises and cinemas, the Group has not encountered any
problems in sourcing water. Nevertheless, the Group actively
promotes the importance of water conservation to its staff.
Staff are reminded to request the property management
companies to attend to any dripping taps as soon as possible.
As the Group’s water consumption is not significant, it is
considered to be immaterial. Therefore, no target has been set
for the time being.

FETR

AEEZFINREECENERIBEHENBEE
HREEM - EIE - PSR B TN EMR
PAEBRITEH ERFEFRE UNBLES
HE RASTIRAEI R PEELIR
RARGE ABERE R RE L —HE (LED) AR
EREE-

ok

AEBMEEL TP RFEAERKES AR
MEBE QR A E RIFIROM Q5P KB #
Ko AREBEBUKS B EEIEMEHE-EE
mt - AEEEERERE IS ESHORAKNEE M -

BFREES TIHBERKERBK FERYEE
BAREREE ARAEE 2 HKERETS

Hib R A TNEE - 8 B A& 7 B A B R EMR
Bz

Resource consumption B EFE
Unit FY2025 Fy2024
B “ECRBE T oNEF
Electricity consumption? kWh 258,501 393,823
HE&s TR
Electricity consumption intensity kWh per thousand revenue in HKD 21.34 50.18
MEERE TRE Tk
Water consumption? m?3 1,088 834
K& K
Water consumption intensity m?3 per thousand revenue in HKD 0.09 0.13
AKkERE SR F AT

3 As Hangzhou cinema closed four cinema halls during the Year
and was also closed for about 1.5 months for maintenance
works, electricity consumption decreased significantly during the
Year.

4 Water consumption increased during the Year compared to the
previous year due to the relocation of cinema concessions stands
for construction and the inclusion of the New Media Business in
the reporting scope for the Year.

3  ARAFEMMEEREE T MEZHEE - [ IR
Rl TIEMERAA1.5ER R AFEES
HFEANE T -

4 HRAFEEEERIPEBRT R AFEEN
BTHREEEELAREERDE  AUAFE
WAKEL EFEM-
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Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

In light of the nature of its business operations, the Group does

not pose significant risks to the environment and natural

resources. As described in the section “Aspect A2: Use of

Resources”, we have put in place measures to incorporate the

concept of environmental protection into our internal

management and daily operations.

Aspect A4: Climate Change

Climate change has become one of the most important

concerns for people and is a global challenge that affects

communities and businesses as a whole. The Group has

incorporated climate risk into its enterprise risk management

to identify and mitigate different climate-related risks. VWe meet

regularly to identify and assess climate-related risks and develop

strategies to manage identified risks.

A3TH : BEARRKRER
AEBZEBLEMEY TEHREMARE
RIBREXER WM A2HE: ERER] —
EEpTt - I HIE B AR IR FRE IR DR
ARBEERAREEES -

A4 E : RIREL

RIRFCERBSAMRBEAINEAE L — B
EREBHRMERAODIRENLE - AEE KR
R A ZERBRE IR - DA B I 48 ## T[R9

RARAARE R - RIS EHIF S LA K EWE%
TR AR A e - 3 i) T EE 2 AR L B ) R

floods, which may have an impact on the
Group’s operations (e.g. physical damage
to cinemas and office premises.
Emergencies may trigger cinema closures
and disruption of office area operations)
and cause economic loss.
ﬂ@?kﬁﬁﬁ’@ﬁk HKEBRKFES

RREAEENEEEETE (W M
"%FﬁLﬁXW@T@i E2BER T A eS| %
FhiEx BoREBETE) WERLHE
Bk

Climate risk type | Description Actions taken to manage risks
RiIZEEER Rt AEERRBMERNNITE

Physical risks Climate change has led to an increase in The Group has adopted a dual-response
EHE natural disasters such as typhoons and approach: on one hand, it transfers risks

related to natural disasters and accidents
through insurance purchases; on the
other hand, it establishes an emergency
preparedness system to minimise
potential losses caused by extreme
weather events.

AEBFNEEREER: —HEHBBEE
RBREEEALERBINEREAR: S —7
HEVEZSERER URAEERERSE
RRFE AT B K -

Transition risks

BIE R

The Group will likely face more stringent
climate legislation and regulations in
support of a carbon-neutral global vision.
Changes in relevant regulations may result
in increased compliance costs, which may
adversely affect results of operations.

N5 B 15 5 A Be [H e AR B SRR SR MDA
B SRR M 2 IRFE R - HEDER
BB ARG A BRI N - (T AT Be
REEEERTNTE -

The Group continuously monitors current
and emerging trends, policies and
regulations relating to the environment
and is prepared to alert senior
management where necessary to avoid
non-compliance penalties as a result of
delayed responses.
AEEREERRTABOIRE MBS -
BEMZESR TEBELNERRESSERE
B e RIEEELEEMERTERIR
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SOCIAL ASPECTS
Aspect B1: Employment

The Group considers employees as the most valuable wealth
and resources and believes that they are the propellent of
corporate growth. Therefore, the Group is committed to
providing an equal, harmonious, and diversified working
environment to employees in order to attract and retain
suitable talents in the competitive labour market and for the
purpose of maintaining its competitiveness in the industry.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
breach of the relevant laws and regulations relating to
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, hours
of work, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other remuneration and benefits, including
but not limited to the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China ( {(Fr# A R H M E 4 F)5%) ), the Labor Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China [ (FZEARKFIE LSS FE) ),
and the Employment Ordinance ( /& {&{4f1) ) of Hong Kong.

i EmE
B1AHE : &

AEERSEIRKREENMEMER HEM
PEEERENS N -Hit AREHNB/BET
RE—EHEAFEHRSNRBAZTETIER
BoRmESRFANNBHMETRIRRES
AT R EITRBEF S -

RAFE  AEESTHAEERREZREGEH
B R BN BT TERE RE T 5H#
g Zlt RIER A R HAD 78 K48 F /9 HE B8
EPIFDER  BREFER (hEARKNES
%) (hEARKXMELHERZE) RES
) R IRG))
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The composition of the Group’s workforce by employment type,  AEEIZEFER] - 1E 5] Fic 485 K32 @ i

gender, age group and geographical region is set out below: oM ETHAKIBREINMAT
FY2025 Fy2024
—ERoAME —ToNMEF
Total workforce Total 102 28
B4 B
By employment type Full time 99 25
RIERERZ D 7
Part time 3 3
Fe
By gender Male 60 12
RIMERIE > St
Female 42 16
7
By age group 30 or below 59 3
REIRARE D 305k A T
31-40 17 4
315 £405%
41-50 16 15
415 &= 505%
51-60 7 4
515 £605%
Above 60 3 2
B0m% LA =
By employee category Management 13 12
RIEBERE D EIRE
General employees 89 16
EEBET
By geographical regions Mainland China 81 15
i IR R i E 5 B A3
Hong Kong 21 13
5

w ANNUAL REPORT £
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The number of employees increased from last year due to the HRAFENIE T HEEEBIEARSIERD
inclusion of the New Media Business in the reporting scope "EIEE T AR AFE M
during the Year.

The Group’s employee turnover rates by different categories ANEBIETRBRIESWEEREARDNT
are as follows:

FY2025 Fy2024
SBoAPE T _MMEF
Overall Employee turnover rate® 6.86% 28.6%
e BB RMAKKS
By gender Male 6.67% 41.7%
RIMERIE St
Female 7.14% 18.8%
ik
By age group 30 or below 10.17% 133.3%
REIRARE D 305k A T
31-40 5.88% 25.0%
315 £405%
41-50 - 6.7%
415 &= 505%
51-60 - -
515 £605%
Above 60 - 100%
BOm A
By geographical regions Mainland China 6.17% 46.7%
BRI RIS D B A
Hong Kong 9.52% 7.7%
EE

5  The employee turnover rate is calculated by the total number of 5 EEMRERUNEANBEBEEABERUEZ=
employees that left during the year divided by the total number of A HIEHEEER N EEAHTE -
employees under respective categories as of 31 March.

[1]
i

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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Employment and employee welfare

The Group has put in place various systems such as the
Employee Induction Management System ( (8 T A B & 2
f€) ), the Training Management System ( (& 3IIE 2 HIE) ) and
the Employee Handbook [ (& TF ) ) to regulate the policies
on remuneration, recruitment and dismissal, promation, hours
of work, vacation, equal opportunities and other remuneration
and benefits.

Recruitment, promotion and remuneration

We recruit talents through our social networking and online
recruitment platforms. During the recruitment process, we
conduct thorough assessment of candidates based on their
work experience, skills and suitability for the position. Our
assessments are independent of gender, marital status,
pregnancy, disability, age, family status, race, sexual orientation,
religion, and nationality to ensure employment equality. A
contract of employment will be provided to the appointee and
signed prior to commencement of services. A duly signed
employment contract specifies all rights and benefits provided
to the employee, including working hours and vacation rights in
accordance with local regulations. Salaries and promations are
based on job-related skills, qualifications and performance. In
order to mativate and boost staff morale, the management of
the Group conducts annual performance appraisal of employees
and provides promotion opportunities for outstanding
employees.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2024/25

EIE L IEREF

AEBEHE(BTABREESNE) - GFilE
BHE) R(EIFM) STREAREEH
FEREREE B TERE-BRY FE
e AREMFEMENSFHR-

HHE - BT R B

BRAEBHERF e RBRBEFaABEAL
EMEE?EH%%B%%EP RMEREBEEREENTHERL

BREAETEABMAETEZEMN G HMAW
FHE R Z MR EAAORN 'R BR - FR R
AR Bk HRE RBREEESERNR
E BRIEXFIZF-BREANKRK TEES
WHERERGAIZZ EXAREZNEFES OBE
HREMREBIRHMHPAERMNREN 217 THER

A M & B AR B IRRIER - MBS TS
AERBTEEBNKRE ERRRR - RABE

I&Tm%é\liﬂ'ﬁﬁlﬁﬁiﬁiﬂﬁé
ETHEUEHE RESEERUBUETHE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B ERELEE

Welfare

The Group recognises that attractive remuneration and benefits
encourage staff retention and enhance a sense of belonging. In
addition to basic salary, employees are entitled to diversified
benefits including social and medical insurance in Mainland
China, medical insurance in Hong Kong, and marriage leave,
maternity and paternity leave, compassionate leave and funeral
leave. The Group also offers overtime pay and all perquisites
and allowances required by the government. Overtime requests
are made in advance, and eligible requests are supported with
benefits such as transportation allowance, compensated leave
and overtime pay. The Group also participates in retirement
benefit schemes in Mainland China and Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for qualifying employees.

Equal opportunity and non-discrimination

With the objective of building a diversified and inclusive
workplace culture, the Group is committed to creating and
maintaining an inclusive and collaborative workplace culture. In
addition, the Group is committed to providing equal opportunity
in all aspects of employment and protecting employees from
discrimination, physical or verbal abuse on the basis of gender,
age, religious beliefs, disability, race, political affiliation and
marital status.

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

We attach high importance to occupational health and safety.
In order to create a safe, healthy and comfortable working
environment for our employees, we have mainly taken the
following measures:

° Regularly checking and replenishing the first aid kit to
ensure available necessary supplies;

° Strictly prohibiting smoking in all enclosed areas of the
office;

° Regularly inspecting and maintaining equipment and fire
extinguishers;
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° Encouraging employees to participate in fire drills
organised by the relevant building management companies
to help them familiarise themselves with the escape
routes in case of fire;

° The administration department regularly circulates the
latest information on health and safety to employees to
ensure that they are up-to-date with safety knowledge, and
posters are put up in common work areas to integrate the
safety culture into the workplace;

° Regularly inspecting safety facilities and conducting safety
training for employees to eliminate safety hazards as
much as possible.

The Group had no serious work-related injuries and no lost
workdays due to work-related injuries during the Year and prior
year and did not have any fatal accidents at work in the past
three years. At the same time, we are not aware of any serious
violations of laws and regulations on occupational health and
safety that have a significant impact on the Group, including but
not limited to the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China
((PEAREMBELEE) ), the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases
( (FPEAREFEBZEMRIGE%) ), the Fire Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China ([ {1 #E AR KX MEEFE) ), the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance ( (B2 % & MR 15
%1 ), and the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance ( (& E &5
1) ), among others.
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Aspect B3: Development and Training

We firmly believe that fostering and retaining talent is a core
part of ensuring corporate development and strengthening its
competitiveness. The Group has prepared the Training
Management System ( (F3IE &) ), which formed the
basis of planning and implementation of training system. We
provide the necessary training to our staff according to the
actual needs of different departments and functions. For
instance, we offer induction orientation and appropriate
assistance for every newly-joined staff member. The induction
orientation mainly introduces the Group, its corporate culture,
rules and regulations and code of conduct, etc., which enables
staff to fit into the corporate culture of the Group and further
understand their working environment and responsibility. \We
also encourage our staff to attend external courses to enhance
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their skills.
FY2025 Fya2024
—EC-RHE i pic) S K S
Percentage Average Percentage Average
of employees training of employees training
trained’ hours® trained” hours
ZINETZ 13 XIBEITZ F 15
B NS B = AN
Male 20% 1.33 83% 1.7
By gender S
RMRIE D Female 17% 1.36 75% 0.5
gk
Management 38% 6.31 83% 0.2
By employee category E12
ZETHERES General employees 17% 0.71 75% 1.6
EEET

6 The average training hours per employee are calculated by the
total number of training hours for the year divided by the total
number of employees under the respective category as of the
end of the financial year.

7 The percentage of employees trained is calculated based on the
number of employees trained in the specific group during the year
divided by the total number of employees in the specific group as
of 31 March.
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Aspect B4: Labor Standards

The Group is fully aware that the employment of child labour
and forced labour will lead to condemnation from all sides, and
therefore has the responsibility to seriously oppose the
employment of child labour and forced labour. During the Year,
the Group has not violated any employment regulations relating
to the prevention of child labour or forced labour, including but
not limited to the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China
((Fh#E AR FLME 4L E L) ), the Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China ( (1 ZE AR £ FE L E) & [F)E) ), the
Employment Promotion Law of the PRC ( (fF#E AR MBI %
f2#5%) ), the Social Insurance Law of the PRC ( {fF & A B30
Bt & 1RK5%) ), the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57, Laws
of Hong Kong], the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608,
Laws of Hong Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485, Laws of Hong Kong].

Employment in the Group is conducted on a fair, open and
voluntary basis. All staff have entered into employment
contracts and there is no forced labour. At the same time, the
human resources department is required to conduct age
verification of job seekers to avoid cases of child labour. If child
labour and forced labour are found, the Group will immediately
terminate the contract with them and hold the responsible
person accountable.
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Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

Cinema Cities selects suppliers in accordance with the
established Supplier Qualification Requirements and Product
Procurement Standards ( (tEREE EK R ERREBIZE) ),
and requires them to provide legal and effective business
qualification certificates or industry entry certificates. The
suppliers of Cinema Cities are cinema companies approved by
the National Radio and Television Administration. Cinema Cities
show films that comply with regulations according to national
regulations.

\We are actively concerned about the environmental and social
risk management of our suppliers, and we will gradually deepen
the ESG risk management of our suppliers while establishing
long-term and stable cooperative relationships with them. For
suppliers supplying food products or food raw materials, the
Group requires the relevant suppliers to provide proof of
inspection issued by a state authority or a third-party testing
organisation. If the products relate to the brand agencies, the
suppliers must provide the authorised agent certificate issued
by the original brand manufacturers.

The geographical distribution of the Group’s suppliers is as
follows:

Geographical region
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Number of major suppliers

WE FEHEFHAE
FY2025 Fy2024

—E-HBE T _NEFE

Mainland China 2 )

R A B

Hong Kong 1 1

BB

Total 3 6

-

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any potential
negative impacts on business ethics, environmental protection,
human rights and labour practices, nor any non-compliance
incident caused by suppliers.
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
Cinema Business
Product quality and safety

Health and safety are the two crucial factors of the Group’s
products and services. All employees comply with the Cinema
Service and Product System ( (R RELERGIE) ) and
regularly check the food shelf life and storage conditions to
ensure food safety and environmental hygiene. The Bingo
Cinema City Operation Standard Manual ( (tt =& #H & EE 4
F i) ) also stipulates that the Operation Department of
Cinema Cities should inspect fire extinguishers, fire hose reels,
emergency lights and other fire control equipment regularly to
ensure their normal operation.

To ensure the supply of the highest quality services to
customers, the Group has set up feedback and complaints
procedures for its customers. The Group values the opinions
and feedback of each customer and shall continue to improve
the quality of services supplied by us in accordance with such
feedback. During the Year, the Group did not receive any major
complaints, nor were there any product recalls due to safety or
health reasons.

In addition, we have put in place the following key measures to
ensure the cleanliness of cinemas:

o Control the number of tickets sold and the seating
capacity of each cinema;

° Provide disinfecting hand rub in the cinema cities;

° Disinfect the frequently touched areas, such as counter
desk, door handles; and

° Disinfect the entire auditorium before the start of each
show.
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New Media Business
Promoation and labelling

In the content production of the New Media Business, the
Group strictly complies with the Regulation on the
Administration of Radio and Television Program Production and
Operation ( (EEERE B 2/EL L BEIERTE) ), the Advertising
Law of the Peoples Republlc of China ( (R ZE AR EXMEE S
7%) ), the Provisional Measures for the Administration of
Internet Advertising ( (B E M ESE IR E1798%) ), the Code of
Conduct for Livestreaming Marketing ( (A4 EHE & H1T AR
&) ) and other relevant laws and regulations on advertising
It is strictly prohibited to publish content
containing violence, pornography, vulgarity, false information,

and marketing.

defamation of others, or material that endangers national
interests. All content of the New Media Business must be
approved before production and external distribution, to avoid
any form of false publicity and to ensure the truth and accuracy
of the publicity content.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to the quality of
products of the New Media Business.

Protection of data privacy

The Group recognises that stakeholders are concerned about
data privacy and therefore strives to protect data privacy in
order to safeguard corporate interests and comply with
relevant laws and regulations. The Group has outlined the data
privacy requirements and confidentiality obligations in its
internal control policy. Employees are expected to strictly
comply with and carefully manage the confidential information
of the business, including but not limited to customers’ business
information and personal data, trade secrets and price-sensitive
information. We collect data solely in a lawful and fair manner,
with explicit disclosure of the purposes and scope of its use.
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We prevent unauthorised data access or accidental data
leakage by providing relevant employees with data security
training. Furthermore, we adopt different approaches to aid the
safeguarding of the personal database, such as anti-virus
software and firewalls, network diagnostic tools and data
encryption. Mechanisms are also in place that ensure any
infringement of personal data privacy protection rights is dealt
with in a timely manner.

During the Year, there was no material non-compliance or
violation of the relevant laws and regulations on privacy.

Intellectual property rights

We emphasise the importance of protecting our intellectual
property rights, i.e., movie copyrights, authorships, trademarks
and domain names. To this end, we make every effort to
comply with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Personal Information ([ (& #& A R FIE E A (= 2
{R7&)%) ), the Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China
((PZEARKFMEZERE L) ), the Civil Code of the People’s
Republic of China ( (FZE AR £ B K )AHH) ), the Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China [ (Fh#ZE AR X HMEI4 F
%)), and other relevant laws and regulations on intellectual
property right protection. To strictly prevent copyright
infringement, the Group has signed confidentiality agreements
with all contractors and business partners, which include
clauses prohibiting the use of unauthorised film copyrights.

Meanwhile, for the New Media Business, we also ensure that
the copyright of the materials we use (e.g. background music
requires authorisation) is legal through material vetting and
regular training.

During the Year, there was no material non-compliance or
violation of the relevant laws and regulations on intellectual
property rights.
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Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

The Group has zero tolerance for any unethical business
practices, including but not limited to corruption, bribery, fraud
and money laundering. The Group has developed an Anti-
bribery,/Anti-corruption Policy ( {2 B585, & M%) ) and the
Employee Handbook ([ (& T Ffit) ) to guide employees in
reporting suspicious cases. The Group is committed to
protecting the legitimate interests of whistleblowers without
revealing their identities. Any substantiated case will be treated
as misconduct and the person involved will be subject to
disciplinary action, dismissal or reported to the relevant
authorities. The Group will also regularly disseminate
summaries of anti-corruption warning cases and policy updates
to directors and executives to convey the message of integrity.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
breach of laws and regulations relating to the prevention of
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that would
materially affect the Group, including but not limited to the Anti-
Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China ( (&
#F£ARLFBER%EEE) ), the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of
the People’s Republic of China ( (FEAREMBE R TEE HF
/%) ), the Provisional Provisions on Prohibition of Bribery in
Business ( (AR ZELBHEBRITR/NETHRE) ) and the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance ( <F7 1t B6 8% 1§ 71) ) of Hong
Kong. At the same time, the Group is not aware of any
corruption cases filed against it or its employees (FY2024: Nil).

Aspect B8: Community Investment

During the Year, the Group did not support community projects
through resources and sponsorship. However, the Group will
encourage its employees to participate in community service
and volunteer activities during work and leisure hours.
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CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants
BRI 3T ER F TR R A
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability]

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 101 to 215, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, consolidated statement of other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2025, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. \We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group has incurred losses
for a number of years. The Group has incurred a net loss of
HK$23,262,000 for the year ended 31 March 2025 and
sustained capital deficiency of HK$31,723,000 at 31 March
2025. These events or conditions, along with other matters as
set forth in Note 2, indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

In addition to the matters described in the Material Uncertainty
Related to Going Concern section, we have determined the
matter described below to be the key audit matter to be
communicated in our report.

BRZER

BANEZTEDERREBGAMASRMZ
BAEBRTER ([EAFEERDET-RME
ZEEAT 2 EECDERRE (X BN FXER
BMBRKRBAEZ L] B0 FIEE— SR -
REELSTMASEMZEXSANERT
(MR BB E&E YEREST
AETHRMOEMEREE - HAIEE RPI
ERzERZREERACNEEHRRMANER
PRgLERE -

BSREERRNEXTREY

RREISRCMBRRME2 EFET B
BozsELFER BEXRERBE_T_AF

= A=+ HIFEELFIEFHE23,262,000
B MR E_RAF =A==+ HAEASZEARE
#1131,723,000/% 7T - % & S (kAR @ RIFT
PAHHEMEREEN FEEATHEREZXRS
SIBE BEEMBELCERNBENEKRRER-
BT ARRHEEERIFEREER -

HEERER

FREFELEERNEATHREEE —EMH
FEIN HPEEE TREERARMRET KA
BERRESSFIER

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

=5



o5

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ORVR S S

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

How the matter
was addressed in our audit

RREBEZFEHEREBRMANEXZHE RAERN

PG BBRRCBEGRABEEZER %FE
Iﬁmﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁf,ﬁ%éﬁﬁx#&i&Hjﬂ,ﬁﬁu
FETREN R T SHZEFTREREBE
B

Revenue from cinema investment
and management business and
filmed entertainment, new media
exploitations and licensing businesses
Refer to Notes 7 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements

We identified revenue recognised
from cinema investment and
management business and filmed
entertainment, new media exploitations
and licensing businesses as a key
audit matter as revenue recognised
is guantitatively significant to the
consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The Group recognised revenue of
approximately HK$2,747,000 and
HK$9,367,000 from cinema
investment and management
business and filmed entertainment,
new media exploitations and
licensing businesses for the year
ended 31 March 2025 respectively.
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Our procedures in relation to
revenue from cinema investment
and management business and
filmed entertainment, new media
exploitations and licensing
businesses included:

— Obtaining an understanding
of the revenue process of
those businesses;

— Understanding the key
controls over the recognition
of revenue from those
businesses;

— Performing test of details,
on sample basis, by
comparing the details and
amounts shown on the
underlying documentation,
including the contracts,
journal vouchers, sale

invoices, statement of

accounts and box office

takings report; and

— Performing cut-off
procedures for revenue from
those businesses.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal contral.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consoclidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. \We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Chun Sing

Practising Certificate number PO6998

Hong Kong, 27 June 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

BaRAaR
iy = ?Eﬁ

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

2025 2024
—E_HEF —E e
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 FET FET
Revenue g 5 7,8 12,114 7,848
Cost of sales and services HE K RIS A (5.949) (3.5239]
Gross profit EF 6,165 4,323
Other revenue and other net income EoAth ras K E A A g 232 689
Selling and marketing expenses $HE K& A X (820) (558)
Administrative expenses THHAX (20,244) (13,241)
Share-based payment VAR 7 B EL 1 2 53R (4,591) -
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE 19 = (1,082)
Impairment of ather receivables H b WS IE R B (213) -
Share of result of an associate DR — R L A B EE 1 (3)
Finance costs B & AR 7R 10 (2,320) (2,132)
Loss before taxation B i AT S 18 11 (21,792) (12,004)
Taxation sl 14 (1,470) (69)
Loss for the year REEZEE (23,262) (12,073)
Loss attributable to: AR EE

Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZZ =N (21,447) (12,781)
Non-controlling interests FEFEIR S (1,815) 708
(23,262) (12,073)
HK cents HK cents
Bl oAl

Loss per share BRER 16
Basic and diluted AR R #E (20.89) (12.45)

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FaRtElkaE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

2025 2024
“EZHF ZEEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Loss for the year AFEEFR (23,262) (12,073)
Other comprehensive income Hih2EBA
Item that may be reclassified HEnE 7 HEZBm HE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BREBINEREFZERZHE
foreign operations
— Exchange differences arising — AFEEECERER
during the year 319 280
Other comprehensive income for the REFEMPEMBA  HIKRHIE
year, net of tax 319 280
Total comprehensive loss AEEXHEBEARE
for the year (22,943) (11,793)
Other comprehensive income BEEMEEBA:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIE ES DN 263 184
Non-controlling interests FEE AR M 56 96
319 280
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EaEEBA S (F8)#58:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KABER A (21,184) (12,597)
Non-controlling interests FEEAR (1,759) 804
(22,943) (11,793)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIKRAER

At 31 March 2025
RZFEZAF=A=+—H

2025 2024
—E-FHF —E_NF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Wzt FTET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment E BN L] 17 103 115
Right-of-use assets CRREE 18 521 -
Interests in an associate M — 5 A R 20 14 19
Rental deposits HEZR® 23 325 478
963 612
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories "rE 21 - 17
Trade receivables JiE W R R 22 151 168
Other receivables, deposits and Hith eI IR iR R FERT
prepayments KB 23 12,048 493
Cash and cash equivalents ReNRBELFEY 24 40,226 13,593
52,425 14,271
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBE
Trade payables JE ST BR R 25 211 208
Other payables and accruals H fth FE A 50IE R FEET R IE 26 57,727 2,882
Contract liabilities S ON=Kr 27 8,395 8,283
Convertible bonds Al E 29 17,180 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 28 976 1,329
Tax payables FET IR 80 69
84,569 12,771
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS #iE (&%)  EEFE (32,144) 1,900
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERABAE
LIABILITIES (31,181) 2,112

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SaMERARE

At 31 March 2025
RZFEZAF=A=+—H

2025 2024
—ZE-HF —EmMEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EFBEE
Convertible bonds AIMRES 29 = 15,031
Lease liabilities HEEE 28 542 994
542 16,025
NET LIABILITIES BEFHE (31,723) (13,913)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAR#HE
Share capital [N 30 10,265 10,265
Reserves e (39,124) (22,531)
(28,859) (12,266)
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR M 35 (2,864) (1,647)
TOTAL CAPITAL DEFICIENCY BARE A4 58 (31,723) (13,913)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 215

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 27 June 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHOW Man Ki Kelly
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GeERE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

Equity Attributable
component Share to owners Non-
Share Share  Contributed of convertible options  Exchange Accumulated of the  controlling
capital premium surplus bonds reserve reserve losses Company interests Total
TERES AR
BA RiEE B4ER BERS BRERSG EXRE ZHERE  BEARGE  FERER &zt
HK$000  HK$000  HK$OOO  HK$000  HKPOOO  HK$O00  HKEOOD ~ HK$O00  HKEOOD  HK$OOO
TR TEr TEL TR TR TEL TEL TR TAL TEL
At 31 March 2023 i 23
=f=+-A 102685 424560 132,237 8,743 2,788 (1811)  (579462) (2,480) 360 (2,120
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - (12,781 (12,781) 708 (12,073)
Other comprehensive income for the  AFE M 2EKA
year
— Exchange differences —BEEEZ
anising on translation EXZR - - - - - 184 - 184 9 280
Total comprehensive loss AEEREFRLE
for the year - - - - - 184 (12,781) (12,597) 804 (11,793)
Lapse of share options BRELR - - - - (1,323) - 1,323 - - -
Disposal of subsidianies to mEERERLENE
non-controlling interests A - - - - - - 2,811 2,811 2811 -
At 31 March 2024 i
=A=1+-H 10265 424,580 132,237 8,743 1,465 (1,427) (588,109)  (12,266) (1647)  (13913)
Loss for the year TEEER = = = = = = (21,447)  (21,447) (1,815)  (28,262)
Other comprehensive income for the  AEE 2 EMA
year
— Exchange differences —REEFVERER
arising on translation - - - - - 263 - 263 56 319
Total comprehensive loss AEEREEREE
for the year - - - - - 263 (21,447)  (21,184) (1,759)  (22,943)
Issue of share aptions - - - - 4,591 - - 4,591 - 4,591
Contribution from non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - - 542 542
At 31 March 2025
10265 424560 132,237 8,743 6,056 (1,164)  (609,556)  (28,859) (2,864) (31,723

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERaRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

2025 2024
—E-REF —ENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETH2EHERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation BB AT EE (21,792) (12,004)
Adjustments for: BB T & I8
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss RIBa R Z B E K AR 2,320 2,132
Interest income B YA (142) (44)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1%  B&E MR EITE 13 12
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 15 589
Impairment of right-of-use assets FEREEEZRE - 1,082
Impairment of other receivables E th fE IR IE 2 R A 213 -
Share of result of an associate AME—HBERRESR 1 3
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BB RRE 2 W
equipment - (224)
Share-based payment VAR 17 A B8 2 R 3R 4,591 -
Rent concession HeE=E - (20)
Operating cash flows before working EEEREHAIZ
capital changes KERERE (14,781) (8,474)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories BFERL, () 17 (17)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables FEUWBRFUR AL, (38 h0) 14 (38)
Increase in other receivables, deposits and HithfEIHIE - 1R e Rk
prepayments TR FRIBIE AN (11,713) (96)
Increase in trade payables FEAT BR FRIE AN 6 71
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables and E fth fE A 018 K JE 5T R IE
accruals #n/ O 55,259 (807)
Increase in contract liabilities AR BEEM 235 1,115
CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) wEHE (AR
OPERATIONS 29,037 (8,2486)
Interest received B WALE 142 44
Income tax paid BRI (1,459) -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) REFERRB (A2
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFHE 27,720 (8,202)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
melifRsE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE_FE_hF=A=1+—HIFE

2025 2024
b 2 —ZEmEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hi st FER FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHZ2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and BEEWE WELE&EE
equipment (3) (5]
Proceed from disposal of property, HEME -BEMEEZ
plant and equipment Fri5 318 - 224
Repayment from/(Advance to) T-REBERRZ
an associate B (BFR) 4 (6)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RETEFBZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEFHE 1 213
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBH2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liabilities EEMEAR (1,323) (1,084)
Interest paid ERHE (171) (247)
Capital contribution from non-controlling  JE#2 Hﬂ% @R
interests 542 -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING RMEEERAZ
ACTIVITIES ReFHE (952) (1,341)
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRBESESEYEM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS O 2) 26,769 (9,330)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUzEERESEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 13,593 22,993
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 7|\ [& & & &) » 5/ 2 (136) (70)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZEGRESEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 24 40,226 13,593

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERaRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

MEETBDAMEEARZHIE

TRFANAEEREZDAEEREZES (B
ERERIFRGEY) BMEIZBAELRET
ReRBCK(IARKAECREFRE)RNAKH
FERERERTOBRREZBMELRS
mEZBE

Total liabilities

Convertible Lease from financing

bonds liabilities activities

REEEMEE

TRRES HESE =REgt |

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FAET FHET

At 1 April 2023 R-ZE-=ZFMA—H 13,146 1,821 14,967

Financing cash flow MERERE - (1,341) (1,341)
Interest expenses FEFX 1,885 247 2,132
New leases entered RN ATHE - 1,671 1,671

Rent concession HeE=R - (20) (20)

Exchange adjustments I A - (55) (55)

At 31 March 2024 and RZE-_NF=ZA=+—H8xRK

1 April 2024 —E-mMFNPA—H 15,031 2,323 17,354

Financing cash flow MERERE — (1,494) (1,494)
Interest expenses FEMAX 2,149 171 2,320
New leases entered RN ATHE - 539 539

Exchange adjustments R - 21) @1)
At 31 March 2025 RZZEZRF=-A=+—H 17,180 1,518 18,698
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Bingo Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company's subsidiaries are
set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollars (*HK$"), which is also the presentation currency of
the consolidated financial statements. The functional
currency of the subsidiaries of the Company mainly
includes Renminbi ("RMB”) and HKS$. All values are
rounded to nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.

The registered office of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The head office and principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is Unit
202, 2/F., Chinaweal Centre, 414-424 Jaffe Road, Hong
Kong. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
consider the Company’s ultimate holding company to be
Beglobal Investments Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that
the Group has incurred losses for a number of years and
a net loss of HK$23,262,000 during the year ended 31
March 2025 and the Group’s capital deficiency as of 31
March 2025 amounted to HK$31,723,000.

In order to improve the Group’s financial position, to
provide liquidity and cashflows and to sustain the Group’s
as a going concern, the management has taken and/or
will take the following measures:

() The Group is taking measures to tighten cost
controls over various operating costs and expenses
with the aim to attain profitable and positive cash
flow operation;

(i) The Group has negotiated and agreed with
substantial shareholders of the Company to provide
financial support; and

(i)  The Group will seek for other potential business to
generate positive cash flow.

The directors of the Company considered that the Group
will have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future
working capital and other financing requirement.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company considered that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

a)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after
1 April 2024 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liahility in a Sale
and Leaseback
Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)
Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants
Supplier Finance
Arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
(Continued)

b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 9  Amendments to the

and HKFRS 7 Classification and
Measurement of Financial
Instruments®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Venture'
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to
Accounting Standards HKFRS Accounting

Standards — Volume 118
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure
in Financial Statements*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2026.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2027.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all these amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future, except for
HKFRS 18 which will impact the presentation of
profit or loss. The Group is still in the process of
evaluating the impact of adoption of HKFRS 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it contrals an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

a)

ANNUAL
2024/25

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity therein,
which represent present ownership interests entitling
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

REPORT &3

4.

EXEHBERREHR @

a)

FEREEEGE)
MEARZMBHRER %@
HEE - UEEEFBER
R — 2o

ERE
BN LR E

AEEREAAMZBEBNHAE
LSS N T NN
A RReRERGAEARKBEH
-

A B~ B RO SRR A M 2 B A SR [
m*ﬂﬂﬁzﬂ Bl KRET
HF5A ARNRBERERLG D16
HEMNBRRINEEFENREM
B

FEEREH B LT RS
25

AEERHBAR R 2 E8 (M
VTEEFAKEREHMBRARZ
BEHE)EERARS AR NEE
%\Zﬁ@%ﬁ&#TkE\Z$
EESTAFE  ARRRHE A
ZHRY R 2 @%E%$%E
B i es  aR Lf HAKE
HEIFER S 2 H 2 HAREERN
e

SEE R 2 AR AT sk
WRF“¥@2ﬁzEH§$:WE
BERERTER UEBRARRE
BAe



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

b)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straightline method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20%

Leasehold impraovement

Plant and machinery 10%

Computers 25-33%

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 25%

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

c)

ANNUAL
2024/25

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

c)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

c)

ANNUAL
2024/25

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (‘ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, and bank balances) which are subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

(i

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

c)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

(i

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

(ii]

(iii]

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collateral held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

(iii]

(iv]

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

White-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over one
year past due, whichever occurs sooner.

Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

]

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The Group
uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables using a provision matrix taking
into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

]

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued]

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

c)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, debt component of
convertible bonds and lease liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

c)

ANNUAL
2024/25

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible bonds are
classified separately as financial liability and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. A conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’'s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component (including any embedded non-equity
derivatives features) is estimated by measuring the
fair value of similar liability that does not have an
associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component
from the fair value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net
of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the
conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
share premium. Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible bond, the balance recognised in equity
will be transferred to accumulated losses. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.

REPORT &3

EXEHBERREHR @

c)

SRMIAE)
EHEERKA(E)
] H R (& 55

MR EFOEKRE D HIRES LD
THZABARERBEREART
AzEE BRI BEAEREELE
a5 o fisd 2 P H R S 58 38 DA B E 2 B Y
Bed»s AT rEERREFE R
BNARRBRATAZER AIDER
PRART A -

RETRE AaEHS (BREEMKR
AREBASTETARZ) 2 AFE
NEBAEYEMEBAERL D 28
UEENRTFERE-

DRARAZBRBRETEBNE
BESTAEZAFERNAEER
DERETE HBRMBEAEREE
REEaEALAR BEETTE
et & utsh D B R 2 B
B —BEREREDZAN BEEZBRK
HIETERSL EHERT #a
MR AR E R ERO EE - o
B RERTRRESZIHAD
AT AR RERBR L ERGEA
RETEE - BRI RE L R 2
#1718 21 A BE 8 ] R ot 2 S

8o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

d)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

4.

EXEHBERREHR @

d)

ME BERRBUAREREEE
HYRLE

RABREHRR AEEFHNEYE
BB REEARERAEEENER®E
B UNEERGEEABRBTZS
BELBBERR HWFEETAZSE
PR AletstAEEENAKEE
B AEEREEE (IA)WNEE-

ME-BEERBRERBEEENT
U 13 5 B8 J5 98 37 (A ET o fisd SO (8 Bl 4
FAEEZAMOSE  NREBEE MG
ZEEMBREELEM 2T IE
TH

IR S EL BOETRER B -
AR —EAEER By R EE
RAEEERIRIEEREEL
B BRIBEROEEA R —E
R R B D EEENK/NAR
MREELFEMN RO EIE QR
ﬁ?%%%ﬁ%%i%ﬁiﬁ%%
TEUMARETE LEMERRSESL
BEUXBREeELEVARNNKEE
TELL 8L -

AT E & R AR S KA
FREEMETRRSE Ll ER
BER G RNBSRERATA
BRI KRB HIRE  Z W AR IR X
REEZEAMTSHELESHEERE
E(ReEEBMN)FTERRAT
WM s RRBEREOMGET R

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

LLeEEZERARAE

27



2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

d)

ANNUAL
2024/25

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a
group of cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generating units) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025

BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

e)

f)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances that
are subject to regulatory restrictions that result
in such balances no longer meeting the
definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-
term (generally with original maturity of three
months or less), highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are
held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments rather than for investment
or other purposes.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect
of the time value of money is material).

4.

EXEHBERREHR @

e)

f)

RERRSEEY

REAMBERRARR2INHEE R
ReEHEMEE:

(a) Re BRFERE LEHF
FABREIEERBIENA
MESRTENAREERNR
1THERR )

(b) REFEY BRAEREHR
REMEBEES AP REE
2R ITIESNEH (KRB
MEEF=EARNZH) SR
HERE-REFEWMIRET
MRS AEMTE - M IE(F
RENHMARE -

B

EAKERRX-—ERLEEHmAE
BBEECAEREE) MAKH
RAEAETZEL BEESHEE
A SEM AT (R e TR -

HRASBRBENTBESNREDRRE
TEEREMFRENKEMST &
hEtREEEABEAER K THEA
AE-ZERBEARTRBETIHRS
A ReREBFER  HEREERZ
EReRENRE(ReBEKHEEE
NEEBENXN) °

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

LLeEEZERARAE

2



20!

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

g) Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception of the contract. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed. As a practical expedient, leases with
similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio
basis when the Group reasonably expects that the
effects on the consolidated financial statements
would not differ materially from individual leases

within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee

(i) Allocation of consideration to components of a

contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease

components.

Non-lease components are separated from
lease component and are accounted for by

applying other applicable standards.

(i) Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of staff
guarters that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. Lease payments
on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another

systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

g) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(i} Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on
which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

g)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued]

(ii]  Right-of-use assets (Continued)

(iv]

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EXEHBREREH@®
(Continued)
g) Leases (Continued) g) HEGE)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) @ AETN (A7)
(iv] Lease liabilities (Continued)] (iv) HHEEBEE)

The lease payments include: (Continued)

° the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes
in market rental rates are initially measured
using the market rental rates as at the
commencement date. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are
recognised as expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs. When a lease contract contains a
specific clause that provides for rent reduction
or suspension of rent in the event that the
underlying assets (or any part thereof) are
affected by adverse events beyond the contral
of the Group and the lessor so as to render the
underlying assets unfit or not available for use,
the relevant rent reduction or suspension of
rent resulting from the specific clause is
accounted for as part of the original lease and
not as a lease madification. Such rent reduction
or suspension of rent is recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers those payments to
occur.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

g) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(iv] Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease

payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to
changes in market rental rates following a
market rent review, in which cases the
related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

h)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

The performance obligations of the Group for
contracts with customers are summarised as
follows:

Cinema investment and management business

The Group sells movies tickets, snacks and
accessories to customers both through its own
cinema and through internet sales.

Income from box office takings is recognised when
the movies have been broadcasted and revenue from
selling snacks and accessories is recognised when
control of goods have been transferred to the
customers. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases the
movies tickets, snacks and accessories.

The management services income represents
cinema management services provided. The Group
considers the performance obligation is satisfied
over time as the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.

For others, it mainly represents the sale of movie
related goods, services charges for registration of
membership and for the re-issuance of membership
cards for those card lost cases. The income was
recognised when control of movie related goods have
been transferred to the customers and the
membership cards were issued to the members.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

h)

ANNUAL
2024/25

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Cinema investment and management business
(Continued)

A contract liability is recognised for the prepayment
made by the customers in the membership cards.
The balance will be recognised as revenue at the
point when movies are broadcasted or when the
customers purchase snacks and accessories.

Filmed entertainment, new media exploitations and
licensing businesses

The Group sells movie-themed tourbillon watches to
independent third parties. Revenue from sales of
watches is recognised when the product is delivered
to customer and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’'s acceptance of the
products. It is the Group’s policy to sell its products
to the customers with a right to replace faulty
products for another product within a reasonable
period after delivery. These rights of return do not
allow the returned goods to be refunded in cash. No
liability in respect of the right to return goods are
recognised as insignificant amount of returns are
expected based on past experience.

The Group licenses intellectual property rights to
independent third parties for variety shows. Revenue
from licensing intellectual property rights is
recognised when the intellectual property rights were
granted to customers a right to access over time or
a right to use at a point in time.

The guidance service income represents guidance
service provided for variety shows. The Group
considers the performance obligation is satisfied
over time as the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2025
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

h)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Filmed entertainment, new media exploitations and
licensing businesses (Continued)

For promotion services income, the Group considers
the performance obligations are sourcing new
registered members for subscription fee in a
platform and producing videos and arranging
webcasts on various internet platforms. The
performance obligations are satisfied at a point in
time at which the video is uploaded and the webcast
is held on those various internet platforms.

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of current
and deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss)
before tax because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

i)

ANNUAL
2024/25

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the
time of the transaction does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

i)

k)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as
an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages, salaries, annual leaves
and sick leaves) after deducting any amount already
paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2025
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

1)

Share-based payments arrangement

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions

(i

Share options granted to directors and
employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

1)

Share-based payments arrangement (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
(Continued]

0}

(ii]

Share options granted to directors and
employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When
share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Share options granted to non-employees

Equity-settled share-based payments
transactions with advisors other than
employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that
fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair
values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses (unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

m)

n)

ANNUAL
2024/25

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group, that is HKS,
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

n)

o)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal invalving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group, as follows:

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

o) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

\%]

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are the members
of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-empolyment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of the parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with

the entity.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2025
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal to the related actual results.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
and right-of-use assets

Determining whether property, plant and equipment,
and right-of-use assets are impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which they belong to. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Details of impairment assessment of cash-generating
units are disclosed in Note 18.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

ANNUAL
2024/25

Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

®MTR

SRIAER
AEBEEHeREERBBERNR
EHRZEEENAT
2025 2024
—EZHF —E e
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT

Financial assets
Financial assets measured at
amortised cost

TREE

WEHK AT ENEREE

Trade receivables JE U AR R 151 168
Amount due from an associate JEU—fEEEE AR 27 31
Financial assets included in other FEAHMEWRRIE RIES
receivables and deposits LERMEE 1,335 784
Bank balances and cash RITESH LIRS 40,226 13,593
41,739 14,576
Financial liabilities tEaE
Financial liabilities measured at RHEKNAFEZ2RMBE
amortised cost
Trade payables JE - BR 3K 211 208
Financial liabilities included in other AT E At B A 5ROE K AT
payables and accruals HIEZeRERE 3,547 2,882
Convertible bonds AR ES 17,180 15,031
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,518 2,323
22,456 20,444
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For the Year ended 31 March 2025
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, convertible bonds and lease
liabilities. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in
a timely and effective manner.

(i) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign currency.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through sales, purchases and
recognised assets and liabilities that are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States Dollars (“US$")
and RVIB.

The Group currently does not expect any
significant movements in the exchange rate of
USS$ to HK$ and it is mainly exposed to the
effects of fluctuation in RMB. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy, however, the management
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &#MIRw®
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) FIHEMEEBMNRBERE)
(Continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (] SMERE (&)

The policies to manage foreign currency risk
have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to be effective.

The carrying amounts of monetary assets and

AEEBBERFUR—EMN
P& R OME R B 2 BOR - 3 AR
REB -

EAi&:‘:H}HE NEREBE QA

liabilities which were denominated in currencies NeEBBLUIINEE(EERA
(mainly RMB) other than the functional currency RE)GIENEEEEREEDN
of the relevant group companies at the end of REEST:
the reporting period are as follows:
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
—E-RE —T_MF
=Z=A=+t—-H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Bank balances and cash RITABR NI ® 1,190 3,923
Sensitivity analysis BRZE ST
The following table indicates the instantaneous TEREFNNBERRANEET
change in the Group's loss after tax (and b B K JEL B ) S BE D R B0

accumulated losses) that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all
other risk variables remained constant. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the HK$ and the US$ would be
materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the US$ against other
currencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &#MIRw®
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) FIHEMEEBMNRBERE)
(Continued)

(il SMNER (&)

(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRE W (&)
2025 2024
—ECRE —EopE

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) Loss after (decrease) Loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated

rates losses rates losses

Bxtf/ RBRIELCEE EXrA/ KigESE

(T¥&)) REFERE (T¥%) KREFEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FTAET

Renminbi AR 5% (59) 5% (196)
(5%) 59 (5%) 196

ERFAESMERERZE
MmMGAHEIREEREN

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group ZEBEERBRTEBE R ER
entities’ loss after tax and equity measured in RMEMRBITERL R A
the respective functional currencies, translated TR SRR

into HK$ at the exchange rate ruling at the end

of the reporting period for presentation

purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’'s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2024.

BRKE DT R B INEE REF)
BEAREHANEREEMF
ﬁﬁzli‘%lb%i&iﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁ\\
ERBROESHIAE - HITTE
BRESIINEBTBRR BN
%.I;ﬂj SHTEEMER-
AWIRE - T —MFEERHE
HEHETT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025

BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(ii]

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group is exposed to the cash flow interest
rate risk due to its bank deposits carrying
interest at variable rates which is disclosed in
Note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements and fair value interest rate risk due
to its convertible bonds carrying interest at
fixed rates which are disclosed in Note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements
respectively. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy and does not
use any derivative instruments to reduce its
economic exposure to the changes in interest
rates.

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group’s
convertible bonds bore an imputed interest at
fixed rate and the bank deposits are carrying
minimal interest rates. Management considers
the exposure to the changes in market interest
rate should not be materially enough to cause
adverse financial effect on the Group’s position.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
and are considered to be effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(i} Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the
counterparty to a financial instrument would fail
to discharge its obligation under the terms of
the financial instrument and cause a financial
loss to the Group. The Group’'s exposure to
credit risk mainly arises from the ordinary
course of its operations and the loan to an
associate.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash at bank, trade and other receivables
and deposits. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash at bank are placed with high-credit-quality
institutions and directors of the Group consider
that the credit risk for such is minimal.

In respect of trade receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. Debtors
with overdue balances, which will be reviewed
on a case-by-case basis, are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk in respect
of trade and other receivables, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
allowances are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade
balances individually or based on provision
matrix. In this regard, the directors of the
Group consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

6.

&€MTHG®

(b)

BMERBEEE M RBGR (E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i} Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to
have low credit risk and therefore the loss
allowances are measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime ECL provision for
all trade receivables. To measure the ECLs,
trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. The Group
has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and ECL. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, trade
receivables that are individually significant and
credit impaired have been separately assessed
for impairment. The Group makes periodic
assessments on the recoverability of the
receivables based on the background and
reputation of the customers, historical
settlement records and past experience.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(i} Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s trade receivables arise from revenue
of all businesses. In view of the history of
business dealings with the debtors and the sound
collection history of the receivables due from
them, management believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding receivable balance due from these
debtors. Management makes periodic
assessment on the recoverability of the trade
and other receivables based on historical
payment records, the length of overdue period,
the financial strength of the debtors and whether
there are any disputes with the debtors. The
directors consider the Group’s credit risk of
these receivables to be low except for the
impaired other receivables disclosed below.

The credit quality of other receivables has been
assessed with reference to historical
information about the counterparties default
rates and financial position of the
counterparties. The directors are of the opinion
that the credit risk of these debtors was low
due to the sound collection history of the
receivables due from them. Therefore, the
Group assessed impairment of these balances
based on 12-month ECL and impairment of
other receivables of HK$213,000 (2024:Nil)
was made during the year ended 31 March
2025.

6.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(iv] Concentration risk

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced

mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer and debtor rather than the industry
or country in which the customers and debtors
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group
has significant exposure to individual customers
or debtors.

As at 31 March 2025, other than the
concentration of credit risk on cash at bank,
the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk in trade
and other receivables with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

v

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
assets. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in
respect of settlement of trade payables, other
payables and accruals, convertible bonds and
lease liabilities and also in respect of its cash
flow management. The Group’s objective is to
maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets
and committed lines of funding to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the board of directors (the “Board”) when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels
of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6. €MIT R

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) FIHEMEEBMNRBERE)
(Continued)
(v)  Liquidity risk (Continued) ] REELEE (&)
The liquidity policies have been followed by the AEEEBEBFUR—BEn
Group since prior years and are considered to ARBESHRE WTRBEER
be effective in managing liquidity risks. WEBRREBESRMR-
The following table details the remaining TERARBREARKNEEIET
contractual maturities at the end of the FeRBE (REHFUREA
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative EREBFHE BREREHME
financial liabilities, which are based on SOFEAE (AR EHRE
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including HzRZ)AEZEMNFE)Z
interest payments computed using contractual Fler & &2 8 A R AR A A]
rates or, if floating, based on the rates current WESERZFRARZFE:
at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the company can be required to
pay:
2025
ZEBCRE
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
Effective undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
interest Carrying cash flow  on demand 2 years 5years  More than
rate amount  AHEEE -ERE ZR-EE  SRWER 5 years
BRN=Z REE REREEE EEX SRAE DREE SRAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEx TiEn TEn TiEx
Trade payables ERER - 211 211 211 - - -
Financial liabilties included ~ FFAE MR FER
in other payables e/
and accruals af - 3,547 3,547 3,547 - - -
Convertible bonds MEREES 14.30 17,180 19,000 19,000 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAE 3.25t014.31 1,518 1,616 1,056 372 188 -
3.25%214.31
22,456 24,374 23,814 372 188 -

oc
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &MIR W
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) FIHEMEEBMNRBERE)
(Continued)
(v]  Ligquidity risk (Continued) v FmEELEE (&)
2024
152
Total More than ~ Mare than
contractual Within -~ 1 year but 2 years but
Effective undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
interest Carrying  cashflow  on demand 2 years Syears  More than

rate amount  AAFEER  —FR% SR-FE  ZRPEFE 5 years
ik BHE ReNSLE BEX  LRWE JSREF SRDFE
% HKFOOD  HKEOOO  HK$OOO  HK$OOO  HKSOOO — HK$OOO
TER TER TEn TER TEn TER

Trade payables ERER - 208 208 208 - - -
Financial liabilities included 5t A E e 508 |
in other payables S HEL 2R
and accruals afE - 2,882 2,882 2,882 - - -
Convertible bonds ARES 14.30 15,031 19,000 - 19,000 - -
Lease liabilities HERE 5.38t0 14.31 2,323 2,566 1,500 879 187 -
5.38%14.31
20,444 24,656 4,590 19,879 187 -
(c) Fair values (c) A¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial REERZRBERAINEZEMIA
instruments carried at amortised cost are not JERBEBEHAR ST -_AFNE-F
materially different from their fair values as at 31 THF=ZA=+—HAZAFELE
March 2025 and 2024. EAER-

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED W
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025

=z

7.

—E-—AF=A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the executive directors
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Group’s
operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
two operating segments for the year:

Cinema investment and management business — cinema
investment and provision of cinema management service.

Filmed entertainment, new media exploitations and
licensing businesses — movie production, licensing and
derivatives, crossover marketing, provision of interactive
contents, artist development and last miles engagement.

The revenue from external customers reported to the
management is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Revenue between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions.

Segment result represents the profit or loss by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
including directors’ salaries, investment and other income,
finance costs, share of result of an associate, share-
based payments and income tax expense. This is reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. #BPEHE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, TRIEAZ2MEKED BT AKE Z I
results, assets and liabilities by reportable and operating moEE AERAEGE-
segment.
Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2024
BE-E-RFZACt-ALEE HE-Z-ME=A=+-BIEE
Filmed Filmed
Cinema entertainment, Cinema  entertainment,
investment new media investment new media
and  exploitations and  exploitations
management  and licensing management  and licensing
business  businesses Total business businesses Total
EYRY EYRE
FRRER HEERAER FhRRER HREFAER
EERR  BAERE act BEZER  BHEER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAR TER TAR TAT TAT TAL

Segment Revenue Al 2,747 9,367 12,114 5,743 2,105 7,848
Segment Results LS

Reportable segment result E2RFHBEE (2,639) (17) (2,656) 353 831 1,184
Unallocated corporate income AABEERA 142 244
Unallocated corporate expenses RAEGERT (12,366) (11,297)
Share of result of an associate AME-BHEAREE m (3)
Share-based payments ARRIA REH 2 5 (4,591) -
Finance costs BERK (2,320) (2,132)
Loss before taxation BHAER (21,792) (12,004)
Segment Assets IHEE

Reportable segment assets AERHHDEE 1,491 46,478 47,969 2,241 1,926 4,167
Interests in an associate R-fElE AR ER 14 19
Unallocated corporate assets RORGEEE 5,405 10,697
Consolidated total assets GRRAERE 53,388 14,883
Segment Liabilities AHEE

Reportable segment liabilities A2RHPEE 8,432 56,006 64,438 8,971 34 9,005
Tax payables ERHE 80 89
Convertible bonds Mk ES 17,180 15,031

Unallocated corporate liabilities RABCEAR 3,413 4,691

Consalidated total liabilties GERGER 85,111 28,796

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. #WBEH®

For the purposes of monitoring segment information and RERSHEHN RS HESEEIRNE :
allocating resources between segment:

—  all assets are allocated to reportable segments ather — HMBEREESEZEZ®RDE
than interests in an associate and unallocated ’\EEA—F'EJM%”ATE’JT # RR
corporate assets. DB EEERIN

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments — FEBESEZEFZ2HH I
other than convertible bonds, tax payables and AT R E FH - B BLIR KoK
unallocated corporate liabilities. SELE A ERRIN

Other segment information: Hittp ZEHR -

Year ended 31 March 2025
B2-Z-RAfF=A=t-HLEE
Filmed
Cinema entertainment,
investment new media
and exploitations

management  and licensing Corporate
business businesses level Total
FRE
FRRER HMERMARR
BEER  REAEXER tEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THER TER
Additions to property, plant and Wz BWELRERE
equipment - 3 - 3
Additions to right-of-use assets CRAREERE - 539 - 539
Interest income FEHA 3 86 53 142
Depreciation of property, plant and M BB MRETE
equipment 13 - - 13
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEENE - 15 - 15
Impairment of other receivables o W SR IE R B 213 - - 213
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued):

7. 9BEHR @
Hith o sER () :

Year ended 31 March 2024
BT _WNF=-A=+-HItFE

Filmed
Cinema entertainment,
investment new media
and  exploitations
management  and licensing Corporate
business businesses level Total
BYRE.
ThBEER HEBERER
ERX®E  HiERB tXEm st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TEL TET
Additions to property, NE BERRERE
plant and equipment 5 - - 5
Additions to right-of-use assets FRAEEAERE - 1,671 1,671
Interest income MEBA 5 9 30 44
Depreciation of property, NE BERIGBHE
plant and equipment 12 - - 12
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREBRENE - - 589 589
Impairment of right-of-use assets FRAEEAERE - - 1,082 1,082
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BERRENRS
plant and equipment 224 - - 224
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

Geographical information:

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location of the customers,
irrespective of the origin of the goods or services. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is based
on the physical location of assets in the case of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, and the
location of the operation to which they are allocated in the

SEEFE )

case of interests in an associate. Revenue from external
customers and information about non-current assets by
geographical location are detailed below:

B)EEER-
EH B D

PREEEMS
B — ) Bt &
ﬁ«< MLLE%J
A EE S

A A O
afl B on 2

KR

AEBMEERNEFE LT EARLME ([H
BEPZMBNEREPH
AR IR < FERED
BEZMWEME %R BE &R
E?E%“F%V—%%E%Uﬁ o]
N EEHE RS T
KQ?I\*BXIEZH& & R 3%
D2 IEMBEEBERFINT

5 s A

- AR 57 8B

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RENMBEF 2B REFRBEE

2025 2024 2025 2024
SEDRFE —_ToMF ZEDHE —_ToMF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR TET TR TET
Hong Kong BB 235 2,105 14 19
PRC H 11,879 5,743 624 115
12,114 7,848 638 134
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. #BEH®
Revenue from major customers: REFEREF W
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the BE_Z-_NFER_ZT_NF=A=+—
total revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 March HIEFE BERMAEEERZRI0% A L
2025 and 2024 are as follows: BRI ERT
2025 2024
—T-RF —TNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
Customer A EPA 4,864 -
Customer B =FB 3,268 -
Customer A and B contributed revenue from filmed HE-_ZT_hA4=RA=+—H JJ:EJg =
entertainment, new media exploitations and licensing FARBHWHBRK B BERREE  FiXE
businesses during the year ended 31 March 2025. P M AP RER TS -
8. REVENUE 8. W&
An analysis of Group’'s revenue for the year from RER  REBRKESEB ZWEZDITIMT
operations, is as follows:
2025 2024
—ERF —EUF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Revenue from cinema business PEEAE S Pl 2,747 5,743
Revenue from licensing business REFFFFRER 2 WS 2,696 2,105
Revenue from new media exploitations KEFEREREEE 2 B
business 6,671 -
12,114 7,848

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

8.

REVENUE (Continued) 8. W&uwm
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REEFEHKRZEMAD
customers
2025 2024
—E_RE —E - OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Revenue from cinema business A
— Sales of movie tickets — at a point — HEERE — X KHH
in time 2,349 4,914
— Sales of snacks — at a point in time ~ — HEZTR — X —IKFHEZ 286 592
— Management services income — — BRI A — BERFE
over time 26 59
— Others — Efb 86 178
Revenue from licensing business AT R TS W e
— Sales of watches — at a point in time ~ — $§&F & — X — R RE% 235 2,105
— License income from intellectual — R EMBEENEIFREBA
property rights — at a point in time — X 2,393 -
— License income from intellectual — R EMBEENFFTREKA
property rights — over time — BERA 68 -
Revenue from new media exploitations KB 2 W
business
— Guidance service income — over time — &R A — BERSH 2,471 -
— Promotional services income — HEERB A
— at a point in time — H R, 4,200 -
Total et 12,114 7.848
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

9. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 9. Hfilk@ KR HAMBKA

2025 2024
ZEBCHF —E_mEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Bad debts recovery ERRIE - 58
Income from game live streaming PRI E WA - 181
Interest income B A 142 44

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE BB R RE 2 WS
equipment - 224
Rent concession (note 1) HeER (WaF1) - 20
Others HAth a0 162
232 689

note: sk
1. It mainly represents rent concession provided and agreed 1. ExBEEE T -_NE=/F=+—H
by the landlord for office in Hong Kong for the year ended I EERE TR EEN A ASIEERBT

31 March 2024. WESESR-

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MIEAE
2025 0024
—E-REF —EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR ES 2 HEEF B 2,149 1,885
Interest expenses on lease liabilities MERGBZHEXH 171 247
2,320 2,132
11. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 1. BRRAGIR
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREBATEEE MR, (GtA) TFI&IE:
(crediting):
2025 2024
—E-REF —EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Auditor’s remuneration % S5 AN B &
— Audit services — BT 900 900
— Other services — H AR - 250
Direct expenses of cinema business T EBCEERX
(note 1) (K1a1) 1,166 2,322
Cost of inventories sold for watches HEFHEFERK 147 1,203
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BRERRETE
equipment 13 12
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRREEENE 15 589
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME BEREHEZ
equipment W zs - (224)
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE = 1,082
Impairment of other receivables H At 8 W SR IR R B 213 -
Short-term lease expenses RAEERE 399 118
Staff costs (including directors’ BETIRA(BREESNE)
remuneration)
— Salaries and allowances — & MoEAh 7,392 5,826
— Equity settled share-based payments — REESEEURND A
BRI 1,839 -
— Retirement scheme contributions — R EIHR 730 560
Equity settled share-based payments ENERNREEREE
paid to advisors VARR (7 7 B8 2 15K 2,752 -
note: Kt :
1. The direct expenses mainly represent the profit sharing 1. HEBRIZXETEHEON 4 & B A0 0%

paid to film providers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEE&
The emoluments paid or payable to the Company’s HE_Z_AFR_ZT_MF=HA=1—
directors for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024 HIEFEENSENEARRIZES 2HMem
were as follows: T

Year ended 31 March 2025
BE_Z_hF=fA=+—-HILEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’ and other benefit based
fee benefits scheme payments Total
& 28 EREA AR AR &
E=me REMER E  ERZAX gt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET T#T T T

Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi B2 EE - - - 53 53
Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly EXiER L 120 - - 53 173
Mr. LAU Man Kit BB 180 - - %] 233
Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice EZ#z+ - 328 15 [5¥e] 396
Mr. YIP Yiu Bong ERALLE 120 - - B9 173
Ms. TSANG Fung Chu EK Lt

[note 1] (B1e1) a0 = = = 90

Independent non-executive B IEHTTEE

Directors
Ms. CHOI Mei Ping BEXFrt 120 - = = 120
Mr. TSUI Wing Tak RKEBEE 120 - = = 120
Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching BBzt 120 - = = 120

870 328 15 265 1,478
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

12. EEM& »

Year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-_MFE=B=+—HItFE

Salaries,
allowances  Retirement Share-
Directors’ and other benefit based
fee benefits scheme payments Total
e 2 RKEN VAR
B2 REMEF E ERIAR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAET FAT THET FTAT
Executive Directors HiTERE
Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi B2 5h & - - - - -
Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly B3z + 120 - - - 120
Mr. LAU Man Kit B3t 180 78 - - 258
Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice E &zt - 328 15 - 343
Mr. YIP Yiu Bong ERRALE 120 - - - 120
Independent non-executive B I iTEE
Directors
Ms. CHOI Mei Ping BELLL 120 - - - 120
Mr. TSUI Wing Tak RKEBEE 120 - - - 120
Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching [ o 120 - - - 120
780 406 15 - 1,201

note 1: Appointed on 2 July 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025

HE—

12.

13.

E_AF=A=+—HIFFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
(excluding directors’ fee) were for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The executive directors’ fee shown above were for their
services as directors of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals in the Group with the highest
emoluments, one of them (2024: one) is director of the
Company whose emoluments are disclosed above. The

12.

13.

EEME

EXFITRHRATESNMES (TREES
wWE) HANERARARAEEEERS
75 P ER A RO AR5 1 32 A

EXTRATESRE RREER/RERF
EERMHA RIS S AT
LRABIFATESTHES HAKFEL
ARRIBEFAEEMNRB M -
EEFAR
AEELEESFMARES HEbh—4%

(ZEZWF:—RK)ALARREE EH
MER EXHEE - TR (ZF —mF:

emoluments of the remaining four individuals (2024: four), ma) ABZ HBanT :
are as follows:

2025 2024
—TE-RE —E-E
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits FehEMmER 1,463 1,644
Retirement scheme contributions RORET IR 165 154
1,628 1,798

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025

=z

13.

14.

—E-—AF=A=+—HIFE

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Analysis of emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and other employees) by emolument
range is as follows:

BEETmAR®

hEaReEFMAB (BREZREMES)
ZEBIRFMEE 2 T

Number of employees

EEAH
2025 2024
—E-REF —TomE
Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 1,000,000% 7T AN 5 5
During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, no S E_hFR_ZFT_MNF=A

emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to
join the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, during the years ended 31 March 2025 and
2024, no directors waived any emoluments.

TAXATION

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the Hong
Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity is calculated
at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits above HK$2 million.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
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_-1— EIJJ:iEW Ziié%ljrﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
SFMAE (BHRES)INHM ERK
FMBEAREE BESAIERBER 2 HE-
AN RBE_T-_AFR T _MNF=
A=Z+—RLFER BESEENEEN
#rB

]

RENSHBASN AEREEER
2,000,0007% 7t A 89 5t % %8.25% * i
2,000,000 7T &9 % F B X &
18.5% - TR A FEHMAG N EEERE
i M S 4 1R 16.5% M At — B R BB - |
t AEREEERNEBNGHIZE
2,000,000/8 Tt fl &t FE sk B )i 71/ #98.25%
=t & i 8 #82,000,0007% 7T &Y it 51 & &R
Bia ) Al#216.5% T & -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

14. TAXATION (Continued) 14. |IE®)

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income HEZZ-_AFE-_FT_NMF=-H="1—
Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2025 and HIEFE - fp I B A B R T E25% &
2024. For income generated in the PRC earned by AR B 1 25 FT A5 B o B R R B 3% A1 EE il K
subsidiaries incorporated outside the PRC is subject to YHHBAREFRBERMKAME A
withholding tax at 10% (2024: 10%). 10% (ZZF =45 - 10% ) BMTEFFL -
No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been MR EEFEEERTGN  PTAGER
made for the prior year as there was no assessable WEFEIRPRIDEMSTRE -

profits for the prior year.

2025 2024
—EB-HEF —EpF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT

Current tax B ERHR 18
Hong Kong BB 11 69
The PRC F 1,459 -
1,470 69

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED w
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14. TAXATION (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

14. |IE®)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss as follows:

FEBIBEGRIBIERTY 2B AT EE
HERWR

2025 2024

—E-REF —EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAET

Loss before taxation MELRIEE (21,792) (12,004)

Tax at the respective applicable tax rate RBEBERBERGE 2BIE (4,725) (1,9093)

Income not subject to taxation BARBBA (16) (142)

Expenses not deductible for tax purpose TRIHRAVER B Bk 2 X 5,145 2,325

Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss AERHRBEEEZRETE 4,277 643
Utilisation of deductible temporary BB SR AR TER 2 P HURE

differences previously not recognised ZE (295) (288)

Tax effect of origination and reversal of ERNEHREEREE 2%

temporary differences Fe (2,975) -
Tax effect of setting off of prior year's tax A E S BEEBEFERIEA

losses against current tax BRGEZE (1,385) (489)

Tax relief for the year F N IER R (2) (3)

Tax effect of two-tier tax rate MART & 2 s & (13) (72)

Withholding tax of PRC AR TR0 1,459 -

Taxation charged for the year FEBBEZ L 1,470 69
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025

=z

—E-—AF=A=+—HIFE

14. TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses arising in the PRC and Hong
Kong of approximately HK$35,761,000 (2024:
HK$26,737,000) and approximately HK$60,565,000
(2024: HK$66,023,000) respectively available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profits stream. Under current tax
regulation, tax losses arising in the PRC can be carried
forward for five to ten years from the year in which the
respective loss arose while the tax losses arising in Hong
Kong can be carried forward indefinitely.

Expiry dates of tax losses arising in the PRC are as
follows:

14. |IE®)

RERIELEDREE

RBEHR AEBERETRAEREEZ
AEAMIBEEE S 5435,761,000/%
T (ZZE - M4 :26,737,000% ) &
#160,565,000F gt ( — =& — MW 4 :
66,023,000/% 7t ) 4 A {5 i K &
F o F P K TR 2R TE FI 2ROR - B
RABDBHEBERERECHEBEEE R
BIRTHBEREN - RE B IEEEA
REBEBEEEEFERFAE THFEE
MREE B RIEEBIBRI &R

RPBEEANHBEEENZHBEMT

2025 2025 2024 2024

—ECRF ZE-RF —ToF —ToWEF

RMB'O0O0 HKS$'000 RMB0O0O0 HK$'000

ARET FERT AR®ETT FET

2025 —E-FRF - - 1,156 1,275
2026 :gi/\¢ 358 388 1,719 1,896
2027 —E-4F 3,107 3,367 4,441 4,899
2028 —EN\F 2,434 2,637 3,430 3,784
2029 —E-NF 6,244 6,766 9,184 10,132
2030 —E=FF 16,549 17,932 - -
2031 —E=—F 1,596 1,729 1,596 1,760
2032 —F=— 1,680 1,820 1,680 1,853
2033 —F== 1,032 1,118 1,032 1,138
2034 — T q 4 - -
33,004 35,761 24,238 26,737

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of RMB12,227,000
(equivalent to HK$13,249,000) (2024: RMB2,099,000
(equivalent to HK$2,316,000)). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

REEHF  AEBG TR HZEAA
F®#12,227,0007T (8% #13,249,000
#T) (Z T4 AR¥2,099,0007T
(F8% 72,316,000 7 ) ) * R A A
B 75 e 3R B % M T R DS 8 T DR 2 6 2
B ER A TR 2 ERREL
BMIELE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025

HE—

14.

15.

16.

E_AF=A=+—HIFFE

TAXATION (Continued) 14. |IE®)
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised RERELHEAE
At the end of the reporting period, undistributed profits of RI|EBR - HERAR 2K IREN A
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$1,434,000 1,434,000/ 7T (ZZ =4 : 2,975,000
(2024: HK$2,975,000). Withholding tax resulting from BIT) oW m A BLAIN Z FERE A F) PR AE
the distribution of such profits would amount IR - B9k A B s R E A 2 FBHRA &
approximately to HK$143,400 (2024: HK$2397,500]) if 143,400 70 (—ZF — W4 : 297,500/%
they are distributed to holding companies/shareholders TT) o AT - A AR R I ZE M E A A
outside the PRC. However, no deferred tax liabilities have ZHREBEEBERRAETENARERD
been recognised in this respect as the Company controls KZE RN A BRI ERECHIES
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been f&e
determined that it is not probable that these profits will be
distributed in the foreseeable future.
DIVIDEND 15. K2
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a ERV TERNBE_ZT_HAF=H
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil). —t+t—HEFEZEARE (ZZT_MF:
;).
LOSS PER SHARE 16. HEKER
Basic and diluted loss per share BREAREBEESR
2025 2024
—E-HE —E-F
HK cents HK cents
4l Al
Total basic and diluted loss per share BRERREEEERE (20.89) (12.43)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 16. BRGE®
Basic and diluted loss per share (Continued) BREAREEER(B)
The loss and weighted average number of ordinary shares ﬁH Nt EEREAREEIEIECBERY
used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share AR TR BT

are as follows:

2025 2024
—B-ERE —E_mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Loss for the year attributable to owners RARIHEANBIGFEESRE
of the Company (21,447) (12,781)
2025 2024
—EB-REF —EmEF
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EERERRESEE
shares for the purpose of basic and 2 &R N T AR B
diluted loss per share 102,644,466 102,644,466
The incremental shares from assumed exercise of share EHEHE T -_AFR-_T_MNF=H
options granted by the Company and conversion of the =+ —HIEFESREEERREMRR
Company's outstanding convertible bonds are excluded in BARNTEEL 2 BREEITERARA
calculating the diluted loss per share during the years B ARATEE 2 PTHR AR (B 5 & H M 38 02 iR
ended 31 March 2025 and 2024 because they are  REREYGESRETEEARE
antidilutive in calculating the diluted loss per share. SERE -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED w
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. X BERXE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
improvement machinery ~ Computers  equipment vehicles Total
HE B
NELE BERES Bl RERRE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FEL FET FET
Cost A
At 1 April 2023 RZE-=ZFWA—-A 17,586 18,039 81 4,009 1,797 41,512
Additions NE - - - 5 - 5
Disposal & - - - - (1,797) (1,797)
Written off o (7,287) (7,281) - (1,788) - (16,356)
Currency realignment [E A% (619) (635) (3) (141) - (1,398)
At 31 March 2024 and RZZZWE=A=1—8
1 April 2024 RZE-MENA—-A 9,680 10,123 78 2,085 - 21,966
Additions NE - - 3 - - 3
\Written off WO, - (310) - (403) - (713)
Currency realignment i 5 3% (171 (179) M (37) - (388)
At 31 March 2025 RZZ-RF=A=1+-H 9,509 9,634 80 1,645 - 20,868
Accumulated depreciation and ~ RitHERRE
impairment
At 1 April 2023 RZE-=ZFWA—-A 17,586 17,918 76 4,009 1,797 41,386
Charge for the year EEXW - 12 - - - 12
Disposal & - - - - (1,797) (1,797)
\Written off WO, (7,287) (7,281) - (1,788) - (16,356)
Currency realignment i 5 % (619) (631) 3) (141) - (1,394)
At 31 March 2024 and RZZZNE=A=1—H
1 April 2024 RZE-NENA-A 9,680 10,018 73 2,080 - 21,851
Charge for the year EEXW - 13 - - - 13
Written off HOR, - (310) - (403) - (713)
Currency realignment i 5 3% (171) (177) 1M (37) - (386)
At 31 March 2025 RZZZRE=A=1—8 9,509 9,544 72 1,640 - 20,765
Net book value RERE
At 31 March 2025 RZZZRAF=A=+—-H - 90 8 5 - 103
At 31 March 2024 RZZZWE=A=1+—8 - 105 5 5 - 115
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. ERREEE
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the FAMBIKABRKRITATEEREZ®
following amounts relating to leases: LR
HK$'000
FHET
Net carrying amount at 1 April 2023 MRZZEZ=FNHA—-HBZEREFE
Additions NE 1,671
Depreciation charge FEXH (589)
Impairment A (1,082)
Net carrying amount at 31 March 2024 and RZZE-_WNF=ZA=+—HEK
1 April 2024 ZEMFMA—BZREFE -
Additions NE 539
Depreciation charge FEXH (15)
Exchange realignment b 5, 5 B (3)
Net carrying amount at 31 March 2025 RZEZRAF=A=+—AZEEFE 521
2025 2024
—E-EHF —EMF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Expense relating to shortterm leases HEAAEAENAY 399 118
Total cash outflow for leases HEMR ML AR 1,893 1,459
Additions to right-of-use assets CTAEEERE 539 1,671

For both years, the Group leases various offices, cinemas
and storage for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 2 to 4 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide

EY=

RREFE AEEHREIHRAE ik
EHEEZA - LNEESD
B & E BIfR A2 X445 - B R0 @ R
EE R B SR R R

range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
various offices. As at 31 March 2025, the portfalio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of shortterm
leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed in
this note.

PR T R AR T BB AR A R R
REMERANNTELETANTHRH
HITHERRT o

AEBREEAMAEEHITLEHEE-
RIZE-_RAF=A=+—HB BHHEEA
.:lEﬁihﬁﬁfﬁfﬁfﬁEZE’\ZIKW.:HBZEXZLHWE
EHAAEM-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 18. FRREE®
Variable lease payments ATRHEENR
Leases of cinemas are either with only fixed lease EYROHERERAETHENRKE
payments or contain variable lease payment that are SEM275%(ZE-NF:11% %
based on 12.75% (2024: 11% to 12.5%) of net sales, 12.5%)HE FRE (A E RREREEM
which is total sales less sales tax and charges, and RER)MNAEHENTOIME 2 —R1E
minimum annual lease payment that are fixed over the HEHNEENREFEHENRE
lease term. The payment terms are common in cinemas RIERERE B K LT EIE %
business in the PRC where the Group operates. The BHERALEEBE BE_ZT_HFRK_F%
amount of fixed and variable lease payments paid/payable ZHFE=ZA=+—HLEFEEHN EHT
to relevant lessors for the years ended 31 March 2025 FREEANEERATEHEEN RS :
and 2024:
For the year ended 31 March 2025 HE_FE-_hF=H="1—HIFE
Number of Fixed Variable Total
cinemas payments payments payments
EXRHE BEEMR  AUREER AREE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FTHERT TR FTHERT
Cinemas with variable lease B #HEENTN
payments BB 1 612 - -
For the year ended 31 March 2024 BE—FE_NFE=H=1—HIFZ
Number of Fixed Variable Total
cinemas payments payments  payments
ER-A73 4= EEMR  AEMNR NREHE
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET
Cinema without variable lease 7] & F & 1 54
payments Bl 1 - - -
Cinemas with variable lease BEBREMEENRH
payments Bl 1 493 - -

The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms
is that higher rental costs are incurred by cinemas with
higher sales. Variable rent expenses are expected to
continue to represent a similar proportion of revenue in
future years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
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18.

19.

—E-—AF=A=+—HIFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 March 2025, no rent
concessions were received by way of rent reductions and
waiver of rent.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, lessors of various
offices, warehouse and cinemas provided rent
concessions to the Group through rent reductions of 23%
over three to ten months without waiver of rent.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT, AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group has
incurred losses for a number of years, the management
of the Group concluded there was indication for
impairment and performed impairment assessment on
the property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use
assets.

The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of the
property, plant and equipment based on higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. The carrying
amount of the property, plant and equipment does not
exceed the recoverable amount based on value in use and
no impairment on property, plant and equipment has been
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024:
Nil).

The recoverable amounts of the right-of-use assets have
been determined based on their value in use. The Group
estimates the value in use of the right-of-use assets using
a discount rate of 19.2%. The carrying amount of the
right-of-use assets does not exceed the recoverable
amount based on value in use at 31 March 2025. Based
on the result of the assessment, the directors of the
Company concluded that no impairment (2024:
HK$1,082,000) on right-of-use assets was provided for
the year ended 31 March 2025.

18.

19.

FHESEE»
BLREE
BE—TE-AF-A-+-—BLEE I

EFERMA N eB S N EFEAESRR -

HE-_Z_NWF=-A=+—HLFE %
WA - BRERR hﬁﬁEﬁLﬂ—i+
& B R AR23% M i # k& M A S
RHEES MR-

MR BERMLLEER#ES
7 BY iRk (B FF 4

BE-E-HF=A=T+—BILFE &
REESTEEHA AREEEER

FERETR WHEME BE L& E R
EREEEETRENE-

ZRER BIR NP EIR 8 & AN 2 {E R B (E W

%$F%%1En+%% i 55 Ko 5% 48 9 AT U
B - Bz -_AF=-_A=+—HL
FEME- ﬁ%&ﬂ%ﬂ@ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂiit&
FREETEMR UL 58 B imil &5
ME - BEERZEERRE(ZEZNF:
/) o

@Eﬁﬁ%éFE’JTHﬁZ@ > HRIRHEREEE

EoAREERA19.2% MR IR KR 5HE A
%ﬁ\ﬁkﬁ’ﬂ?ﬁ%{ﬁ@ CTRZZTE_HFZ=H
=t H - ERAREEMNREERBRR
EREEFENR KWL S RIFF G
RARPDEEZERUERBEE_T _H
FZA=tT—HLFEHRERAREER
BEEE (Z= M4 :1,082,000% ) °
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For the Year ended 31 March 2025

HE—

20.

E_AF=A=+—HIFFE

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

20. R—HEBELTHER

2025 2024

—E-RF —EMmF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Unlisted shares ¥k EH R

Share of net assets DIEFEE (13) (12)
Amount due from an associate (note b) JEW — B & A a8 (ffaFb) 27 31
14 19

The following list contains the particulars of the Group's

TREBEARKEBEQAFNFT:

associate:
Proportion of ownership interest
BERRRILH
Form of Place of Particulars of ~ Group’s
Name of business incorporation  issued and effective Held by the  Held by Principal
associate structure and operation paid up capital  interest Company subsidiaries  activity
MBS L R BREOTRAR  FEEN
BELTER KRBT 2ENE BAFE ERER ZREEE WEAREE IEED
Goal Creation Incorporated  Hong Kang 100 shares of ~ 49% - 49% Investing in Virtual Reality
Game Limited ERii1ZAYA Bk HK$1 each and Mixed Reality Project
BlmEBERAT 100 B iEE REERERNERESR
BT EH
(a) Fair value of investments (a) REZAFE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
associate is a private company and there was no
quoted market price available for the investment.

(b) Amount due from an associate

The amount due from an associate is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The balance
is denominated in HK$ and approximate to their fair

value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 20. R—HBRELATNER &
Summarised financial information in respect of the BT ZEBERANTHEERBMEHT
material associate is set out below. The summarised T THBERNMERESE ArRER
financial information below represents amount shown in BB mE R MEmERA TS

the associates’ financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs:

2025 0024

—E-REF o NF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FTET FHET

Current assets MENE E — 6

Current liabilities ik IR=Ri (27) (31)

Net liabilities BEFRE (27) (25)

Group’s effective interest REBEHERER 49% 49%

Share of net liabilities PakiSR=R0F 2= (13) (12)

Revenue W as = -

Loss for the year FEBE (2) (7)
21. INVENTORIES 21. 8

2025 2024

—E_RF —EOF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Watches Fix - 17

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as EERARAXTF ABR I FEREIN
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: LU

2025 2024

—E-REF —EUF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Amount of inventories sold CERESH 147 1,203

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED w
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. FEUCARRR
2025 2024
—E-REF —EZINF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables UG BR 3R
— For cinema investment and — R ENEEER
management business 73 141
— For filmed entertainment, new media — TR/ IR%%  Fi¥EERA 3 &
exploitations and licensing FraT RS
businesses 78 27
151 168

The aging of the Group’s trade receivables for cinema
investment and management business based on the
invoice date is analysed as follows:

AEERFHREREREEXRTRIFESR

Hl 2 MR AR ARER AT IR T

2025 2024

—ECRF —EUF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 30 days 30B LA 58 126
Over 90 days 90H A £ 15 15
73 141

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses & : 78 Hi{Z & B B & = -
73 141

As at 31 March 2025, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance for cinema investment and
management business are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$15,000 (2024: HK$15,000)
which are past due for over 90 days as at the reporting
date.
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22,

—E-—AF=A=+—HIFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

For cinema investment and management business, the
credit terms granted by the Group to its customers
normally ranged from COD (cash-on-delivery) to 120 days.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. All trade receivables are
expected to be recovered within one year.

The aging of the Group's trade receivables for filmed
entertainment, new media exploitations and licensing
businesses based on the invoice date is analysed as
follows:

22,

FEUARRR ()

WERREREREGMS AKEGT
HEFPZEEH-—KuaREIWEI20H
T"°$'§l§ﬁj}¥TEﬂiuﬁz@Jﬁﬂﬂl%ﬂﬁﬁ
%FW? Z2-BREEERE T MRTE
RERR - PR EUCR FIEHIN —F Ak E -

REBBVRE MEBABLREFESR
ﬂ‘%ﬁ’ﬂﬁ%‘ﬂﬁlﬂﬁm& HEAHRRES T :

2025 2024

—E-FRE —EF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Within 30 days 30H UK 78 27
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses i : B HI{Z EE 1B & & - -
78 27

For filmed entertainment, new media exploitations and TJE?'E?Z S OMERERERETEESM

licensing businesses, the credit terms granted by the
Group to its customers normally ranged from COD (cash-
on-delivery) to 30 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. All trade
receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

ZF‘EI%%/H\%}EZ@.%HH AR
% R EIOH A EF - AR EHNEHARK
EIEMKKEERBEEEZE - ERAEEER
AEEHmeaBigsR  mARKERES
R—EFRUYgE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

23. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 23. HtifBEIrFRIE « &R RIA

2025 2024
—E_REF —EZINF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Other receivables H i fE W IR 744 235
Deposits and prepayments (Note) e NI FRIE (KE) 11,629 736
12,373 971

Represented by: K&
Non-current assets EmENEE 325 478
Current assets MEEE 12,048 493
12,373 971
Note:  The amount includes the prepaid service fee paid to a Bat: ZeRERERBZERL - AEBN—

service provider, who is an independent third party of
the Group, of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$10,836,000) in September 2024 for project
management, overall planning and coordination and
consultancy services based on the strategic cooperation
framework agreement entered into among the customer,
the Group and the service provider.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2024/25

ERBHIEE (RAKEZBIE=T)
RIMHBEAEERGH R _F-N
FLARBEEEE BEMAIRGHA
VA K 5 30 BR 75 TR 3% AR 7% 1 FE 7 69 R
% % A R #10,000,0007T (18 & 7
10,836,000 7t ) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. BlaRBE&EED
2025 2024
—E_REF —EOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Cash at banks and in hand RITNFEIBS 40,226 13,593

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on
daily bank deposit rates. The fair values of the Group’s
bank balances and cash at 31 March 2025 and 2024
approximate their corresponding carrying amounts.

As at 31 March 2025, deposits and cash placed with
banks in the PRC amounted to approximately
HK$30,664,000 (2024: HK$1,275,000). Remittance of
funds out of the PRC is subject to relevant rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the government of the PRC.

The bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.01% to 0.50% (2024: 0.001% to 0.30%)
per annum.

For the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, the
Group performed impairment assessment on bank
balances and concluded that the probability of defaults of
the counterparty banks and financial institution are
insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for expected
credit losses is provided.

RITASREREBARTHERNEZ)FH
MEFBRHE -AEER T _AF R
T_MF=A=+—BZRTEHKIRSE
ZRHEREREZREEMES-

RZEB-_RAF=R=+—H FHRRFEH
|17 2 F X NH 2 R%30,664,000/% 7T
T /Mm% :1,275,00087T) G E®
PE R BZAS B B 2 R INEE
2% Bl B AR PR AR

RITHEBRIETF0.01% £0.50% (= F
Z /U4 :0.001% £0.30% ) ) 11 45 F) &
A=Y

HE-_E-_R&ER-_FE-_WME=A=+—
BIEFEE NEBEHRITELETRER
BT EHER BFARTLEREEE
B A EEENK M ESRTEREEER
FHERRE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. FEFHARRR
2025 2024
e 2 —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Trade payables FE TR X
— For cinema investment and — R EREEER
management business 99 173
— For filmed entertainment, — BRRE EBRAER
new media exploitations and FRET TS
licensing businesses 112 35
211 208

The aging of the Group’s trade payables for cinema
investment and management business based on the

invoice date is analysed as follows:

AEERFEHEREREEXBRIEZERA
IR RN BR TR 2 BREG D AT AR T

2025 2024

—E-FREF —_ETOF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Within 30 days 30HMUA 27 86

Over 90 days 90H A E 72 87

99 173

The aging of the Group’s trade payables for filmed REBEEBHREL NEBMAERFTEE

entertainment, new media exploitations and licensing BE N RFIEEE B HNRE DT T
businesses based on the invoice date is analysed as

follows:

2025 2024

“®B-hHF —EoEF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Within 30 days 30B A 112 35

Payment terms with suppliers are generally within 30

days.

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values
of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable

approximation of fair value.
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e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

26. HfihFE B IA R FE AR IR

2025 2024
—E_RE —EpF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Other payables and accruals (note 1) ot JE A FIE K BT FRIR
(K1a#1) 3,547 2,882
Initial production cost (note 2] M BAERA (FfzE2) 54,180 -
57,727 2,882

W&t

Included in the amount mainly represents auditor’s 1. @I ZEZHAH € 4900,000% T

remuneration of approximately HK$3900,000 (2024:
HK$900,000) and accrued staff salaries of approximately
HK$920,000 (2024: HK$58,000).

A strategic cooperation framework agreement as
mentioned in note 23 was entered into among the
customer, the Group and the service provider on 31 August
2024 to stipulate the strategic cooperation effective from
31 August 2024 to 31 July 2029. The initial production
cost of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$54,180,000)
was prepaid by the customer to the Group in September
2024. No formal production was made during the year
ended 31 March 2025.

All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

—Z P4 :900,000% 7T) Kk EE B
T % & #)920,000% (=T 4 :
58,000%7T) °

ZEF AEERZBRBEUEEINR =T
“HENB=+—HI LD EEAE
HEL2 175 (HnBf sE23FT i) LART FR BR B &
EEE AT -_MNENA=+—HBEE
—ECAFLAZ T BAERCZERER
—E-MFAABRAREBEMTS R
A A R #50,000,0007T (& 7
54,180,000 L) - HE-T-_AF =
B=t+—BiFEETETARIE-

B 4t B A KR e BB B SR IE T 5 R
—FREERREREE-
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For the Year ended 31 March 2025

=z

—E-—AF=A=+—HIFE

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

27. S¥AaE

2025 2024
—B-EHE —E_mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
As at 1 April REA—H 8,283 7,423
Revenue recognised during the year in FAEREBA NEE
relation to carried-forward contract ol
liabilities (228) (479)
Receipt in advance from customers FAWERE PR
for the year 466 1,682
Refund to customers during the year FAMEBFPER (3) (88)
Currency realignment [E X % (123) (255)
As at 31 March R=A=+-—H 8,395 8,283
Cinema investment and management EhRERERE
Prepaid amount in the membership card by the customers EFRE8RHENHKE
The prepaid amounts in membership cards have no 28 RMTENFRIBI R E - o] BE R 1%

expiration and can be redeemed anytime at customers’
discretion. The management of the Group expected that
the remaining performance obligation as at 31 March
2025 will be materially recognised as income within five to
six years after the year end.

The balance of RMB6,303,000 (equivalent to
HK$6,830,000) will be recognised as income when the
customers buy the movies tickets, and the corresponding
movie was broadcasted, and snacks by utilising the
prepaid amount in the membership card.

The timing of the transfer of the movie tickets and snacks
are at the discretion of the customers and the
management considers that the contract liabilities would
not have significant financing component.

All the contract liabilities are expected to be settled within
the Group’s normal operating cycle in respect of cinema
investment and management segment and the whole
balances are classified as current.

No revenue was recognised in the current year relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 271. AR

Cinema investment and management (Continued)

Non-refundable deposit received for advisory services on
animation content

The balance of RMB1,200,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,308,000) will be recognised as income when the
animation content is completed and approved by the
customer.

All the contract liabilities are expected to be settled within
the Group’'s normal operating cycle and the whole
balances are classified as current.

No revenue was recognised in the current year relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior
periods.

Receipt in advance for licensing of intellectual property
rights

The amount includes receipt in advance of RMB300,000
(equivalent to HK$327,000) for licensing of intellectual
property rights received during the year.

The balance of RMB237,000 (equivalent to HK$259,000)
will be recognised as revenue when the customer is
provided with a right to access the Group’s intellectual
property over the licensing period, which is expected to
occur over the next three years. All the contract liabilities
are expected to be settled within the Group’'s normal
operating cycle and the whole balances are classified as
current.

TRERENER(H)

BBE A DB HRIFURE T AR E R E

#EER AR 1,200,0007T (#8E771,308,000
BT R EBE AT TR RER PIUERTER
Y=L O

IERHBERINASENERLER
HINES BHREBROBRRD-

REFZIW ELBEREEXNELOE

RBU R -

H78EE 1 AT R TR SR

ZEBEERFAE WEABERZ ALK
IE A K #300,0007t (#8 & 7327,000
BT e

ek AR #237,0007T (18 & 7259,000
AL BRFAHREFPERER‘EERAE
[ R 23k R O M N B RERR R W e - TR
RAR=ZFARLE-AEEHABEHIRN
AEENERKEBHANES SHRER
DRR/RE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HE&E
2025 2024
—E_REF —EZINF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Lease liabilities payable: ENfHEEE:
Within one year —&FR 976 1,329
Within a period of more than one year —F EENERMRF
but not more than two years 357 812
Within a period of more than two years MEANELETEBBARF
but not more than five years 185 182
1,518 2,323
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 J& : 1218 3 A 2| #H(E &9
months shown under current liabilities mENa & (976) (1,329)
Amount due for settlement after 12 1218 B &£ B HAE W
months shown under non-current kRBERE
liabilities 542 994

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities are ranged from 3.25% to 14.31%

(2024 ranged from 5.38% to 14.31%).

All lease obligations are denominated in the functional

currencies of the relevant group entities.
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e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 29. TA[IBERIR%F

On 1 April 2020, the outstanding amount of convertible
bonds issued to Mr. Chiau Sing Chi (“Mr. Chiau”) was
HK$30 million, in which those convertible bonds being
issued in February 2010 and subsequently redeemed part
of convertible bonds amounting to HK$10 million during
the year ended 31 March 2021.

The convertible bonds contain two components, liability
component and equity component.

On 7 December 2021, the Company entered into the
Subscription and Settlement Agreement (“Agreement”)
with Mr. Chiau, the holder of convertible bonds, for
issuance of convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$19,000,000 (‘2022 CB") in order to set-off against
the principal amount of the convertible bonds outstanding
as at 7 December 2021.

The Agreement and the transaction contemplated
thereunder were approved in the Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company on 14 March 2022, and
convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$19,000,000 were issued to Mr. Chiau on 17 March
2022. Details are described in Note 34. During the years
ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, no 2022 CB was
converted into shares of the Company by the holder.

The fair value of the liability component which was
determined by independent professional valuers Sino-
Infinite Appraisal Limited on the issue date, is the present
value of the contractually determined stream of future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate 14.3%
and providing substantially the same cash flows, on the
same terms, but without the conversion option. The
residual amount of the fair value amount were assigned
as equity amount and included in equity during the year
ended 31 March 2022.

RZE_EFOA—RB B TEENME
H(TARED 2 BRESCAKEESTE
#30,000,0008 0 Edh S g ikiE
FR—_E—TF - AT ,ﬁ\%:ﬁ’\é%i—
E A=+ HILFEERISA
¥R {&E 10,000,000 7t °

AR ESEREMES S e EHD
EZRE D -
RZE-_—F+-_AtH AQFHATHE

BESHAEABRELRBMEEHH
(lzmsEl) UNBETASER
19,000, ODO?@EE’]T%J&F%%H_
—oFABRRER])  REER T —

Ft_ALtAHREENTREESAS
B

ZMBELEBETRETORZIEN -2
T CF=ZATOBRERRRRRE R
B YR —_T-_—F=A+tHMA
% 21T 7R % % /519,000,000 7T 2 7]
BEEF FRANMEI4-BE-F
ThFERZFECNF=A=+—HLEFE"
—E-_FAMRESHEESE AER
RN R ©

BEBS 2 ATE (RBTEEEERT
BAGEARATNET)RETAE AAH
BB R RS R BRI FIR14.3% 5
REBE - AR IR S A AR R
SHE MITEBEARAE-BE-D
SoFSASt-ALER ATEGS
SIS - W AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The movement of the liability component and equity
component of the convertible bonds for the year is set out

29, NMRREEE )

EARBERAESD RERBH 2
EBHIIMT :

below:
Liability Equity
component component
BERS BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000
R FAET
At 1 April 2023 RZE_=FMH—H 13,146 8,743
Imputed interest charged EAHENE 1,885 -
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 RZE-_WNF=A=+—8xk
ZE-MFMA—H 15,031 8,743
Imputed interest charged ERHEER S 2,149 -
At 31 March 2025 RZZE_RAF=A=+—H 17,180 8,743
Liability component 8BNS
2025 2024
—E-REF —ENF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Mature within 1 year —FAEH 17,180 -
Mature later than 1 year —F 12 2IH - 15,031
17,180 15,031
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. Bg&E
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
R=ZB-AF=A=+—H RZB-_ME=A=1+—-8H
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
ROHA EfE RIAEE HfE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR TR T TER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREG0.IETHE AR
Authorised: BT
At the beginning and at the end of RENRFR
the year 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000 200,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SRAECIATHLBR
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At the beginning and at the end of RENRER
the year 102,645 10,265 102,645 10,265
Share options scheme BB al

Details of the Company's share option schemes and the
share options granted under the share option schemes
are included in Note 32 to the financial statements.

Capital management

Capital comprises of share capital and reserves stated on
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
owners of the Company and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

AR E) BB B A T 8] RAR R BB B AT 81 R
MBI BEN YRR EI2 -

BEXER

BABREAMBIRABRR AT 2 BA
Li#w - AEEEREAZBEERBRTR
EASEEMEBRITERLEEELS
e < 78 5 B B IR E g K F 48 e 3t /3 EE
mEREEBURAGERAREREE
B EBRARNAEEATRERL AHE
(ESEvE= Rl Sl
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

31.

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 30. &)
Capital management (Continued) EXREE(E)
As at the year ended, the Group is at a capital deficiency RER REBRNERBAMR - B ut)F
position. Therefore, the net debt-to-equity ratio is not EREELEXTTER MASEGES
applicable and the Group will continue to regularly review EHRAREEEERAERE BRERS
and manage its capital structure to maintain a balance BAEAL®R (TS RBEEEKTE)ER
between the higher owners returns that might be possible 0P & AR R R 2 4T B R AR IR R & 2 R EX
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and FE WEELERE ZE(LFHEER
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes 28 -
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are AARSKETAHEBRARETZINDE
subject to externally imposed capital requirement. Z BRI ERS -
RESERVES 31. e
The Company /N
Equity
component of Share
Share Contributed  convertible options Accumulated
premium surplus bonds reserve losses Total
TRRES
RABE  BARE 2Rz BRERE | ZHFR @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL ThEL TEL TAL ThAL TAL
At 1 April 2023 WZ2-=FNA—H 424,560 130,295 8,743 2,788  (586,322) (19,936)
Loss for the year FEEB - - - - (7,296) (7,296)
Lapse of share options BRELN - - - (1,323) 1,323 -
At 31 March 2024 and RZE-ME=A=+-H
1 April 2024 kZE-MEMA-A 424,560 130,295 8,743 1,465  (592,295) (27,232)
Loss for the year EREE - = = - (33,683)  (33,683)
Issue of share aptions BTERE - - - 4,591 - 4,591
At 31 March 2025 RZZE-RF=A=1—H 424560 130,295 8,743 6,056  (625,978)  (56,324)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025

HE—

31.

32.

E_AF=A=+—HIFFE

RESERVES (Continued)
The Company (Continued)

At 31 March 2025, no reserves is available for
distribution to owners of the Company (2024: Nil).

The share premium is arising from the issue of shares of
the Company.

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the combined net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the
shares of the Company at the time of the Group
reorganisation.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 15 August 2012, a
share option scheme (the “Scheme 2012") was adopted
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors, eligible employees and participants who have
contributed to the Group. The Scheme 2012 expired on
14 August 2022. After the expiry of the Scheme 2012,
pursuant to a resolution passed on 8 February 2024, a
share option scheme (the “Scheme 2023") was adopted
for the same primary purpose as the Scheme 2012.
Under the Scheme 2023, the Board of the Company may
grant options to directors, certain employees of the Group
and any independent distributor, contractor, supplier,
consultants, agents and advisers or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group in recognition of their contribution
to the Group.

31.

32.

1517 [€))
AAT ()

R-E-_RAF=A=+—H BEHS
KTFARRIEAAZFEEB (ZZZMEF:
;) o

Betn i (B Ty R 1T AN A ) Bty i & A o

ERBHREN AN EBEERRAQE IS
ZHBARAHEEFERARBRNDE
BEREZERE-

ARz Rt &

BER-ZT——F)\ATHBBBZRE
X ABEHER AEREEREALTER
EH BB z2 0L AEBERMEERE
FEI([ZFE—=F58)) —F—=F5
FERZ-ZE-_—_FNA+WHBREH K=
T-ZFFEEME BREBER-_ZT_NF
ZANABBMRER —HFITEEMNHE
ZE-CFHEARMNERETE (=
—EFHEDEBEERW-RE_T_=F
EARFEESGAMES AEERT
BEURTMBYLDHEE & HE
EoBmACREBELENNESEL2ENG
RELCBHAEEGABAEBIELER 2T
AATREERE UWREERSEALER
EH B Bf -
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the maximum number of
Shares which may be allotted and issued annually upon
the exercise of all options which initially shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Scheme 2023 and thereafter, if
refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
(“Scheme Mandate Limit") as at the date of approval of
the refreshed limit by the Shareholders. The total number
of shares which may be issued in respect of all options to
the service providers shall not exceed 5% of the issued
share capital as at the date of adoption of the Scheme
2023. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the number of
Shares to be issued upon the exercise of all the Options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
other share option schemes must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the Scheme Mandate Limit. The number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual
in aggregate within any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue,
without prior approval from the Company's shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non- executive directors or any of his, her or
its associates in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of offer of the option exceeding the higher of
0.1% of the Company’s shares in issue must be approved
by the Company’s shareholders.
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32, MEBR#ERTE(»)

RIZGEM LR A - HPT B AR ETT(E
mAlgE B FRCHE MBTZROEB LR
FHATEBERM T _=F:tEER
EBHTRMI10% MEREMEH BT
SHARRIEEFREEHDHTRND
10% ([FH8IIREREE]) - AAAA B
AR %5 R BT R BB B RE =
T -FEERM BB EITRANSS
&E XAl BT A RIEZAT & R E
T AR AT B H B R R AT 8 2 8 IR I T
MG TFETZIERNDBEARTEEBT
2 B #ITIRMB0% - RIZBIAESEI 2
R B R B T &5t AT B4
[REEAN - EREARRARBRRELMEZE
ST PAEART - & A B A AT A AE ] {E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

32. ERRREETEl ()

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options
may be exercised at any time from the date of acceptance
of the share option to such date as determined by the
Board of the Company and the exercise price will not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the Company’'s shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Details of specific categories of options and the fair value
of options are set out in Note 34 to the consoclidated
financial statements.

Details of the share options granted under the Scheme
and movements in such holdings during the year were as

BRHZBRESARRL AHEA21H
N RENHBRENIBTRER BR
BRUNEMNBEREEIEERARFESS
BE<ABBYARETE BITEES
AEEROARBBRMNE L AR ZKH
f‘i ) AR R B R B R E A B AT BE
XA 2T E (i) A 2B
HE=fFz&=%-

FrERDIBEENEREAFEZFBH
KR & P IEImMEKRMEE34 -

FRRHEETEL 2 BRERAZD
HIT

follow:
Number of shares issuable under options held
REFSBRETFRICROYE
Weighted Balance at  Exercisable at
average Balance at 31 March 31 March
exercise 1 April 2024 2025 2025
Vesting price Share W=B-Mm%F RZ2Z1% R-BZ1f
Category Grant date Period MEFH  option type* mE-H Granted lapsed =A=t-B ZA=t-H
Ly RiiBH EES ke BREER* 2 BRH B4N pA AR
HK$ ‘000 '000 ‘000 '000 ‘000
AR Th Th TR Th Th
Directors £% 6/7/2021 immediate 0.084 2021A 1,708 - - 1,708 1,708
ZBC-f IHEE
tAAH
3/7/2024 3/1/2024- 1.170 2024 - 513 - 513 -
“B-MELAZA 2/7/2025
“ECMELAZAZ
ZR-RFLAZA
Emplojees (&2 3/7/2024 3/1/2024- 1.170 2024 - 3,285 - 3,285 -
“E-MELA=H 2/7/2025
“ECMELAZAZ
ZB-RFLAZA
Advisors i 14/7/2020 immediate 0.074 2020A 850 - - 850 850
“ECEELATRA IHEE
6/7/2021 immediate 0.084 2021A 854 - - 854 854
ZR-FLARH IHER
3/7/2024 3/1/2024- 1.170 2024 - 5,132 - 5,132 -
ZE-MELA=A 2/7/2025
ZECMELAZAE
ZR-RFLAZA
3412 8,930 - 12,342 3412

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR



X
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For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE_FE_hF=A=1+—HIFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2024:

32.

BT ® (e

BE_T—

Number of shares issuable under options held

REAEBRET R RDUE

ME—A=+—BHLFE &
TR T HARITEZ BN T

Weighted Balance at  Exercisable at
average Balance at 31 March 31 March
exercise 1 April 2023 2024 2024
Vesting price Share HIZF_=E RZZZME RIBRCRE
Category Grant date Period WETS  option type* mA-A Granted lapsed =A=T-H _H_f A
5l RiHiAE 584 e BREER A3 B BXM LB 11
HKS 000 000 000 000 000
AR Th Th T Th Th
Directors £% 17/9/2018 immediate 0.042 2018A 1,500 - (1,500) - -
“2-\EARTLA e
6/7/2021 immediate 0.084 2021A 1,708 - - 1,708 1,708
ZZZ-F+ARH kil
Employees R 17/9/2018 immediate 0.042 2018A 750 - (750) - -
ZB-\EAATLA THER
Advisors B 14/7/2020 immediate 0074 20200 850 - - 850 830
“E-RELATRA IR
6/7/2021 immediate 0.084 2021A 854 - - 854 854
ZEI-EtARA 58
5,662 LS 3412 3412
The Company has recognised an expense as share-based %Z:n:f E_AF=ZA=+—RLFE K
payments for the year ended 31 March 2025 with an NIRRT RARO RERZ MK €
amount of HK$4,591,000 (2024 Nil). #54,591,0008 T (ZF_HF &) °
*  Please refer to Note 34 for details. * HER2HE34 .
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33. RELATED PARTY AND CONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those balances disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into Fh
the following material related party and continuing

connected transactions.

(a)

Key management personnel remuneration

A i

H

(a)

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company's directors
as disclosed in Note 12 is as follows:

BaEma M BRREMED
RN AEEGETT
T REFERE

R 5o

FTEEEASEHH

33. MEALTRFEERMERS

D PR R 2 5%
THEKXNEEA

FTEBEEAS ZFHM (BIEME12F7
WEYNFARRREFT ZFIE) AT

2025 2024
—®R°EHF —EmEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT TETT
Directors’ fee, salaries, allowances EREe e RER
and aother benefits H b2 A 1,198 1,186
Retirement benefit RIRAER
scheme contributions FHEIMHR 15 15
Share-based payments VARR 1 7% B8 2 155K 265 -
1,478 1,201
(b) Related party transactions (b) BEAEALRS
2025 2024
—EC-RE —ENF
Name of related parties Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BEALER ReEHE FERT THETT
Memorigin Watch Company Cost of inventories sold for watches 147 1,203
Limited to non-controlling interests
EHRBEBERA A JEHE AR M 2 B FERTF B RO

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the Year ended 31 March 2025
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33. RELATED PARTY AND CONTINUING CONNECTED 33. MEATRIGERMERS®)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(c) Continuing connected transactions (c) BHEBEXRS
2025 2024
—E_RE —E-mFE
Name of connected persons Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BEALTER REME FHERT THETT
The Star Overseas Limited Royalty payment for licensing of 1,300 -
(Note 1) intellectual property right
EEBINERAT (FaE1) B ERERT Al SR EE R E
Shenzhen Xinfeng Cultural and Promotional services income 933 -

Creative Development
Company Limited* (Note 2]

RYNFTEX B ERBR DA
(Htaz2)

R RIS U

Note 1: Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, a director of The Star
Overseas Limited, is an executive director of the
Company. Ms. Chow is also a sister of Mr. Chiau
Sing Chi who is a director of the Company.
Accordingly, Ms. Chow is considered a connected
person during the years ended 31 March 2025
and 2024 under GEM Listing Rules.

Note 2: Shenzhen Xinfeng Cultural and Creative

Development Company Limited* holds 49% equity

interest in a subsidiary of the Company and it is

considered a connected person under GEM Listing

Rules.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2024/25

MaE1 . EEBINERADFEERFE
TTARARRATNTES - At
MAARRAEREEMEEL
B b o A I - AR IR GEM £ 4R
A - AZtRBE_T_AF K
—EZHFE=A=1T—HLHF
EHARREEANT

RYIFE XA BERER AR
BARREHIE R RA9% 2 J -
WA CEM AR BIIE T 2 B8
BAL-

Hize -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 4. LRTEERZFR
The Company has in place convertible bonds and share ARABIRAEBEF EERBEMRKRYA
option scheme for directors, employees and advisors of MRE S LEBRES S - AT RRES R B
the Group. Details of the convertible bonds and share Mtz FHBEWNT

options are as follows:
Convertible bonds ARRES

2022 CB
e —

=

A& 75

Principal amount REHE HK$19,000,000
19,000,000/% 7T

Share price BB HK$0.212
0.212%E 7t

Interest R Zero coupon
Z2

Conversion price BB HK$0.275
0.275% 7t

Maturity date FHRA 31 December
2025

—ERF

+=-A=+—A”

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
EEEEERERAR
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Share Option Scheme
Details of specific categories of options are as follow:
The fair value of share options which were calculated

by binomial option pricing model with the following
assumptions:

Option type: BlEsgn: 2018A
Grant date: KB 1792018
—E-N\F
NAT+E
Number of options granted: T B REH B : 180,000,000
Exercise period: TEH: 17-9-2018-
16-9-2023
—T-N\F
NE+tBEZE
S 2
NATRE
Exercise price: 16 E: HK$0.042% T
Adjusted exercise price: BRETRE: HK$1.687% T
[note] (i)
Fair value: NIE HK$2,181,000% T
Option type: ERREER
Share price as at grant date: REH BB 2 RE:

Nature of the options: BiRE s ME:
Risk-free rate: A fa N

Expected life of the options: MR 2 TREREF B -
Expected volatility: SEEEN AR
Expected dividend yield: TR EAAR B i e
Exercise multiple: TS

Closing price of the Company's
shares immediately before the
date of the grant of the aforesaid
share options (i.e. 2 July 2024)

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility
of the Company's share prices. Expected dividends were
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

note: The exercise price was adjusted due to share consolidation
on 16 March 2022.
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34. LRNBERZMER @)
LY HE
BRI R T

@Eﬂ% “HABBEEBRANE ZBARE
DNHETHER AT RE

2020A 2021A 2024
14-7-2020 6-7-2021 3-7-2024
—E-%E 3 —EomE
tA+mA tARA tHA=H

25,500,000 25,620,000 8,930,060
14-7-2020- 6-7-2021- 3-7-2025-
13-7-2025 5-7-2026 2-7-2029
—E-FF —T--F —ECoRE
+A+mAEZE +tARBZE tHA=HZ
—E-RF —EIRE “ENE
+tA+=H +AARA +AZH
HK$0.074% 1t HK$0.0847% 1t HK$1.170E 1T
HK$0.747% 1t HK$0.847% 1T N/A
TER

HK$893,000% 7t HK$1,168,000%r HKPB,122,000/% 1t
2024

HK$1.170% T

Call 3288

3.428%

5 years &

102.3%

0%

2.20-2.80

HK$1.167% 7T

TEERR IR D AR A Bl R BIE 2 BT K E
AEE-FEHRBUARREAEE-TH

BABBBRRNBZS AJREER[FAF
BERKEATE-

Hist: BRIBROEMH TEEER T ==
fﬁ-?—/\EIDHE%O
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. EEMBLTZERE
Particulars regarding the subsidiaries at 31 March 2025 RZZE_RAF=ZA=+—H WBRAZ
are as follows: FEMT
Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interests
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
operation Type of registered capital ~ AAFHEEEZBAESE  Principal
Name of subsidiaries HMAL/ legal entity BRR activities
WMEBARER EXBH ERRRER BRRA/ZIMER  Directly  Indirecty TEEH
B B
% %
Art Aim Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Movie production
BEER LA N company 1% EFAE
ARELEAT
Billon Success Corporation Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100  Licensing business
EBRERAT i company 187 BETEER
ARERRT
Bingo Cinema Investment Company ~ Hang Kang Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100 Cinema investment
Limited A company 10,0008 ¢ FhiRE
IEETRREBERAR ARELEAT
Bingo Cinema Management Company ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100  Cinema
Limited ) company 10,000/ management
hEEFREEBRAA AREEARA ThER
Bingo Management Services Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HKS$1 100 - Management
HEEERBERAT Bk company 1% services
AREERA ERR%
Bingo Movie Development Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Movie production
LEEYERERA BB company 1% BYHIE
EREART
Brilliant Tech Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$4 - 75  Cinema
REBRAR 0 company 4ET management
AREEARA ThER
Bingo Success Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 100 - Investment holding
BRERAT BA company 1057 REER
ARERERT

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED @
EEEEERERAR
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. FEMBLATZEFR®
(Continued)
Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interests
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
operation Type of registered capital  AARFEELZRAESR  Principal
Name of subsidiaries EMRL/ legal entity BRTR activities
WEAREE EEE EEERER BERA/HEMER Directly ~Indirectly TEE#%
Bk 3
% %
Huge Art Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Cartoon production
REERATA Bk company 1% B
EREART
Bingo Entertainment Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100 - 100 Inactive
HEREEBR AR B company 100% ¢ TEER
AREART
Bingo Intellectual Praperty Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 - 100  Inactive
Management Limited B company 1087 g 3
HEEREEERERAA AREERA
Bingo Trademark Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Inactive
LREEERAR B company 1587 Ihex
EREART
Brilliant Ace Holdings Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100 - 100 Inactive
[ERERERAR &b company 10057 Eme%
AREART
Power Alliance Investment Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 New media
BEREERAA BE company 157 exploitations
AREERA MRS
High Art Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100 - 100  Inactive
REBRAF B company 100% T Ihex
EREART
Bingo Group — Memorigin (BGM) Hong Kong Limited liability HK$2,000,000 - B0  Trading of watches
Limited E0 company 2,000,0007% 1t FHES
AREART
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. EXMBLTFIZHER @
(Continued)
Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interests
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
operation Type of registered capital  AARBEELZRAESE  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Rl legal entity BRTR activities
WEARBHE 2EHY EEERER BERE/EMER Directly Indirectly FE£%
Ef R
% %
Lofty Gain Investments Limited BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Movie production
RAREBRAT RERIES company 1% BRI
EREART
Lofty Shine Limited BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Investment holding
REERAA EERAHEE company 1% REER
AREEAA
Shanghai Caike Cinema Management ~ PRC Limited liability US$100,000 - 75  Cinema
and Consultancy Limited, * (e i company 100,000% 7t management
FERMYREREARRAR MY BREERA PhER
Huichi (Shanghai) Cansultancy PRC Limited liability US$500,000 - 100 Cinema investment
Limited* = 7 i company 500,000% 7t ThiRg
B ( L8) REBARRAR Mar AREMEAT
Shanghai Huichi Management and PRC Limited liability RMB100,000 - - Cinema investment
Consuttancy Co., Ltd.* i company ARE (2024:100) ¥hkiE
FEEREREARRAA AREEAA 00,0007 (Z2zpm%E:
100)
Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) Company PRC Limited liability RMBG,000,000 - 75  Cinema business
Limited* g company ARE £
EREZR (LB ERAT AREERA 6,000,000t
Hangzhou Linan Bingo Cinema PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 - 75 Cinema business
Company Limited* i company AR Tk
B R B RERAT EREART 500,0007t
Hangzhou Bingo Cinema Company PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 - 75  Cinema business
Limited* EF company ARE FhER
RMERERRERAR ARELEAT 500,000t

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. EEMBLTZERE®)
(Continued)
Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interests
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
operation Type of registered capital  AARBEELZKRAESE  Principal
Name of subsidiaries HMAL/ legal entity BRIR activities
WEBARER EES L TRERER HERE/HRER Directly  Indirectly FE£%
E# B
% %
Beijing Bingo Sky Culture Limited* PRC Limited liability RMB2,000,000 - - Investment holding
frotz 1) i company ARE (2024:100) HEEEK
EREBREXICER AT = AEREART 2,000,0007 (ZZzpmE:
100)
Beijing Bingo Tianji Culture Limited* ~ PRC Limited liability RMB1,000,000 - - Inactive
FRUBRE L ERAR HEl company ARE (2024:100) EEsz
AREEARA 1,000,0007¢ (ZBzpmE:
100)
Guangzhou Gao De Digital Cultural PRC Limited liability RMB1,000,000 - 81 Investment halding
Technology Limited* i company AEE REER
BMENAEUEHRER AT BREERA 1,000,000t
Bingo Xintu Management Consultancy  PRC Limited liability RMBG00,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* i company ARH RERR
EEHEEREA (R ERAT BREMERA 600,0007t
Bingo Hanxing Investment (Shenzhen) ~ PRC Limited liability RMB200,000 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited* i company ARE REER
EEBERE (R ARAT AEREART 200,0007t
Bingo Xinyi Culture Media (Shenzhen) ~ PRC Limited liability RMVB500,000 - 100  Inactive
Company Limited* i company ARE faid 3
LERELER (RIDBRAF ARERERT 500,0007t
Zhuhai Changbo Technology Company ~ PRC Limited liability RMB1,000,000 - 517 New media
Limited* i company ARE exploitations
REGEMRERLA ARERERH 1,000,0007 HREM%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. EXMBLTFIZHER @
(Continued)
Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interests
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
operation Type of registered capital  AARBEELZRAES  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Rl legal entity BRR activities
WEARBHE 2EHY EEERER BERE/EMER Directly  Indirectly FE£%
Ef GE3
% %
Bingo Xingchen Cultural Media PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 - 100  Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* i company AR REER
EERLER (RIDARAR BREERT 500,000t
Zhuhai Bingo Xingyu Network PRC Limited liability RMB1,000,000 - 51 Investment holding
Technology Company Limited* i company ARE REZR
HELEERBENRERAA AREART 1,000,0007t
Shenzhen Xingfeng Culture Media PRC Limited liability RMB2,000,000 - 51 New media
Company Limited* i company ARE exploitations
AT EE X ERARAA ARERERH 2,000,0007 MFERY
Guangzhou Yaobo Technology PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 - 91 New media
Company Limited* '? company AR exploitations
BMBRNRERAT BREERT 500,0007 HREmE
* English name for identification purpose only * WY LB EEER
note: HiaE -
1. Wholly owned foreign enterprises (WOFE) registered under 1. REPEEEZRZINEBENE
PRC law.

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned

35. FEMBLATZHE @

TRINTEREARFFERER 2 AEE I

subsidiaries of the Group that has material non-controlling 2EMBRBZFS:
interests:
Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation and interests and voting
principal place rights held by
of business non-controlling interests Profit/(loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary ERKLBHR FERERFEZEFE  noncontrolling interests  non-controlling interests
WEARER TEEXBY BERRZELL FRRBRESER/ (BB Rt FERER
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
ZB-HE  —ToNE | ZBSREE -ToME | ZBCHE —ToNF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEn TR TR ThEr
Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) HEER (L) PRC 25% 25% (56) 212) (455) (408)
Company Limited BRAE el
Bingo Group-Memorigin (BGM) Hong Kong 40% 40% 71 327 1,185 1,114
Limited b
Brilliant Tech Limited FRBERAF Hong Kong 25% 25% 70 625 (2,218) (2,323)
b
Zhuhai Bingo Xingyu Network HatmEREs PRC 49% - (1,663) - (1,651) -
Technology Company Limited BEBRAR e
Individually immaterial subsidiaries %78 FHEfk #3E 2 PRC 275 (32)
with non-controlling interests [ERFEAMBLRR  HE
(2,864) (1,647)
Commitments in respect of subsidiaries ERME R R &R

The Group has the following commitments relating to its

AEBEUATERENBARBHARE:

subsidiaries:
2025 2024
—E-EHF ZEZOF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Commitment to provide funding if called ERERERIEHES 3,446 783
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. EEMBLTZFEE @)

(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s TERETNEBEEBEARFTRER ZAE
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is EfEARCHBERHME - Tl B E
set out below. The summarised financial information below KL Z S BN 8 A RIEEHAT < &8 o

represents amounts before intra-group eliminations.

2025 2024
—E-RHE —EE
Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) Company e Ek (E8) HK$'000 HK$'000
Limited and subsidiaries BRARKRHE AR FE T FAET
Non-current assets JEMENEE - -
Current assets MBNEE 2,078 2,343
Current liabilities nEaE (3,906) (3.979)
Non-current liability EmEaE = -
Revenue 1 & - 1,156
2025 2024
—E-HE —ZEE
Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) Company ke EFR (L8) HKS$’'000 HK$'000
Limited and subsidiaries BRARKRKE AR FE T FABT
Loss for the year attributable to AT IS FEBE
- owners of the Company — RNRBEEA (167) (674)
- non-controlling interest — IR (56) (212)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) TREEZmEmERA (EE)
attributable to: 4aEE
- owners of the Company — RRFHEBA (144) (576)
- non-controlling interest — FEERER (48) (2893)
Net cash used in operating activities REZHFAAZRSFER (27) (833)
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFAZREF5E = (1,399)
Net cash generated from financing BEEEMSCIREFE
activities - 2,614

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. EEMBLTZFEE @)

(Continued)
2025 2024
—E-HF —EmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Bingo Group-Memorigin (BGM) Limited TET TETT
Non-current assets FERBEE - -
Current assets mENE E 3,043 2,889
Current liabilities ER=NE (80) (104)
Non-current liability EmeaE — -
Revenue e 235 2,105
2025 2024
—E-RF —EmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Bingo Group-Memorigin (BGM) Limited THET THETT
Profit for the year attributable to LATT FE(R 2 05 F
- owners of the Company — ARAHEA 107 491
- non-controlling interest — FEERER 71 327
Total comprehensive income AT G2 ERALRTE:
attributable to:
- owners of the Company — RRAHEAB A 107 491
- non-controlling interest — FFERER 71 327
Net cash generated from operating KREEBG IR FEE
activities 198 870
Net cash generated from investing REEBDEZHEIFRE
activities 1,350 7
Net cash generated from financing MEEHSC RS FHE
activities - 617

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2024/25



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. TEMBLRZHESE @
(Continued)
2025 2024
“®B-hHF —EomEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Brilliant Tech Limited and subsidiaries RKEER ARG KKB AR THET FHET
Non-current assets EmENEE 99 114
Current assets mENE E 1,016 1,121
Current liabilities MENEE (9.,810) (9,782)
Non-current liability EmeaE (178) (736)
Revenue e 2,321 6,945
2025 2024
—E_REF —EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Brilliant Tech Limited and subsidiaries RKEERAEKKB AR THET FHET
Profit for the year attributable to VAT e 5 2 4 A
- owners of the Company — ARAHEA 210 1,877
- non-controlling interest — FEERER 70 625
Total comprehensive income AT G2 ERALRTE:
attributable to:
- owners of the Company — RRAHEAB A 315 2,147
- non-controlling interest — FFERER 105 793
Net cash generated from operating KREEBG IR FEE
activities 554 1,485
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFHHME(FTA)Z
investing activities HeF5 1 (2,226)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEAES (FTA) A8
financing activities BEFR (719) 185

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

35. FEMBLATZHE @

(Continued)
2025
—E-RHF
Zhuhai Bingo Xingyu Network Technology — k/& L & B IR A4 R AR A A HK$’'000
Company Limited and its subsidiaries gy THET
Non-current assets EmENEE 525
Current assets mENE E 153
Current liabilities ER=NE (3,129)
Non-current liability EmeaE (364)
Revenue e 3,268
2025
—E-RHEF
Zhuhai Bingo Xingyu Network Technology — k/&L & B IR BRI AR A A HK$’000
Company Limited and its subsidiaries g THET
Loss for the year attributable to AT IS FEBE
- owners of the Company — RRBHAE A (1,731)
- non-controlling interest — FEERER (1,663)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: LA N FE(S 2 E 1848 -
- owners of the Company — RRFHEBA (1,718)
- non-controlling interest — FEERE (1,651)
Net cash used in operating activities RETEBPAZIRE F5E (2,920)

Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash generated from
financing activities

BRERBAAZREFER (4)
MERDA/2REFR
2,946
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025

HE—

35.

36.

E_AF=A=+—HIFFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Change in ownership interest in subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group
disposed the 25% of its interests in Brilliant Tech Limited.
The consideration for disposal of HK$1 was receivable
during the year ended 31 March 2024. An amount of
HK$2,811,000 (being the proportionate share of the
carrying amount of the net liabilities of Brilliant Tech
Limited) has been transferred to non-controlling interests.
The difference of HK$2,811,000 between the increase in
deficit of the non-controlling interests and the
consideration received has been credited to accumulated
losses.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000, contributions to
the MPF Scheme vest immediately. Contributions paid or
payable to the MPF scheme are charged to the statement
of profit or loss.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-sponsored retirement plan organised
by the municipal government under the regulations of the
PRC and these subsidiaries make mandatory contributions
to the state-sponsored retirement plan to fund the
employees’ retirement benefits. The retirement
contributions paid by the PRC subsidiaries are based on a
percentage of the eligible employees’ salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.
The Group discharges its retirement obligations upon
payment of the retirement contributions to the state-
sponsored retirement plan organised by the municipal
government in the PRC.

35.

36.

FEMBATZHES &)

R BARCEREREZEH

REE-Z-_NE=A=+—HILFE-
AEBHEERKBBR AR 225%#
@ NERBIBIREBEZE_ZE-_NF=A
—t+—BIFEAENKE 2,811,000
BT (AR P hRE AR AR B EF
EREE) ORI s - FEIERR
EEMAENECSRAREZENZ 8
2,811,000 TE st A RETEE

BRFFEFI R R
RIEEBRHEAES I BIEH £ EHE
RERESEMEIZRZBERY —H

mHE R ([RERFTE]]) - 8%
TAHERHBUREAETRE 2 REHRTE
Watdl-RigpEetd BREMEREEY
ARREESEBERAZE% MRE T2
FHEF EEBABRBRAZLERS
30,0008 7t - 98 18 & 5t 8| 2 KA 65 58
Bo-ENEEM zaEeEIHARNER
R AAER -

it

AEERPEMBARZRBIZPEER
MESEATRAEE 2BFKEBRIKG
g AEME A RRBEKRER 2 RIKG
2 REERKBIELEHIEHK - ZF
TERBAREAEREEFE X -8B
DA RKRER BRELE 2 RN 18
mARPHR - ANEER RS EHBEE R
2 B A B R IR A &I1F H AR R RIS Bk
HRARE L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025

=z

36.

37.

38.

—E-—AF=A=+—HIFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME (Continued)

The Group does not have any other pension schemes for
its employees in respect of the subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong and the PRC. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2025 in respect of
the retirement of its employees.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss of approximately HK$730,000 (2024
approximately HK$560,000) represents contributions
payable to these schemes by the Group in respect of the
current accounting period.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 4 October 2024, the Group entered into a project
management service agreement with Jumoon Group
Limited ("Jumoon”), who is wholly owned by Ms. Chow
Man Ki Kelly, an executive director and a deemed
substantial shareholder of the Company, to provide project
management, copyright management, and communication
coordination services etc. On 5 March 2025, the Group
entered into a supplemental agreement with Jumoon to
revise the annual caps. The aforesaid agreements were
approved at the extraordinary general meeting held on 6
June 2025. Details of the agreements are stated in the
Company’s announcements dated 4 October 2024 and 5
March 2025, and its circular dated S May 2025.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in
these consolidated financial statements to conform with
current year's presentation. Such reclassifications have no
material effects on previously reported financial position
and performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2025
BE—FT-_AF=-A=+—HIFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

39. FAFMBRARE

COMPANY
2025 2024
—E_RE —EOF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F&T FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN $ 144,844 164,641
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and Hith e I8 - i e &
prepayments TERTFRIE 113 135
Cash and cash equivalents ReENKBFELFEY 1,388 4,588
1,501 4,723
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals H fth JE AT R IE K JE 5T 3R IE 1,482 1,900
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A R FRIA 173,742 168,400
Convertible bonds AR ES 17,180 -
192,404 171,300
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEEFE (190,903) (166,577)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERARBERS
LIABILITIES (46,059) (1,936)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBEME
Convertible bonds AR ES - 15,031
NET LIABILITIES BEFEHE (46,059) (16,967)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXRRHE
Share capital % AR 10,265 10,265
Reserves s (56,324) (27,232)
TOTAL CAPITAL DEFICIENCY BB A 4% (46,059) (16,967)

The Company's statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
June 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHOW Man Ki Kelly

A&

DIRECTOR

EFE

ARARNFHRABRERER T _RFN
A-ttHEESSHERKETE I
HINIEEHEES:

CHOW Nga Chee Alice
A
DIRECTOR
EF

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFEMBHIRE

The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last AEERNBERETREE 2 £EREE R

five financial years are as follows: (ECUNNE
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—E_RE —ToNE —ZT-=F —ZT-— —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FET FHET FHET
RESULTS E4
Revenue g 12,114 7,848 5,522 8,494 6,860
Loss before taxation BRI E B (21,792) (12,004) (8,377) (14,671) (24,894)
Taxation | (1,470) (69) - - (16)

Loss before non-controlling  #0BR FE12 A% 4 45 A1

interests &8 (23,262) (12,073) (8,377) (14,671) (24,910)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR 1,815 (708) (653) 892 3,422

Loss attributable to owners AR EIHEE AJENL

of the Company &8 (21,447) (12,781) (9,030) (13,779) (21,488)
Loss per share BRER
— Basic and diluted — ERREE
(HK cents) (note)] B (Ber) (20.89) (12.45) (8.80) (14.77) (25.12)
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—E-RFE —Tomg —T-=§F ZT=-Z —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Total assets EERE 53,388 14,883 24,160 35,407 43,948
Total liabilities afEeE 85,111 (28,796) (26,280) (30,760) (35,127)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR M A (2,864) (1,647) 360 (1,154) (578)

note: Adjusted for share consolidation effective from 16 March 2022  ff;7: B_-_ZT - —F=A+tNBREERZBEHAH

=

1 a2
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